

2015 New York Assembly Bill No. 9008, New York Two Hundred Thirty-Eighth Legislative Session

NEW YORK BILL TEXT

**TITLE: Enacts into law major components of legislation necessary to implement the state transportation, economic development and environmental conservation budget for the 2016-2017 state fiscal year.**

VERSION: Amended/Substituted

February 16, 2016

Budget Bill



[Image 1 within document in PDF format.](#)

SUMMARY: BUDGET BUDGET BILL Amd Various Laws; generally Enacts into law major components of legislation necessary to implement the state transportation, economic development and environmental conservation budget for the 2016-2017 state fiscal year; relates to committing the state of New York and the city of New York to partially fund part of the costs of the Metropolitan Transportation Authority's capital program (Part A); relates to procurements by the New York City transit authority and the metropolitan transportation authority; and relates to extending owner controlled insurance programs in certain instances (Part B); relates to the New York transit authority and the metropolitan transportation authority (Part C); relates to the dedication of revenues and the costs of the department of motor vehicles; amends chapter 751 of the laws of 2005 relating to establishing the accident prevention course internet technology pilot program, in relation to the effectiveness thereof; to repeal subdivision 2 of section 89-g of the state finance law relating to funds to be placed into the accident prevention course internet, and other technology pilot program fund; and to repeal certain provisions of the state finance law relating to the motorcycle safety fund (Part D); relates to farm vehicles and covered farm vehicles and to expand the scope of the P endorsement (Part E); relates to extending certain provisions relating to the empire state economic development fund (Part F); amends chapter 393 of the laws of 1994, relating to the powers of the New York state urban development corporation to make loans, in relation to the effectiveness thereof (Part G); establishes the Transformational Economic Development Infrastructure and Revitalization Projects act (Part H); authorizes and directs the New York state energy research and development authority to make a payment to the general fund of up to \$913,000 (Part I); authorizes the New York state energy research and development authority to finance a portion of its research, development and demonstration, policy and planning, and Fuel NY programs, and to finance the department of environmental conservation's climate change program, from an assessment on gas and electric corporations (Part J); authorizes the department of health to finance certain activities with revenues generated from an assessment on cable television companies (Part K); relates to authorizing the department of public service to increase program efficiencies (Part L); amends chapter 21 of the laws of 2003, relating to permitting the secretary of state to provide special handling for all documents filed or issued by the division of corporations and to permit additional levels of such expedited service, in relation to extending the expiration date thereof (Part M); relates to streamlining the process by which service of process is served against a corporate or other entity with the secretary of state; and to repeal certain provisions of the real property law relating thereto (Part N); relates to authorized combative sports and to the costs of boxer medical examinations; and repeals chapter 912 of the laws of 1920, relating to the regulation of boxing, sparring, and wrestling (Part O); amends chapter 584 of the laws of 2011, relating to the powers and duties of the dormitory authority of the state of New York relative to the establishment of subsidiaries for certain purposes in relation to the effectiveness thereof (Part P); relates to eliminating the canal corporation; and repeals certain provisions of the public authorities law and the public officers law relating thereto (Part Q); establishes the private activity bond allocation act of 2016; relates to the powers, functions and duties of the New York state public authorities control board; and repeals the private activity bond allocation act of 2014 (Part R); relates to transferring the statutory authority for the promulgation of marketing orders from the department of agriculture and markets to the New York state urban development corporation; repeals certain provisions of the agriculture and markets law relating to the marketing of agricultural products;

and provides for the repeal of such provisions upon expiration thereof (Part S); relates to mandatory tire acceptance (Part T); relates to creating a new climate change mitigation and adaptation account in the environmental protection fund; relates to local waterfront revitalization programs; and relates to payments for local waterfront revitalization programs (Part U); relates to the authorized reimbursement rate paid to governmental entities (Part V). Division of Budget

**TEXT:**

STATE OF NEW YORK \_\_\_\_\_

S. 6408--A A. 9008--A

SENATE - ASSEMBLY

January 14, 2016 \_\_\_\_\_

IN SENATE -- A BUDGET BILL, submitted by the Governor pursuant to article seven of the Constitution -- read twice and ordered printed, and when printed to be committed to the Committee on Finance -- committee discharged, bill amended, ordered reprinted as amended and recommitted to said committee

IN ASSEMBLY -- A BUDGET BILL, submitted by the Governor pursuant to article seven of the Constitution -- read once and referred to the Committee on Ways and Means -- committee discharged, bill amended, ordered reprinted as amended and recommitted to said committee

AN ACT to amend public authorities law, in relation to committing the state of New York and the city of New York to partially fund part of the costs of the Metropolitan Transportation Authority's capital program (Part A); to amend the public authorities law, in relation to procurements by the New York City transit authority and the metropolitan transportation authority; and to amend the insurance law, in relation to extending owner controlled insurance programs in certain instances (Part B); to amend the public authorities law and the general municipal law, in relation to the New York transit authority and the metropolitan transportation authority (Part C); to amend the vehicle and traffic law and the state finance law, in relation to the dedication of revenues and the costs of the department of motor vehicles; to amend chapter 751 of the laws of 2005 amending the insurance law and the vehicle and traffic law relating to establishing the accident prevention course internet technology pilot program, in relation to the effectiveness thereof; to repeal subdivision 2 of section 89-g of the state finance law relating to funds to be placed into the accident prevention course internet, and other technology pilot program fund; and to repeal certain provisions of the state finance law relating to the motorcycle safety fund (Part D); to amend the vehicle and traffic law, in relation to farm vehicles and covered farm vehicles and to expand the scope of the P endorsement (Part E); to amend the New York state urban development corporation act, in relation to extending certain provisions relating to the empire state economic development fund (Part F); to amend chapter 393 of the laws of 1994, amending the New York state urban development corporation act, relating to the powers of the New York state urban development corporation

--A to make loans, in relation to the effectiveness thereof (Part G); to establish the Transformational Economic Development Infrastructure and Revitalization Projects act (Part H); to authorize and direct the New York state energy research and development authority to make a payment to the general fund of up to \$913,000 (Part I); to authorize the New York state energy research and development authority to finance a portion of its research, development and demonstration, policy and planning, and Fuel NY programs, and to finance the department of environmental conservation's climate change program, from an assessment on gas and electric corporations (Part J); to authorize the department of health to finance certain activities with revenues generated from an assessment on cable television companies (Part K); to amend the public service law, in relation to authorizing the department of public service to increase program efficiencies (Part L); to amend chapter 21 of the laws of 2003, amending the executive law, relating to permitting the secretary of state to provide special handling for all documents filed or issued by the division of corporations and to permit additional levels of such expedited service, in relation to extending the expiration date thereof (Part M); to amend the business corporation law, the cooperative corporations law, the executive

law, the general associations law, the general business law, the limited liability company law, the not-for-profit corporation law, the partnership law, the private housing finance law, the real property law and the tax law, in relation to streamlining the process by which service of process is served against a corporate or other entity with the secretary of state; and to repeal certain provisions of the real property law relating thereto (Part N); to amend the general business law, the tax law, and the alcoholic beverage control law, in relation to authorized combative sports and to the costs of boxer medical examinations; and to repeal chapter 912 of the laws of 1920, relating to the regulation of boxing, sparring, and wrestling (Part O); to amend chapter 584 of the laws of 2011, amending the public authorities law relating to the powers and duties of the dormitory authority of the state of New York relative to the establishment of subsidiaries for certain purposes in relation to the effectiveness thereof (Part P); to amend the public authorities law, the canal law, the state finance law, the public officers law, the transportation law, and the parks, recreation and historic preservation law, in relation to eliminating the canal corporation; and to repeal certain provisions of the public authorities law and the public officers law relating thereto (Part Q); to establish the private activity bond allocation act of 2016; to amend the public authorities law in relation to the powers, functions and duties of the New York state public authorities control board; and to repeal the private activity bond allocation act of 2014 (Part R); to amend the New York state urban development corporation act, in relation to transferring the statutory authority for the promulgation of marketing orders from the department of agriculture and markets to the New York state urban development corporation; to repeal certain provisions of the agriculture and markets law relating to the marketing of agricultural products; and providing for the repeal of such provisions upon expiration thereof (Part S); to amend the environmental conservation law, in relation to mandatory tire acceptance (Part T); to amend the state finance law, in relation to creating a new climate change mitigation and adaptation account in the environmental protection fund; to amend the environmental conservation law, in relation to local waterfront revitalization programs; and to amend --A the executive law, in relation to payments for local waterfront revitalization programs (Part U); and to amend the navigation law, in relation to the authorized reimbursement rate paid to governmental entities (Part V)

**The People of the State of New York, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:**

Section 1. This act enacts into law major components of legislation which are necessary to implement the state fiscal plan for the 2016-2017 state fiscal year. Each component is wholly contained within a Part identified as Parts A through V. The effective date for each particular provision contained within such Part is set forth in the last section of such Part. Any provision in any section contained within a Part, including the effective date of the Part, which makes a reference to a section "of this act", when used in connection with that particular component, shall be deemed to mean and refer to the corresponding section of the Part in which it is found. Section three of this act sets forth the general effective date of this act.

**PART A**

Section 1. This act shall be known as the "Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) Capital Financing Act of 2016". This act commits the state of New York (state) and the city of New York (city) to fund, over a multi-year period, \$10,828,000,000 in capital costs related to projects contained in the MTA's 2015-2019 capital program (capital program). The state share of \$8,336,000,000 shall consist of \$1,000,000,000 in appropriations first enacted in the 2015-2016 state budget and additional funds sufficient for MTA to pay \$7,336,000,000 of capital costs as provided herein. The city share of \$2,492,000,000 shall consist of \$657,000,000 to be provided by the city from 2015 through 2019, and additional funds sufficient for MTA to pay \$1,835,000,000 of capital costs for the capital program. The \$7,336,000,000 of additional funds to be provided by the state may be used by the MTA to pay direct capital costs and/or the state may fund such \$7,336,000,000 of capital costs through financing mechanisms undertaken by the MTA.

§ 2. (a) The additional funds provided by the state pursuant to section one of this act shall be scheduled and made available to pay for the costs of the capital program after MTA capital resources planned for the capital program, not including additional city and state funds, have been exhausted, or when MTA capital resources planned for the capital program are not available. It is anticipated that state funds shall be required by, and provided to, the MTA in an amount to support \$1,500,000,000 of capital costs in the first year in which planned MTA capital resources are exhausted; \$2,600,000,000 in the second year; \$1,840,000,000 in the third year and \$1,396,000,000 in the fourth year or thereafter.

(b) Such funds may be provided to the MTA through direct payments from the state and/or financing mechanisms undertaken by the MTA utilizing aid paid by the state on a schedule sufficient to support the capital costs outlined in this act. The director of the budget (director) shall annually determine the level of funding required to meet the state's commitment and recommend such amounts for inclusion in the executive budget. In making such determination, the director shall consider the --A availability of MTA capital resources planned for the capital program, the current progress and timing of the MTA capital program, the financing mechanisms employed by the MTA, if any, and any other pertinent factors.

(c) State funding amounts, whether direct or in support of a financing mechanism undertaken by the MTA, shall be subject to appropriation within applicable annual state budgets; provided, however, that in the event the state does not appropriate the full amount of the funding required pursuant to this act in any year, such action shall not reduce the commitment of the state to fund the full state share specified in section one of this act, with the state fulfilling its aggregate commitment in this act no later than state fiscal year 2025-2026 or by the completion of the capital program. In the event that the MTA has exhausted all currently available sources of funding, the MTA may, with the approval of the director, issue anticipation notes or other obligations secured solely by the additional funds specified in subdivision (a) of this section and shall provide for capitalized interest thereon.

§ 3. In order to annually determine the adequacy and pace of the level of state funding in support of the MTA's capital program, and to gauge the availability of MTA capital resources planned for the capital program, the director may request, and the MTA shall provide, periodic reports on the MTA's capital programs and financial activities in a form and on a schedule prescribed by the director.

§ 4. Subdivision 12 of section 1269 of the public authorities law, as amended by section 1 of part E of chapter 58 of the laws of 2012, is amended to read as follows:

12. The aggregate principal amount of bonds, notes or other obligations issued after the first day of January, nineteen hundred ninetythree by the authority, the Triborough bridge and tunnel authority and the New York city transit authority to fund projects contained in capital program plans approved pursuant to section twelve hundred sixtynine-b of this title for the period nineteen hundred ninety-two through two thousand ~~fourteen~~ **nineteen** shall not exceed ~~thirty-seven~~ **fiftyfive** billion ~~two hundred eleven~~ **four hundred ninety-seven** million dollars ~~prior to January one, two thousand thirteen; shall not exceed thirty-nine billion five hundred forty-four million prior to January one, two thousand fourteen; and shall not exceed forty-one billion eight hundred seventy-seven million dollars thereafter~~ . Such aggregate principal amount of bonds, notes or other obligations or the expenditure thereof shall not be subject to any limitation contained in any other provision of law on the principal amount of bonds, notes or other obligations or the expenditure thereof applicable to the authority, the Triborough bridge and tunnel authority or the New York city transit authority. The aggregate limitation established by this subdivision shall not include (i) obligations issued to refund, redeem or otherwise repay, including by purchase or tender, obligations theretofore issued either by the issuer of such refunding obligations or by the authority, the New York city transit authority or the Triborough bridge and tunnel authority, (ii) obligations issued to fund any debt service or other reserve funds for such obligations, (iii) obligations issued or incurred to fund the costs of issuance, the payment of amounts required under bond and note facilities, federal or other governmental loans, security or credit arrangements or other agreements related thereto and the payment of other financing, **original issue premiums** and related costs associated with such obligations, (iv) an amount equal to any original issue discount from the principal amount of such obligations or to fund --A capitalized interest, (v) obligations incurred pursuant to section twelve hundred seven-m of this article, (vi) obligations incurred to fund the acquisition of certain buses for the New York city transit authority as identified in a capital program plan approved pursuant to chapter fifty-three of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-two, (vii) obligations incurred in connection with the leasing, selling or transferring of equipment, and (viii) bond anticipation notes or other obligations payable solely from the proceeds of other bonds, notes or other obligations which would be included in the aggregate principal amount specified in the first sentence of this subdivision, whether or not additionally secured by revenues of the authority, or any of its subsidiary corporations, New York city transit authority, or any of its subsidiary corporations, or Triborough bridge and tunnel authority.

§ 5. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

## PART B

Section 1. Subdivision 7 of section 1209 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 334 of the laws of 2001, is amended to read as follows:

7. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, all purchase contracts for supplies, materials or equipment involving an estimated expenditure in excess of ~~fifteen~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars and all contracts for public work involving an estimated expenditure in excess of ~~twenty-five~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars shall be awarded by the authority to the lowest responsible bidder after obtaining sealed bids in the manner hereinafter set forth. The aforesaid shall not apply to contracts for personal, architectural, engineering or other professional services. The authority may reject all bids and obtain new bids in the manner provided by this section when it is deemed in the public interest to do so or, in cases where two or more responsible bidders submit identical bids which are the lowest bids, award the contract to any of such bidders or obtain new bids from such bidders. Nothing herein shall obligate the authority to seek new bids after the rejection of bids or after cancellation of an invitation to bid. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the evaluation of bids on the basis of costs or savings including life cycle costs of the item to be purchased, discounts, and inspection services so long as the invitation to bid reasonably sets forth the criteria to be used in evaluating such costs or savings. Life cycle costs may include but shall not be limited to costs or savings associated with installation, energy use, maintenance, operation and salvage or disposal.

(b) Section twenty-eight hundred seventy-nine of this chapter shall apply to the authority's acquisition of goods or services of any kind, in the actual or estimated amount of fifteen thousand dollars or more, provided that **(i)** a contract for ~~personal~~ services in the actual or estimated amount of less than ~~twenty~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars shall not require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered, and provided further that a contract for ~~personal~~ services in the actual or estimated amount of ~~twenty~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars or more shall require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered **unless such a contract is awarded to the lowest responsible bidder after obtaining sealed bids and (ii) the board of the authority may by resolution adopt --A guidelines that authorize the award of contracts to small business concerns, to service disabled veteran owned businesses certified pursuant to article seventeen-B of the executive law, or minority or womenowned business enterprises certified pursuant to article fifteen-A of the executive law, or purchases of goods or technology that are recycled or remanufactured, in an amount not to exceed four hundred thousand dollars without a formal competitive process and without further board approval.**

§ 2. Paragraph (a) of subdivision 8 of section 1209 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 725 of the laws of 1993, is amended to read as follows:

(a) Advertisement for bids, when required by this section, shall be published ~~at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served by the authority and~~ in the procurement opportunities newsletter published pursuant to article four-C of the economic development law provided that, notwithstanding the provisions of article four-C of the economic development law, an advertisement shall only be required when required by this section. Publication ~~in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served or~~ in the procurement opportunities newsletter shall not be required if bids for contracts for supplies, materials or equipment are of a type regularly purchased by the authority and are to be solicited from a list of potential suppliers, if such list is or has been developed consistent with the provisions of subdivision eleven of this section. Any such advertisement shall contain a statement of: (i) the time and place where bids received pursuant to any notice requesting sealed bids will be publicly opened and read; (ii) the name of the contracting agency; (iii) the contract identification number; (iv) a brief description of the public work, supplies, materials, or equipment sought, the location where work is to be performed, goods are to be delivered or services provided and the contract term; (v) the address where bids or proposals are to be submitted; (vi) the date when



bids or proposals are due; (vii) a description of any eligibility or qualification requirement or preference; (viii) a statement as to whether the contract requirements may be fulfilled by a subcontracting, joint venture, or co-production arrangement; (ix) any other information deemed useful to potential contractors; and (x) the name, address, and telephone number of the person to be contacted for additional information. At least fifteen business days shall elapse between the first publication of such advertisement or the solicitation of bids, as the case may be, and the date of opening and reading of bids.

§ 3. Subparagraph (i) of paragraph f and subparagraph (i) of paragraph g of subdivision 9 of section 1209 of the public authorities law, subparagraph (i) of paragraph f as added by chapter 929 of the laws of 1986, and subparagraph (i) of paragraph g as amended by chapter 725 of the laws of 1993, are amended to read as follows:

(i) The **Except for a contract that is awarded pursuant to this paragraph to the proposer whose proposal is the lowest cost, the** authority may award a contract pursuant to this paragraph only after a resolution approved by a two-thirds vote of its members then in office at a public meeting of the authority with such resolution (A) disclosing the other proposers and the substance of their proposals, (B) summarizing the negotiation process including the opportunities, if any, available to proposers to present and modify their proposals, and (C) setting forth the criteria upon which the selection was made.

(i) The **Except for a contract that is awarded pursuant to this paragraph to the proposer whose proposal is the lowest cost, the** authority --A may award a contract pursuant to this paragraph only after a resolution approved by a vote of not less than two-thirds of its members then in office at a public meeting of the authority with such resolution (A) disclosing the other proposers and the substance of their proposals, (B) summarizing the negotiation process including the opportunities, if any, available to proposers to present and modify their proposals, and (C) setting forth the criteria upon which the selection was made.

§ 4. Subdivision 13 of section 1209 of the public authorities law, is renumbered subdivision 15 and two new subdivisions 13 and 14 are added to read as follows:

**13. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this section, the authority shall be allowed to use an electronic bidding system that may inform bidders whether their bid is the current low bid, and allow bidders to submit new bids before the date and time assigned for the opening of bids. Such procedure shall not constitute disclosure of bids in violation of section twenty-eight hundred seventy-eight of this chapter.**

**14. Whenever the comptroller, pursuant to subdivision one of section twenty-eight hundred seventy-nine-a of this chapter:**

**(a) intends to subject to his or her approval a contract or contract amendment to be awarded by the authority pursuant to this section, the comptroller shall notify the authority in writing of such determination within forty-five days of having received written notice of such contract or contract amendment either in the authority's annual report or any revised report;**

**(b) has notified the authority in writing that any contract or contract amendment awarded pursuant to this section shall be subject to his or her approval, such contract or contract amendment shall become valid and enforceable without such approval if the comptroller has not approved or disapproved such contract or contract amendment within forty-five days of submission to his or her office.**

§ 5. Subdivision 7 of section 1265 of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 324 of the laws of 1965, is amended to read as follows:

7. To acquire, hold and dispose of real or personal property in the exercise of its powers; **, including, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the power to dispose of personal property by public auction in accordance with guidelines adopted**

**by the authority. Such guidelines shall provide for advertising and such other safeguards as the authority may deem appropriate in the public interest.**

§ 6. Subdivision 3 of section 1204 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 980 of the laws of 1958, is amended to read as follows:

3. To acquire, hold, use and dispose of equipment, devices and appurtenances, and other property for its corporate purposes, **including, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the power to dispose of personal property by public auction in accordance with guidelines adopted by the metropolitan transportation authority pursuant to section twelve hundred sixty-five of this article.**

§ 7. Subdivision 3 of section 553 of the public authorities law, is amended to read as follows:

3. To acquire, hold and dispose of personal property for its corporate purposes; **, including, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the power to dispose of personal property by public auction in accordance with guidelines adopted by the authority. Such guidelines shall provide for advertising and such other safeguards as the authority may deem appropriate in the public interest.** --A

§ 8. Paragraphs (a) and (b) of subdivision 2 of section 1265-a of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 334 of the laws of 2001, are amended to read as follows:

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, all purchase contracts for supplies, materials or equipment involving an estimated expenditure in excess of ~~fifteen~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars and all contracts for public work involving an estimated expenditure in excess of ~~twenty-five~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars shall be awarded by the authority to the lowest responsible bidder after obtaining sealed bids in the manner hereinafter set forth. For purposes hereof, contracts for public work shall exclude contracts for personal, engineering and architectural, or professional services. The authority may reject all bids and obtain new bids in the manner provided by this section when it is deemed in the public interest to do so or, in cases where two or more responsible bidders submit identical bids which are the lowest bids, award the contract to any of such bidders or obtain new bids from such bidders. Nothing herein shall obligate the authority to seek new bids after the rejection of bids or after cancellation of an invitation to bid. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the evaluation of bids on the basis of costs or savings including life cycle costs of the item to be purchased, discounts, and inspection services so long as the invitation to bid reasonably sets forth the criteria to be used in evaluating such costs or savings. Life cycle costs may include but shall not be limited to costs or savings associated with installation, energy use, maintenance, operation and salvage or disposal.

(b) Section twenty-eight hundred seventy-nine of this chapter shall apply to the authority's acquisition of goods or services of any kind, in the actual or estimated amount of fifteen thousand dollars or more, provided **(i) that a contract for personal services in the actual or estimated amount of less than twenty** **one hundred** thousand dollars shall not require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered, and provided further that a contract for ~~personal~~ services in the actual or estimated amount of ~~twenty~~ **one hundred** thousand dollars or more shall require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered **unless such a contract is awarded to the lowest responsible bidder after obtaining sealed bids, and (ii) the board of the authority may by resolution adopt guidelines that authorize the award of contracts to small business concerns, to service disabled veteran owned businesses certified pursuant to article seventeen-B of the executive law, or minority or womenowned business enterprises certified pursuant to article fifteen-A of the executive law, or purchases of goods or technology that are recycled or remanufactured, in an amount not to exceed four hundred thousand dollars without a formal competitive process and without further board approval.**

§ 9. Subparagraph (i) of paragraph f and subparagraph (i) of paragraph g of subdivision 4 of section 1265-a of the public authorities law, subparagraph (i) of paragraph f as added by chapter 929 of the laws of 1986, and subparagraph (i) of paragraph g as amended by chapter 256 of the laws of 1998, are amended to read as follows:

(i) The **Except for a contract that is awarded pursuant to this paragraph to the proposer whose proposal is the lowest cost, the** authority may award a contract pursuant to this paragraph only after a resolution approved by a two-thirds vote of its members then in office at a public meeting of the authority with such resolution (A) disclosing the other --A proposers and the substance of their proposals, (B) summarizing the negotiation process including the opportunities, if any, available to proposers to present and modify their proposals, and (C) setting forth the criteria upon which the selection was made.

(i) The **Except for a contract that is awarded pursuant to this paragraph to the proposer whose proposal is the lowest cost, the** authority may award a contract pursuant to this paragraph only after a resolution approved by a vote of not less than a two-thirds vote of its members then in office at a public meeting of the authority with such resolution (A) disclosing the other proposers and the substance of their proposals, (B) summarizing the negotiation process including the opportunities, if any, available to proposers to present and modify their proposals, and (C) setting forth the criteria upon which the selection was made.

§ 10. Paragraph (a) of subdivision 3 of section 1265-a of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 494 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(a) Advertisement for bids, when required by this section, shall be published ~~at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served by the authority and~~ in the procurement opportunities newsletter published pursuant to article four-C of the economic development law provided that, notwithstanding the provisions of article four-C of the economic development law, an advertisement shall only be required for a purchase contract for supplies, materials or equipment when required by this section. ~~Publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served or~~ in the procurement opportunities newsletter shall not be required if bids for contracts for supplies, materials or equipment are of a type regularly purchased by the authority and are to be solicited from a list of potential suppliers, if such list is or has been developed consistent with the provisions of subdivision six of this section. Any such advertisement shall contain a statement of: (i) the time and place where bids received pursuant to any notice requesting sealed bids will be publicly opened and read; (ii) the name of the contracting agency; (iii) the contract identification number; (iv) a brief description of the public work, supplies, materials, or equipment sought, the location where work is to be performed, goods are to be delivered or services provided and the contract term; (v) the address where bids or proposals are to be submitted; (vi) the date when bids or proposals are due; (vii) a description of any eligibility or qualification requirement or preference; (viii) a statement as to whether the contract requirements may be fulfilled by a subcontracting, joint venture, or co-production arrangement; (ix) any other information deemed useful to potential contractors; and (x) the name, address, and telephone number of the person to be contacted for additional information. At least fifteen business days shall elapse between the first publication of such advertisement or the solicitation of bids, as the case may be, and the date of opening and reading of bids.

§ 11. Subdivision 8 of section 1265-a of the public authorities law is renumbered subdivision 10 and two new subdivisions 8 and 9 are added to read as follows:

**8. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this section, the authority shall be allowed to use an electronic bidding system that may inform bidders whether their bid is the current low bid, and allow bidders to submit new bids before the date and time assigned for the opening of bids. Such procedure shall not constitute disclosure of bids in violation of section twenty-eight hundred seventy-eight of this chapter. --A**

**9. Whenever the comptroller, pursuant to subdivision one of section twenty-eight hundred seventy-nine-a of this chapter:**



**(a) intends to subject to his or her approval a contract or contract amendment to be awarded by the authority pursuant to this section, the comptroller shall notify the authority in writing of such determination within forty-five days of having received written notice of such contract or contract amendment either in the authority's annual report or any revised report;**

**(b) has notified the authority in writing that any contract or contract amendment awarded pursuant to this section shall be subject to his or her approval, such contract or contract amendment shall become valid and enforceable without such approval if the comptroller has not approved or disapproved such contract or contract amendment within forty-five days of submission to his or her office.**

§ 12. Section 553 of the public authorities law is amended by adding a new subdivision 22 to read as follows:

**22. Section twenty-eight hundred seventy-nine of this chapter shall apply to the authority's acquisition of goods or services of any kind, in the actual or estimated amount of fifteen thousand dollars or more, provided that (i) a contract for services in the actual or estimated amount of less than one hundred thousand dollars shall not require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered, and provided further that a contract for services in the actual or estimated amount of one hundred thousand dollars or more shall require approval by the board of the authority regardless of the length of the period over which the services are rendered unless such a contract is awarded to the lowest responsible bidder after obtaining sealed bids and (ii) the board of the authority may by resolution adopt guidelines that authorize the award of contracts to small business concerns, to service disabled veteran owned businesses certified pursuant to article seventeen-b of the executive law, or minority or women-owned business enterprises certified pursuant to article fifteen-a of the executive law, or purchases of goods or technology that are recycled or remanufactured, in an amount not to exceed four hundred thousand dollars without a formal competitive process and without further board approval.**

§ 13. Paragraph (f) of subdivision 3 of section 2879-a of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 506 of the laws of 2009, is amended to read as follows:

(f) contracts for the sale or delivery of power or energy and costs and services ancillary thereto for economic development purposes pursuant to title one of article five of this chapter or article six of the economic development law, provided, however, that the authority shall file copies of any such contract with the comptroller within sixty days after the execution of such contract; **and (g) contracts entered into by the metropolitan transportation authority or the New York city transit authority that are: i. awarded pursuant to section one thousand two hundred nine or section one thousand two hundred sixty-five-a of this chapter by a method of procurement that is competitive; or ii. for a transfer of title or any other beneficial interest in real property of such an authority by sale, exchange or transfer, for cash, credit, or other property, with or without warranty.**

§ 14. Subparagraph (B) of paragraph 2 of subsection (a) of section 2504 of the insurance law is amended to read as follows:

(B) the city of New York, a public corporation or public authority, in connection with the construction of electrical generating and trans- --A mission facilities or construction, extensions and additions of light rail or heavy rail rapid transit and commuter railroads, **or bridge, tunnel or omnibus facilities.**

§ 15. This act shall take effect immediately.

PART C Section 1. Subdivisions 2 and 3 of section 1204-d of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 530 of the laws of 2006, are amended and a new subdivision 1-a is added to read as follows:

**1-a. The authority may on such terms and conditions as the authority may determine necessary, convenient or desirable enter into any joint arrangement as defined in subdivision nine-a of section twelve hundred sixty-one of this chapter and may exercise all of its powers in connection with any joint arrangement.**

2. Any such joint service arrangement **or joint arrangement** shall be authorized only by resolution of the authority approved by not less than a majority vote of the whole number of members of the board of the authority then in office, except that in the event of a tie vote the chairman shall cast one additional vote.

3. All general powers of the authority shall be applicable to joint service arrangements **and joint arrangements. The authority shall also have all of the powers of the metropolitan transportation authority as set forth in section twelve hundred sixty-six-i of this chapter.**

§ 2. Section 1261 of the public authorities law is amended by adding two new subdivisions 9-a and 18-a to read as follows:

**9-a. "Joint arrangement" shall mean an arrangement, including a public-private partnership, between or among the authority, its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority and its subsidiary, and any other party or parties, including public entities and private entities, on such terms and conditions as the authority, any of its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority or its subsidiary, deems necessary or appropriate, in the form of a contract, concession, license, lease, alliance, joint venture, corporation, including a limited liability corporation, a partnership, or other arrangement, in support of, associated with, derivative from, or incidental to, the planning, acquisition, design, establishment, construction, rehabilitation, reconstruction, improvement, extension, renewal, repair, operation, maintenance, development or financing of transportation in whole or in part in or upon one or more transportation facilities located in whole or in part within the district including without limitation, agreements relating to intermodal and shared facilities, the distribution of fare and toll payment media and electronic payment devices, or the collection of fares, tolls and other charges.**

**18-a. "Transportation purpose" shall mean a purpose that directly or indirectly supports all or any of the missions or purposes of the authority, any of its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority or its subsidiary, including the production of revenues available for the costs and expenses of all or any transportation facilities.**

§ 3. Subdivisions 3, 6, 8, and 11 of section 1266 of the public authorities law, subdivision 3 as amended and subdivision 11 as added by chapter 314 of the laws of 1981, and subdivisions 6 and 8 as amended by section 23 of part O of chapter 61 of the laws of 2000, are amended and three new subdivisions 2-a, 12-a and 19 are added to read as follows:

**2-a. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law to the contrary, the authority, any of its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority or --A its subsidiary, may on such terms and conditions as they may determine necessary, convenient or desirable enter into any joint arrangement as hereinafter provided and may exercise all of its powers in connection with any joint arrangement. Any joint arrangement shall be authorized only by resolution of the authority approved by not less than a majority vote of the whole number of members of the authority then in office, except that in the event of a tie vote the chairman shall cast one additional vote.**

3. The authority may establish, levy and collect or cause to be established, levied and collected and, in the case of a joint service arrangement **or a joint arrangement**, join with others in the establishment, levy and collection of such fares, tolls, rentals, rates, charges and other fees as it may deem necessary, convenient or desirable for the use and operation of any transportation facility and related services **or activities (a)** operated by the authority or by a subsidiary corporation of the authority or under contract,

lease or other arrangement, including joint service arrangements **or joint arrangements**, with the authority **or a subsidiary corporation of the authority; or (b) operated by New York city transit authority or its subsidiary in connection with a joint arrangement involving any transportation facilities of New York city transit authority or its subsidiary. The authority may also enter into a joint arrangement with an entity having the power to establish, levy and collect taxes and assessments, which joint arrangement may use such entity's power to establish, levy and collect taxes and assessments for the benefit of such joint arrangement, as such joint arrangement may deem necessary, convenient or desirable for the use and operation of any transportation facility and related services or activities operated by the authority, a subsidiary corporation of the authority, New York city transit authority or its subsidiary or under contract, lease or other arrangement.** Any such fares, tolls, rentals, rates, **taxes, assessments**, charges or other fees for the transportation of passengers shall be established and changed only if approved by resolution of the authority adopted by not less than a majority vote of the whole number of members of the authority then in office, with the chairman having one additional vote in the event of a tie vote, and only after a public hearing, provided however, that fares, tolls, rentals, rates, **taxes, assessments**, charges or other fees for the transportation of passengers on any transportation facility which are in effect at the time that the then owner of such transportation facility becomes a subsidiary corporation of the authority or at the time that operation of such transportation facility is commenced by the authority or is commenced under contract, lease or other arrangement, including joint service arrangements **or joint arrangements**, with the authority **or which have been established by the New York city transit authority or its subsidiary corporations and are in effect on the date the chapter of the laws of two thousand sixteen that amended this subdivision takes effect** may be continued in effect without such a hearing. Such fares, tolls, rentals, rates, **taxes, assessments**, charges and other fees shall be established as may in the judgment of the authority be necessary to maintain the combined operations of the authority and its subsidiary corporations on a self-sustaining basis. The said operations shall be deemed to be on a self-sustaining basis as required by this title, when the authority is able to pay or cause to be paid from revenue and any other funds or property actually available to the authority and its subsidiary corporations (a) as the same shall become due, the principal of and interest on the bonds and notes and other obligations of the authority and of such subsidiary --A corporations, together with the maintenance of proper reserves, **if any**, therefor, (b) the cost and expense of keeping the properties and assets of the authority and its subsidiary corporations in good condition and repair, and (c) the capital and operating expenses of the authority and its subsidiary corporations. The authority may contract with the holders of bonds and , notes **and other obligations** with respect to the exercise of the powers authorized by this section. No acts or activities taken or proposed to be taken by the authority or any subsidiary of the authority pursuant to the provisions of this subdivision shall be deemed to be "actions" for the purposes or within the meaning of article eight of the environmental conservation law.

6. Each of the authority and its subsidiaries, and the New York city transit authority and its subsidiaries, in its own name or in the name of the state, may apply for and receive and accept grants of property, money and services and other assistance offered or made available to it by any person, government or agency, **including such grants or other assistance offered or made available to it under a joint service arrangement or a joint arrangement**, which it may use to meet capital or operating expenses and for any other use within the scope of its powers, and to negotiate for the same upon such terms and conditions as the respective authority may determine to be necessary, convenient or desirable.

8. The authority may do all things it deems necessary, convenient or desirable to manage, control and direct the maintenance and operation of transportation facilities, equipment or real property operated by or under contract, lease or other arrangement with the authority and its subsidiaries, and New York city transit authority and its subsidiaries. ~~Except as hereinafter specially provided, no~~ **No** municipality or political subdivision, including but not limited to a county, city, village, town or school or other district shall have jurisdiction over any facilities of the authority and its subsidiaries, and New York city transit authority and its subsidiaries, or any of their activities or operations **except with the express consent of the authority or one of its subsidiaries or the New York city transit authority or one of its subsidiaries.** ~~The local~~ **Local** laws, resolutions, ordinances, rules and regulations of a municipality or political subdivision, heretofore or hereafter adopted, ~~conflicting with this title or any rule or regulation of the authority or its subsidiaries, or New York city transit authority or its subsidiaries,~~ shall not be applicable to the activities or operations of the authority and its subsidiaries, and New York city transit authority, or the facilities of the authority and its subsidiaries, and New York city transit authority and its subsidiaries, except such **activities or operations or facilities that are devoted solely and entirely to purposes a purpose other than a transportation or transit purposes purpose,**

**which transportation or transit purpose may be the production of revenue available for the costs and expenses of all or any activities or operations or facilities of the authority and its subsidiaries, and New York city transit authority and its subsidiaries.** Each municipality or political subdivision, including but not limited to a county, city, village, town or district in which any facilities of the authority or its subsidiaries, or New York city transit authority or its subsidiaries are located shall provide for such facilities police, fire and health protection services of the same character and to the same extent as those provided for residents of such municipality or political subdivision. --A

The jurisdiction, supervision, powers and duties of the department of transportation of the state under the transportation law shall not extend to the authority in the exercise of any of its powers under this title. The authority may agree with such department for the execution by such department of any grade crossing elimination project or any grade crossing separation reconstruction project along any railroad facility operated by the authority or by one of its subsidiary corporations or under contract, lease or other arrangement with the authority. Any such project shall be executed as provided in article ten of the transportation law and the railroad law, respectively, and the costs of any such project shall be borne as provided in such laws, except that the authority's share of such costs shall be borne by the state.

11. No project to be constructed upon real property theretofore used for a transportation purpose, or on an insubstantial addition to such property contiguous **or adjacent and related** thereto, which will not change in a material respect the general character of such prior transportation use, nor any acts or activities in connection with such project, shall be subject to the provisions of article eight, nineteen, twenty-four or twenty-five of the environmental conservation law, or to any local law or ordinance adopted pursuant to any such article. Nor shall any acts or activities taken or proposed to be taken by the authority or by any other person or entity, public or private, in connection with the planning, design, acquisition, improvement, construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of a transportation facility, other than a marine or aviation facility, be subject to the provisions of article eight of the environmental conservation law, or to any local law or ordinance adopted pursuant to any such article if such acts or activities require the preparation of a statement under or pursuant to any federal law or regulation as to the environmental impact thereof. **Nor shall any acquisition or condemnation of real property, or acts or activities taken or proposed to be taken on such real property, be subject to the provisions of article eight, nineteen, twenty-four or twenty-five of the environmental conservation law, or to any local law or ordinance adopted pursuant to any such article, when the authority has certified to the department of environmental conservation that such real property is acquired or condemned in connection with a future project that will likely constitute a capital element as defined by section twelve hundred sixty-nine-b of this title, until such time as that capital element is included in a capital program plan or until such time as the project is otherwise subject to those provisions.**

**12-a. Whenever in connection with the improvement, construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of a transportation facility, including as part of a joint arrangement, the authority determines that the pipes, mains or conduits of any public service corporation and any fixtures and appliances connected therewith or attached thereto must be removed or otherwise protected or replaced, the cost of such removal, protection or replacement whether performed by the authority or the public service corporation shall be borne solely by the public service corporation.**

**19. Notwithstanding the provisions of any general, special or local law, code, ordinance, rule or regulation to the contrary, the authority, its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority and its subsidiary may erect advertising signs or devices including illuminated or digital signs or devices within or on any of its transportation facilities and may install, maintain, and display advertising on such signs or devices, and may rent, lease, license or otherwise sell the right to do so to any person, private or public. Such advertising signs or devices and the --A production of revenue from them for the authority shall be deemed a transportation purpose and neither the authority, its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority or its subsidiary, nor any person, private or public, to whom the authority, its subsidiaries, New York city transit authority or its subsidiary has rented, leased, licensed or otherwise sold the right to install, maintain and display such advertising may be required to pay any fees, taxes or assessments, whether state or local, upon such advertising signs or devices or the use thereof or the revenue or income therefrom.**

§ 4. The public authorities law is amended by adding a new section 1266-k to read as follows:

**§ 1266-k. Joint arrangements 1. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the authority is authorized, in addition to its other rights and powers not inconsistent with the provisions of this title, to:**

**(a) enter into any joint arrangement;**

**(b) accept any gifts or any appropriation or grant of funds or property for the purposes of a joint arrangement from any private entity or public entity and to comply with the terms and conditions thereof;**

**(c) issue its notes or bonds, to finance all or any part of the costs of any joint arrangement;**

**(d) use the authority's eminent domain powers, on such terms and conditions as the authority deems appropriate, to acquire property required for joint arrangements;**

**(e) take an equity or other ownership interest in any joint arrangement in the form of stock ownership, partnership interests or other interests and members of the authority and employees of the authority shall be permitted to serve on the board of directors, management committee or other controlling body of the joint arrangement provided that any such appointment shall have been approved by a majority of the whole number of members of the authority then in office.**

**2. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the authority may:**

**(a) Accept, following compliance with the procedure set forth in this subsection, proposals from public entities or private entities for joint arrangements.**

**(i) The authority is hereby authorized to accept unsolicited proposals for joint arrangements.**

**(ii) An unsolicited proposal must include at a minimum:**

**(A) a description of the proposed joint arrangement, including the location, conceptual design, any interconnection of such joint arrangement with other existing or proposed transportation facilities, and the benefits to the authority of the joint arrangement;**

**(B) the projected total cost and plans for financing, including sources of funding, for the joint arrangement;**

**(C) the proposed schedule for the development of the proposed joint arrangement;**

**(D) the means proposed for the procurement of the property interests required for the proposed joint arrangement;**

**(E) information relating to the consistency of the proposal with the current transportation plans of the authority and any affected state or local jurisdiction;**

**(F) a list of permits and approvals required for the implementation of the proposed joint arrangement and a schedule for the acquisition of such permits and approvals from the appropriate local, state and federal agencies; --A**

**(G) the authority's proposed role and responsibilities, including any financial assistance, in the development of the proposed joint arrangement and implementation of the proposed transportation service; and**



(H) the name and address of the proposer.

(iii) After the receipt of an unsolicited proposal, the authority may require such additional information from the proposer as the authority deems pertinent to the consideration of the proposal.

(iv) After the receipt of an unsolicited proposal that the authority finds (A) to have fulfilled the requirements of subparagraphs (ii) and (iii) of this paragraph, (B) to be consistent with the authority's transportation objectives, and (C) to be a concept that the authority wishes to pursue, the authority may, after consulting with the entity making the proposal, prepare and issue a public request for competing proposals.

(v) Such public request for competing proposals must:

(A) describe the unsolicited proposal in such a way that, in the discretion of the authority, it fairly solicits competitive proposals that could achieve the transportation benefit proposed by the unsolicited proposal;

(B) provide for a period, not to exceed ninety days, for the initial submission of competing proposals; and

(C) require that such competing proposals include the information required for unsolicited proposals, as set forth in subparagraph (ii) of this paragraph.

(vi) After receiving any such competing proposals, the authority may require such additional information from any proposer as the authority deems pertinent to the consideration of the applicable proposal and may allow for the submission of additional information concerning the unsolicited proposal or any competing proposal.

3. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the authority may enter into a joint arrangement with the public entity or private entity which has submitted the unsolicited or solicited proposal that best demonstrates the following:

(a) A public need for the proposed joint arrangement;

(b) The proposed joint arrangement and the scheduling of its development and implementation and its connections to the existing transportation system are compatible with the transportation plans of the authority and of any state or local jurisdictions;

(c) The estimated cost of the proposed joint arrangement and of delivery of the transportation service is reasonable and the expenditure of any authority funds on the facility would provide a reasonable transportation benefit, relative to the estimated cost;

(d) The financing of the implementation and operation of the proposed joint arrangement is feasible; and

(e) The proposal provides the best value to the authority and the proposed joint arrangement satisfies any other criteria applied by the authority in ascertaining whether implementation and operation of the proposed joint arrangement is in the interests of the authority.

4. (a) Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the authority to accept any unsolicited proposal, make any solicitation or request for competitive proposals, or enter into any agreement with any public or private entity.

(b) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to (i) supersede or limit the applicability of the authority's existing powers and authority, or (ii) require the authority to accept any project through the provisions of this section, or (iii) require

the authority to enter into any agree- --A ments hereunder, or (iv) require the authority to take any action that would contradict or impact an existing authority contract or agreement with its bondholders.

(c) Section twenty-eight hundred ninety-seven of this chapter shall not apply to any transfer of title or any other beneficial interest in personal or real property by the authority pursuant to the terms of a joint arrangement.

(d) The authority is hereby authorized to promulgate any rules and regulations deemed necessary or desirable for the implementation of this section.

5. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, agreements entered into pursuant to this section may provide for:

(a) The planning, acquisition, design, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, establishment, improvement, renovation, extension, repair, operation, maintenance, development or financing of transportation facilities and joint arrangements and the provision of transportation services.

(b) The establishment, levy and collection of fares, user fees, tolls, rentals, rates or other charges for the use of transportation facilities, joint arrangements or for the receipt of transportation services pursuant to this section as the authority may deem necessary, convenient or desirable; and

(c) The crossing of any street, highway, railroad, canal, navigable water course or right-of-way, so long as the crossing does not unreasonably interfere with the reasonable use thereof.

6. In the event a public or private entity materially defaults on its obligations under a joint arrangement, the authority is hereby authorized to acquire all or any portion of any joint arrangement constructed by or in conjunction with such public entity or private entity, with any damages suffered to the authority as a result of such default being an offset to the compensation provided for the acquisition of the joint arrangement. In the event of such acquisition and notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the authority is hereby authorized, but not required, to operate and maintain the joint arrangement, including the imposition and collection of applicable fees, fares, tolls or other charges.

7. Any request for proposal or agreement entered pursuant to this section shall make provision for the protection of interests and rights in intellectual property and trade secrets. The contents of proposals received by the authority pursuant to this section shall be considered, for the purposes of section eighty-seven of the public officers law, records which, if disclosed, would impair present or imminent contract awards.

§ 5. Subdivisions 5 and 6 of section 1267 of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 324 of the laws of 1965, are amended to read as follows:

5. The authority may, whenever it determines that it is in the interest of the authority, dispose of any real property or property other than real property, which it determines is not necessary, convenient or desirable for its purposes. **Such disposals of real or personal property may be negotiated or made by public auction as permitted by subdivision six of section twenty-eight hundred ninety-seven of this chapter and may also be made by negotiation if:**

(a) the character or condition of the property, the nature of the interest to be conveyed, or other unique circumstances of the disposal make it impracticable to advertise publicly; an appraisal of the esti- --A mated fair market value of the property has been made by an independent appraiser and included in the record of the transaction; and the consideration received by the authority for the property, including the value of other property exchanged, will not be less than the property's appraised value; or

**(b) the disposal is made to a government or other public entity, and the terms and conditions of the transfer require that the ownership and use of the property will remain with the government or other public entity, or the disposal is part of a transaction that furthers and is within the authority's purpose or mission and the appraised value of the property and other satisfactory terms of disposal are obtained.**

6. The authority may, whenever it shall determine that it is in the interest of the authority, rent, lease, or grant, **modify or exchange** easements or other rights in, any land or property of the authority **and to the extent such a lease, grant, modification or exchange is deemed a disposal the provisions of subdivision five of this section shall apply.**

§ 6. Subdivision 1 of section 119-r of the general municipal law, as added by chapter 717 of the laws of 1967, is amended to read as follows:

1. To assure the provision of mass transportation services to the public at adequate levels and at reasonable cost, every city, town, village or county not wholly contained within a city, shall have power to adopt local laws to authorize:

a. The acquisition, construction, reconstruction, improvement, equipment, maintenance, **financing**, or operation of one or more mass transportation projects. Such municipal corporation shall have power to occupy or use any of the streets, roads, highways, avenues, parks or public places of such municipal corporation therefor and to agree upon and contract for the terms and conditions thereof.

b. The making of a contract or contracts for the acquisition by purchase of all or any part of the property, plant and equipment of an existing mass transportation facility actually used and useful for the convenience of the public.

c. The making of a contract or contracts with any person, firm or corporation, including a public authority, for the equipment, maintenance or operation of a mass transportation facility owned, acquired, constructed, reconstructed or improved by it.

d. The making of a contract or contracts for a fair and reasonable consideration for mass transportation services to be rendered to the public by a privately-owned or operated mass transportation facility. Such power shall include but not be limited to the power to appropriate funds for payment of such consideration, and to provide that all or part of such consideration shall be in the form of capital equipment to be furnished to and used and maintained by such privately-owned or operated mass transportation facility.

e. The making of unconditional grants of money or property to a public authority providing mass transportation services to all or part of such municipal corporation in order to assist such public authority in meeting its capital or operating expenses, provided such money does not consist of borrowed funds and such property has not been acquired by the use of borrowed funds. Such purpose is hereby declared to be county, city, town or village purposes, respectively. The provisions of this paragraph are intended as enabling legislation only and shall not be interpreted as implying that absent their enactment a municipal corporation would lack the power to authorize any such grant; but they shall not be interpreted as an authorization to public authorities generally to accept such grants. The acceptance of any such grant by a public --A authority shall not operate to make such authority an agency of the municipal corporation making the grant.

**f. The making of a contract with the metropolitan transportation authority, by itself or with one or more other municipal corporations, which shall constitute a joint arrangement as defined in subdivision nine-a of section twelve hundred sixty-one of the public authorities law, to assist the authority in meeting its capital or operating expenses in providing mass transportation services of benefit to all or part of such municipal corporation, including undertaking a mass transportation capital project in or near the municipal corporation. Under such a joint arrangement, a municipal corporation may, according to the terms of the contract with the authority, establish, levy and collect such fares, tolls, rentals, rates, taxes, assessments, charges and other fees and may conditionally or unconditionally grant or pledge a portion of its revenues allocated according to subdivision e of this section.**

**g. The designation of a mass transportation capital project district that a municipal corporation defines as benefitting from any mass transportation capital project. Upon designating such a district, the municipal corporation may allocate a portion of its revenues from the district according to terms it designs or has agreed to by contract. Notwithstanding any other law, the municipal corporation may, in allocating and collecting revenues from the district, make use of one or more methods to capture the value created by a mass transportation capital project, including, but not limited to:**

**(i) tax increment financing, meaning the allocation of an increment of property tax revenues in excess of the amount levied at the time prior to planning of a mass transportation capital project;**

**(ii) a special transportation assessment, meaning a charge imposed upon benefited real property in proportion to the benefit received by such property from a mass transportation capital project, which shall not constitute a tax;**

**(iii) a transportation utility fee, meaning a charge imposed in proportion to the benefit received from or the demand imposed on a mass transportation capital project, which shall not constitute a tax;**

**(iv) land value taxation, meaning the allocation of an increment of tax revenues gained from levying taxes on the assessed value of taxable land at a higher rate than the improvements, as defined in subdivision twelve of section one hundred two of the real property tax law;**

**(v) some combination of the above or other methods of gaining revenues that the municipal corporation is empowered to use, provided that the total amount of all taxes, assessments, fees, charges, or rates levied on each parcel or lot under this section shall be limited to a proportionate amount as near as possible to the actual benefit which each lot or parcel will derive from the mass transportation capital project;**

**(vi) Within any mass transportation capital project district that a municipal corporation shall designate, any limit or cap to the levy or property taxes or assessment of taxable value shall not apply.**

§ 7. Paragraph (g) of subdivision 2 of section 3-c of the general municipal law is amended by adding a new subparagraph (v) to read as follows:

**(v) a tax levy within a mass transportation capital project district, designated pursuant to article five-I of the general municipal law.**

§ 8. This act shall take effect immediately; provided that the amendment made to section 3-c of the general municipal law by section seven of this act shall not affect the repeal of said section and shall be deemed repealed therewith. --A

PART D Section 1. Section 399-l of the vehicle and traffic law, as added by chapter 751 of the laws of 2005, is amended to read as follows:

§ 399-l. Application. Applicants for participation in the pilot program established pursuant to this article shall be among those accident prevention course sponsoring agencies that have a course approved by the commissioner pursuant to article twelve-B of this title prior to the effective date of this article and which deliver such course to the public. Provided, however, the commissioner may, in his or her discretion, approve applications after such date. In order to be approved for participation in such pilot program, the course must comply with the provisions of law, rules and regulations applicable thereto. The commissioner may, in his or her discretion, impose a fee for the submission of each application to participate in the pilot program established pursuant to this article. Such fee shall not exceed seven thousand five hundred dollars. The proceeds from such fee shall be deposited in the accident prevention course internet technology pilot program fund as established by section eighty-nine-g of the

state finance law **by the comptroller into the special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section.**

§ 2. Subdivision 2 of section 89-g of the state finance law is REPEALED and subdivisions 3 and 4 are renumbered subdivisions 2 and 3.

§ 3. Section 5 of chapter 751 of the laws of 2005, amending the insurance law and the vehicle and traffic law relating to establishing the accident prevention course internet technology pilot program, as amended by section 1 of part E of chapter 57 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

§ 5. This act shall take effect on the one hundred eightieth day after it shall have become a law and shall expire and be deemed repealed ~~May 31, 2019~~ **April 1, 2020**; provided that any rules and regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this act on its effective date are authorized and directed to be completed on or before such date.

§ 4. Paragraph a of subdivision 5 of section 410 of the vehicle and traffic law, as amended by section 16 of part G of chapter 59 of the laws of 2009, is amended to read as follows:

a. The annual fee for registration or reregistration of a motorcycle shall be eleven dollars and fifty cents. Beginning April first, nineteen hundred ninety-eight the annual fee for registration or reregistration of a motorcycle shall be seventeen dollars and fifty cents, of which two dollars and fifty cents shall be deposited **by the comptroller** into the ~~motorcycle safety fund established pursuant to section ninety-two-g of the state finance law~~ **special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section.**

§ 5. Paragraph (c-1) of subdivision 2 of section 503 of the vehicle and traffic law, as added by chapter 435 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(c-1) In addition to the fees established in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this subdivision, a fee of fifty cents for each six months or portion thereof of the period of validity shall be paid upon the issuance of any permit, license or renewal of a license which is valid for the operation of a motorcycle, except a limited use motorcycle. Fees collected pursuant to this paragraph shall be deposited **by the comptroller** into the ~~motorcycle safety fund established pursuant to section ninety-two-g of the state finance law~~ **special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section.**

§ 6. Subdivision 2 of section 92-g of the state finance law is REPEALED and subdivisions 3 and 4 are renumbered subdivisions 2 and 3.

§ 7. Section 92-g of the state finance law is REPEALED.

§ 8. Section 317 of the vehicle and traffic law is amended by adding a new subdivision 5 to read as follows:

**5. All assessments charged and collected by the commissioner pursuant to this section shall be deposited by the comptroller into the special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law.**



§ 9. Paragraph (b) of subdivision 1-a of section 318 of the vehicle and traffic law, as amended by section 1-b of part A of chapter 63 of the laws of 2005, is amended to read as follows:

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (a) of this subdivision, an order of suspension issued pursuant to paragraph (a) or (e) of this subdivision may be terminated if the registrant pays to the commissioner a civil penalty in the amount of eight dollars for each day up to thirty days for which financial security was not in effect, plus ten dollars for each day from the thirty-first to the sixtieth day for which financial security was not in effect, plus twelve dollars for each day from the sixty-first to the ninetieth day for which financial security was not in effect. Of each eight dollar penalty, six dollars will be deposited in the general fund and two dollars in the ~~miscellaneous special revenue fund – compulsory insurance account~~ **special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section**. Of each ten dollar penalty collected, six dollars will be deposited in the general fund, two dollars will be deposited in the ~~miscellaneous special revenue fund – compulsory insurance account~~ **special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section**, and two dollars shall be deposited in the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law and the dedicated mass transportation fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-c of the state finance law and distributed according to the provisions of subdivision (d) of section three hundred one-j of the tax law. Of each twelve dollar penalty collected, six dollars will be deposited into the general fund, two dollars will be deposited into the ~~miscellaneous special revenue fund – compulsory insurance account~~ **special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law for the purposes established in this section**, and four dollars shall be deposited in the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eighty-nine-b of the state finance law and the dedicated mass transportation fund established pursuant to section eightynine-c of the state finance law and distributed according to the provisions of subdivision (d) of section three hundred one-j of the tax law. The foregoing provision shall apply only once during any thirty-six --A month period and only if the registrant surrendered the certificate of registration and number plates to the commissioner not more than ninety days from the date of termination of financial security or submits to the commissioner new proof of financial security which took effect not more than ninety days from the termination of financial security.

§ 10. Section 423-a of the vehicle and traffic law is amended by adding a new subdivision 6 to read as follows:

**6. All funds collected from the department's share of the sale of assets pursuant to this section shall be deposited by the comptroller into the special obligation reserve and payment account of the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund established pursuant to section eightynine-b of the state finance law.**

§ 11. Paragraph (a) of subdivision 3 of section 89-b of the state finance law, as amended by section 8 of part C of chapter 57 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

(a) The special obligation reserve and payment account shall consist (i) of all moneys required to be deposited in the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund pursuant to the provisions of sections two hundred five, two hundred eighty-nine-e, three hundred one-j, five hundred fifteen and eleven hundred sixty-seven of the tax law, section four hundred one of the vehicle and traffic law, and section thirty-one of chapter fifty-six of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-three, (ii) all fees, fines or penalties collected by the commissioner of transportation **and the commissioner of motor vehicles** pursuant to section fifty-two, section three hundred twenty-six, section eighty-eight of the highway law, subdivision fifteen of section three hundred eighty-five, **section four hundred twenty-three-a, section four hundred ten, section three hundred seventeen, section three hundred eighteen, article twelve-C, and paragraph (c-1) of subdivision two of section five hundred three** of the vehicle and traffic law, section two of the chapter of the laws of two thousand three that amended this paragraph, subdivision (d) of section three hundred four-a, paragraph one of subdivision (a) and subdivision (d) of section three hundred five, subdivision six-a of section four hundred fifteen and subdivision (g) of section twenty-one hundred twenty-five of the vehicle and traffic law, section fifteen

of this chapter, excepting moneys deposited with the state on account of betterments performed pursuant to subdivision twenty-seven or subdivision thirty-five of section ten of the highway law, and sections ninety-four, one hundred thirty-five, ~~one hundred forty-four~~ and one hundred forty-five of the transportation law, (iii) any moneys collected by the department of transportation for services provided pursuant to agreements entered into in accordance with section ninety-nine-r of the general municipal law, **(iv) any moneys collected by the department of motor vehicles**, and ~~(iv)~~ **(v)** any other moneys collected therefor or credited or transferred thereto from any other fund, account or source.

§ 12. Paragraph (a) of subdivision 3 of section 89-b of the state finance law, as amended by section 9 of part C of chapter 57 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

(a) The special obligation reserve and payment account shall consist (i) of all moneys required to be deposited in the dedicated highway and bridge trust fund pursuant to the provisions of sections two hundred eighty-nine-e, three hundred one-j, five hundred fifteen and eleven hundred sixty-seven of the tax law, section four hundred one of the vehicle and traffic law, and section thirty-one of chapter fifty-six of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-three, (ii) all fees, fines or penalties collected by the commissioner of transportation ~~and the~~ **--A commissioner of motor vehicles** pursuant to section fifty-two, section three hundred twenty-six, section eighty-eight of the highway law, subdivision fifteen of section three hundred eighty-five, **section four hundred twenty-three-a, section four hundred ten, section three hundred seventeen, section three hundred eighteen, article twelve-C, and paragraph (c-1) of subdivision two of section five hundred three** of the vehicle and traffic law, section fifteen of this chapter, excepting moneys deposited with the state on account of betterments performed pursuant to subdivision twenty-seven or subdivision thirty-five of section ten of the highway law, and sections ninety-four, one hundred thirty-five, ~~one hundred forty-four~~ and one hundred forty-five of the transportation law, (iii) any moneys collected by the department of transportation for services provided pursuant to agreements entered into in accordance with section ninety-nine-r of the general municipal law, **(iv) any moneys collected by the department of motor vehicles**, and ~~(iv)~~ **(v)** any other moneys collected therefor or credited or transferred thereto from any other fund, account or source.

§ 13. This act shall take effect immediately; provided, however, that section seven of this act shall take effect April 1, 2020; provided further, however, that the amendments to section 399-1 of the vehicle and traffic law made by section one of this act shall not affect the repeal of such section and shall be deemed repealed therewith; and provided further, however, that the amendments to paragraph (a) of subdivision 3 of section 89-b of the state finance law made by section eleven of this act shall be subject to the expiration and reversion of such paragraph pursuant to section 13 of part U1 of chapter 62 of the laws of 2003, as amended, when upon such date the provisions of section twelve of this act shall take effect.

PART E Section 1. Subparagraph (vi) of paragraph (b) of subdivision 2 of section 501 of the vehicle and traffic law, as added by chapter 173 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(vi) Farm endorsement. Shall be required to operate a farm vehicle or a combination of farm vehicles which may not be operated with a class C, D or E license **and which is used to transport hazardous materials as defined in section one hundred three of the hazardous materials transportation act, public law 93-633 title I, when the vehicle transporting such materials is required to be placarded under the hazardous materials regulation, 49 CFR part 172, subpart F or is transporting any quantity of material listed as a select agent or toxin in 42 CFR part 73.** The identification and scope of any such endorsement or endorsements shall be as prescribed by regulation of the commissioner. Such identification and scope shall, at a minimum, include a distinction between the operation of a farm vehicle having a GVWR of more than twenty-six thousand pounds within one hundred fifty miles of the person's farm and the operation of a combination of farm vehicles having a GVWR of more than twenty-six thousand pounds within one hundred fifty miles of the person's farm.

§ 2. Subparagraph (i) of paragraph (b) of subdivision 4 of section 501-a of the vehicle and traffic law, as amended by chapter 36 of the laws of 2009, is amended to read as follows:

(i) a personal use vehicle, **a covered farm vehicle** or a farm vehicle or a combination of such vehicles; --A

§ 3. Subdivision 7 of section 501-a of the vehicle and traffic law, as added by chapter 173 of the laws of 1990, is amended and a new subdivision 9 is added to read as follows:

7. Farm vehicle. A vehicle having a GVWR of not more than twenty-six thousand pounds which is controlled and operated by a farmer, is used to transport agricultural products, farm machinery, farm supplies or all of the aforementioned to or from the farm and is not used in the operations of a common or contract motor carrier and, such a vehicle having a GVWR of more than twenty-six thousand pounds while being used within one hundred fifty miles of the person's farm, **and such vehicle is used to transport hazardous materials as defined in section one hundred three of the hazardous materials transportation act, public law 93-633, title I, when the vehicle transporting such materials is required to be placarded under the hazardous materials regulation, 49 CFR part 172, subpart F or is transporting any quantity of material listed as a select agent or toxin in 42 CFR part 73; provided, however, a farm vehicle may only be operated in another state if such state permits the operation of a farm vehicle in such state.**

**9. Covered farm vehicle. (a) A vehicle or combination of vehicles registered in this state, which (i) displays a covered farm vehicle designation issued by the commissioner, (ii) operated by the owner or operator of a farm or ranch, or an employee or family member of an owner or operator of a farm or ranch, (iii) used to transport agricultural commodities, livestock, machinery or supplies to or from a farm or ranch, (iv) not used in for-hire motor carrier operations; however, for-hire motor carrier operations do not include operation by a tenant pursuant to a crop share farm lease agreement to transport the landlord's portion of the crops under that agreement; and (v) not used for the transportation of hazardous materials.**

**(b) A covered farm vehicle with a gross vehicle weight or gross vehicle weight rating, whichever is greater, of twenty-six thousand pounds or less, may operate anywhere in the United States.**

**(c) A covered farm vehicle with a gross vehicle weight or gross vehicle weight rating, whichever is greater, of more than twenty-six thousand pounds, may operate anywhere in this state or across state lines within one hundred fifty air miles of the farm or ranch. The operator of such a covered farm vehicle shall obtain an endorsement as provided for in paragraph (d) of this subdivision.**

**(d) The commissioner shall, by regulation, designate an endorsement or endorsements for the operation of covered farm vehicles weighing more than twenty-six thousand pounds. The identification and scope of such endorsement or endorsements shall, at a minimum, include a distinction between the operation of a covered farm vehicle having a gross vehicle weight or gross vehicle weight rating of more than twenty-six thousand pounds and the operation of a combination of covered farm vehicles having a gross vehicle weight or gross vehicle weight rating of more than twenty-six thousand pounds.**

**(e) For the purposes of this subdivision, the gross vehicle weight of a vehicle shall mean the actual weight of the vehicle and the load.**

§ 4. Subparagraph (iv) of paragraph (b) of subdivision 2 of section 501 of the vehicle and traffic law, as added by chapter 173 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(iv) P endorsement. Shall be required to operate a bus as defined in sections one hundred four and five hundred nine-a of this chapter **or any motor vehicle with a gross vehicle weight or gross vehicle weight rating of more than twenty-six thousand pounds which is designed to transport --A passengers in commerce. For the purposes of this subparagraph the gross vehicle weight of a vehicle shall mean the actual weight of the vehicle and the load.**

§ 5. This act shall take effect on the ninetieth day after it shall have become a law.

#### PART F

Section 1. Subdivision 3 of section 16-m of section 1 of chapter 174 of the laws of 1968 constituting the New York state urban development corporation act, as amended by section 1 of part M of chapter 58 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

3. The provisions of this section shall expire, notwithstanding any inconsistent provision of subdivision 4 of section 469 of chapter 309 of the laws of 1996 or of any other law, on July 1, ~~2016~~ **2017**.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after July 1, 2016.

PART G Section 1. Section 2 of chapter 393 of the laws of 1994, amending the New York state urban development corporation act, relating to the powers of New York state urban development corporation to make loans, as amended by section 1 of part N of chapter 58 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately provided, however, that section one of this act shall expire on July 1, ~~2016~~ **2017**, at which time the provisions of subdivision 26 of section 5 of the New York state urban development corporation act shall be deemed repealed; provided, however, that neither the expiration nor the repeal of such subdivision as provided for herein shall be deemed to affect or impair in any manner any loan made pursuant to the authority of such subdivision prior to such expiration and repeal.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

#### PART H

Section 1. This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Transformational Economic Development Infrastructure and Revitalization Projects act".

§ 2. Definitions. For the purposes of this act, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

1. "Transformational Economic Development Infrastructure and Revitalization Projects act" or "projects" shall include construction projects in the county of New York related to the Jacob V. Javits Convention Center, the Empire State Station Complex, the James A. Farley Building Replacement, and the Pennsylvania Station New York Redevelopment. The term "project" shall refer to any of these construction projects.

2. "Authorized entity" shall mean the New York State Urban Development Corporation, the New York Convention Center Development Corporation, and their subsidiaries.

3. "Best value" shall mean the basis for awarding contracts for services to the bidder that optimize quality, cost and efficiency, price and performance criteria, which may include, but is not limited to:

(a) The quality of the contractor's performance on previous projects; --A

(b) The timeliness of the contractor's performance on previous projects;

(c) The level of customer satisfaction with the contractor's performance on previous projects;

- (d) The contractor's record of performing previous projects on budget and ability to minimize cost overruns;
- (e) The contractor's ability to limit change orders;
- (f) The contractor's ability to prepare appropriate project plans;
- (g) The contractor's technical capacities;
- (h) The individual qualifications of the contractor's key personnel;
- (i) The contractor's ability to assess and manage risk and minimize risk impact; and
- (j) The contractor's past record of encouraging women and minorityowned business enterprise participation and compliance with article 15-A of the executive law.

Such basis shall reflect, wherever possible, objective and quantifiable analysis.

4. "Design-build contract" shall mean, in conformity with the requirements of this act, a contract for the design and construction of the projects with a single entity, which may be a team comprised of separate entities.

5. "Procurement record" shall mean documentation of the decisions made and the approach taken in the procurement process.

6. "Project labor agreement" shall mean a pre-hire collective bargaining agreement between a contractor and a bona fide building and construction trade labor organization establishing the labor organization as the collective bargaining representative for all persons who will perform work on the project, and which provides that only contractors and subcontractors who sign a pre-negotiated agreement with the labor organization can perform project work.

§ 3. Notwithstanding section 103 of the general municipal law or the provisions of any other law to the contrary, in conformity with the requirements of this act, and only when a project labor agreement is performed, the authorized entity may utilize the alternative delivery method referred to as a design-build contract for the project. The authorized entity shall ensure that its procurement record reflects the design-build contract process authorized by this act.

§ 4. An entity selected by the authorized entity to enter into a design-build contract for the project shall be selected through a twostep method, as follows:

1. Step one. Generation of a list of entities that have demonstrated the general capability to perform a design-build contract for the project. Such list shall consist of a specified number of entities, as determined by the authorized entity, and shall be generated based upon the authorized entity's review of responses to a publicly advertised request for qualifications for the project. The authorized entity's request for qualifications for the project shall include a general description of the project, the maximum number of entities to be included on the list, and the selection criteria to be used in generating the list. Such selection criteria shall include the qualifications and experience of the design and construction team, organization, demonstrated responsibility, ability of the team or of a member or members of the team to comply with applicable requirements, including the provisions of articles 145, 147 and 148 of the education law, past record of compliance with the labor law including prevailing wage requirements under state and federal law; the past record of compliance --A with existing labor standards and maintaining harmonious labor relations; the record of protecting the health and safety of workers on public works projects and job sites as demonstrated by the experience modification rate for each of the last three years; the prospective bidder's ability to undertake the particular type and complexity of work; the financial capability, responsibility and reliability of the prospective bidder for such type and complexity of work; the prospective bidder's compliance with equal employment opportunity requirements and



anti-discrimination laws, and demonstrated commitment to working with minority and women-owned businesses through joint ventures or subcontractor relationships; whether or not the prospective bidder or a person or entity with an interest of at least ten per centum in the prospective bidder, is debarred for having disregarded obligations to employees under the Davis-Bacon Act pursuant to 40 U.S.C. 3144 and 29 C.F.R. 5.12 and such other qualifications the authorized entity deems appropriate which may include but are not limited to project understanding, financial capability and record of past performance. The authorized entity shall evaluate and rate all entities responding to the request for qualifications. Based upon such ratings, the authorized entity shall list the entities that shall receive a request for proposals in accordance with subdivision two of this section. To the extent consistent with applicable federal law, the authorized entity shall consider, when awarding any contract pursuant to this section, the participation of: (a) firms certified pursuant to article 15-A of the executive law as minority or women-owned businesses and the ability of other businesses under consideration to work with minority and women-owned businesses so as to promote and assist participation by such businesses; and (b) small business concerns identified pursuant to subdivision (b) of section 139-g of the state finance law.

2. Step two. Selection of the proposal which is the best value to the authorized entity. The authorized entity shall issue a request for proposals for the project to the entities listed pursuant to subdivision one of this section. If such an entity consists of a team of separate entities, the entities that comprise such a team must remain unchanged from the entity as listed pursuant to subdivision one of this section unless otherwise approved by the authorized entity. The request for proposals for the project shall set forth the project's scope of work, and other requirements, as determined by the authorized entity. The request for proposals shall specify the criteria to be used to evaluate the responses and the relative weight of each such criteria. Such criteria shall include the proposal's cost, the quality of the proposal's solution, the qualifications and experience of the design-build entity, and other factors deemed pertinent by the authorized entity, which may include, but shall not be limited to, the proposal's project implementation, ability to complete the work in a timely and satisfactory manner, maintenance costs of the completed project, maintenance of traffic approach, and community impact. Any contract awarded pursuant to this act shall be awarded to a responsive and responsible entity that submits the proposal, which, in consideration of these and other specified criteria deemed pertinent to the project, offers the best value to the authorized entity, as determined by the authorized entity. Nothing in this act shall be construed to prohibit the authorized entity from negotiating final contract terms and conditions including cost.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, when any person or entity is debarred for having disregarded obligations to employees under the Davis-Bacon Act pursuant to 40 U.S.C. 3144 and 29 --A C.F.R. 5.12, such person or entity, and any firm, corporation, partnership or association in which the person or entity owns or controls at least ten per centum, shall be ineligible to submit a bid on or be awarded any contract authorized by this act while the name of the person or entity is published in the list of debarred contractors pursuant to 40 U.S.C. 3144. The department of labor will notify the person or entity immediately of such ineligibility and such person or entity must be afforded the opportunity to appeal to the department of labor.

§ 5. Any contract entered into pursuant to this act shall include a clause requiring that any professional services regulated by articles 145, 147 and 148 of the education law shall be performed and stamped and sealed, where appropriate, by a professional licensed in accordance with such articles.

§ 6. The construction, demolition, reconstruction, excavation, rehabilitation, repair, renovation of the project undertaken by the authorized entity pursuant to this act shall be deemed a "public work" to be performed in accordance with the provisions of article 8 of the labor law, as well as subject to sections 200, 240, 241 and 242 of the labor law and enforcement of prevailing wage requirements by the New York state department of labor.

§ 7. A project labor agreement shall be included in the request for proposals for the project, provided that, based upon a study done by or for the authorized entity, the authorized entity determines that its interests are best met by requiring a project labor agreement. The authorized entity shall conduct such a study and the project labor agreement shall be performed consistent with the provisions of section 222 of the labor law. If a project labor agreement is not performed on the project; (1) the authorized entity shall not utilize a design-build contract for the project; and (2) sections 101 and 103 of the general municipal law shall apply to the project.

§ 8. Each contract entered into by the authorized entity pursuant to this act shall comply, whenever practical, with the objectives and goals of minority and women-owned business enterprises pursuant to article 15-A of the executive law or, if the project receives federal aid, shall comply with applicable federal requirements for disadvantaged business enterprises.

§ 9. The project undertaken by the authorized entity pursuant to this act shall be subject to the requirements of article 8 of the environmental conservation law, and, where applicable, the requirements of the national environmental policy act.

§ 10. The submission of a proposal or responses or the execution of a design-build contract pursuant to this act shall not be construed to be a violation of section 6512 of the education law.

§ 11. Nothing contained in this act shall limit the right or obligation of the authorized entity to comply with the provisions of any existing contract, including any existing contract with or for the benefit of the holders of the obligations of the authorized entity, or to award contracts as otherwise provided by law.

§ 12. This act shall take effect immediately.

## PART I

Section 1. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to receive for deposit to the credit of the general fund the amount of up to \$913,000 from the New York state energy research and development authority. --A

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

PART J Section 1. Expenditures of moneys by the New York state energy research and development authority for services and expenses of the energy research, development and demonstration program, including grants, the energy policy and planning program, and the Fuel NY program shall be subject to the provisions of this section. Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision 4-a of section 18-a of the public service law, all moneys committed or expended in an amount not to exceed \$19,700,000 shall be reimbursed by assessment against gas corporations, as defined in subdivision 11 of section 2 of the public service law and electric corporations as defined in subdivision 13 of section 2 of the public service law, where such gas corporations and electric corporations have gross revenues from intrastate utility operations in excess of \$500,000 in the preceding calendar year, and the total amount which may be charged to any gas corporation and any electric corporation shall not exceed one cent per one thousand cubic feet of gas sold and .010 cent per kilowatt-hour of electricity sold by such corporations in their intrastate utility operations in calendar year 2014. Such amounts shall be excluded from the general assessment provisions of subdivision 2 of section 18-a of the public service law. The chair of the public service commission shall bill such gas and/or electric corporations for such amounts on or before August 10, 2016 and such amounts shall be paid to the New York state energy research and development authority on or before September 10, 2016. Upon receipt, the New York state energy research and development authority shall deposit such funds in the energy research and development operating fund established pursuant to section 1859 of the public authorities law. The New York state energy research and development authority is authorized and directed to: (1) transfer \$1 million to the state general fund for services and expenses of the department of environmental conservation and to transfer \$750,000 to the University of Rochester laboratory for laser energetics from the funds received; and (2) commencing in 2016, provide to the chair of the public service commission and the director of the budget and the chairs and secretaries of the legislative fiscal committees, on or before August first of each year, an itemized record, certified by the president and chief executive officer of the authority, or his or her designee, detailing any and all expenditures and commitments ascribable to moneys received as a result of this assessment by the chair of the department of public service pursuant to section 18-a of the public service law. This itemized record shall include an itemized breakdown of the programs being funded by this section and the amount committed to each program. The authority shall not commit for any expenditure, any moneys derived from the assessment provided for in this section, until the chair of such authority shall have submitted, and the director of the budget shall have approved, a comprehensive financial plan encompassing all moneys available to and

all anticipated commitments and expenditures by such authority from any source for the operations of such authority. Copies of the approved comprehensive financial plan shall be immediately submitted by the chair to the chairs and secretaries of the legislative fiscal committees. Any such amount not committed by such authority to contracts or contracts to be awarded or otherwise expended by the authority during the fiscal year shall be --A refunded by such authority on a pro-rata basis to such gas and/or electric corporations, in a manner to be determined by the department of public service.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

#### PART K

Section 1. Notwithstanding any other law, rule or regulation to the contrary, expenses of the department of health public service education program incurred pursuant to appropriations from the cable television account of the state miscellaneous special revenue funds shall be deemed expenses of the department of public service.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

#### PART L

Section 1. Paragraph (c) of subdivision 12 of section 66 of the public service law, as amended by chapter 162 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

(c) For the purpose of this subdivision, "major changes" shall mean an increase in the rates and charges which would increase the aggregate revenues of the applicant more than the greater of three hundred thousand dollars or two and one-half percent, but shall not include changes in rates, charges or rentals **(i) allowed to go into effect by the commission or made by the utility pursuant to an order of the commission after hearings held upon notice to the public, or (ii) proposed by a municipality.**

§ 2. Paragraph (f) of subdivision 12 of section 66 of the public service law, as amended by chapter 154 of the laws of 1989, is amended to read as follows:

(f) Whenever there shall be filed with the commission by any utility any schedule stating a new rate or charge, or any change in any form of contract or agreement or any rule or regulation relating to any rate, charge or service, or in any general privilege or facility, the commission may, at any time within sixty days from the date when such schedule would or has become effective, either upon complaint or upon its own initiative, and, if it so orders, without answer or other formal pleading by the utility, but upon reasonable notice, hold a hearing concerning the propriety of a change proposed by the filing. If such change is a major change, the commission shall hold such a hearing. Pending such hearing and decision thereon, the commission, upon filing with such schedule and delivering to the utility, a statement in writing of its reasons therefor, may suspend the operation of such schedule, but not for a longer period than ~~one hundred and twenty days~~ **four months** beyond the time when it would otherwise go into effect. After full hearing, whether completed before or after the schedule goes into effect, the commission may make such order in reference thereto as would be proper in a proceeding begun after the rate, charge, form of contract or agreement, rule, regulation, service, general privilege or facility had become effective. If any such hearing cannot be concluded within the period of suspension as above stated, the commission may extend the suspension for a further period, not exceeding ~~six~~ **ten** months. **If at the end of such period, the filed petition has not been acted upon by the commission, the commission shall utilize the proposal filed by the --A staff of the department to establish temporary rates for the petitioner, subject to refund or reparation as provided in section one hundred thirteen of this chapter.**

§ 3. Paragraph (f) of subdivision 10 of section 80 of the public service law, as amended by chapter 154 of the laws of 1989, is amended to read as follows:

(f) Whenever there shall be filed with the commission by any utility any schedule stating a new rate or charge, or any change in any form of contract or agreement or any rule or regulation relating to any rate, charge or service, or in any general privilege or facility, the commission may, at any time within sixty days from the date when such schedule would or has become effective, either upon complaint or upon its own initiative, and, if it so orders, without answer or other formal pleading by the utility, but upon reasonable notice, hold a hearing concerning the propriety of a change proposed by the filing. If such change is a major change, the commission shall hold such a hearing. Pending such hearing and decision thereon the commission, upon filing with such schedule and delivering to the utility, a statement in writing of its reasons therefor, may suspend the operation of such schedule, but not for a longer period than ~~one hundred and twenty days~~ **four months** beyond the time when it would otherwise go into effect. After full hearing, whether completed before or after the schedule goes into effect, the commission may make such order in reference thereto as would be proper in a proceeding begun after the rate, charge, form of contract or agreement, rule, regulation, service, general privilege or facility had become effective. If such hearing cannot be concluded within the period of suspension as above stated, the commission may extend the suspension for a further period not exceeding ~~six~~ **ten** months. **If at the end of such period, the filed petition has not been acted upon by the commission, the commission shall utilize the proposal filed by the staff of the department to establish temporary rates for the petitioner, subject to refund or reparation as provided in section one hundred thirteen of this chapter.**

§ 4. Paragraph (f) of subdivision 10 of section 89-c of the public service law, as amended by chapter 154 of the laws of 1989, is amended to read as follows:

(f) Whenever there shall be filed with the commission by any waterworks corporation any schedule stating a new rate or charge, or any change in any form of contract or agreement or any rule or regulation relating to any rate, charge or service, or in any general privilege or facility, the commission may, at any time within sixty days from the date when such schedule would or has become effective, either upon complaint or upon its own initiative, and, if it so orders, without answer or other formal pleading by the interested corporation, but upon reasonable notice, hold a hearing concerning the propriety of a change proposed by the filing. If such change is a major change, the commission shall hold such a hearing. Pending such hearing and decision thereon, the commission, upon filing with such schedule and delivering to the corporation affected thereby a statement in writing of its reasons therefor, may suspend the operation of such schedule, but not for a longer period than ~~one hundred and twenty days~~ **four months** beyond the time when it would otherwise go into effect. After a full hearing, whether completed before or after the schedule goes into effect, the commission may make such order in reference thereto as would be proper in a proceeding begun after the rate, charge, form of contract or agreement, rule, regulation, service, general privilege or facility had --A become effective. If any such hearing cannot be concluded within the period of suspension as above stated, the commission may extend the suspension for a further period not exceeding ~~six~~ **ten** months. **If at the end of such period, the filed petition has not been acted upon by the commission, the commission shall utilize the proposal filed by the staff of the department to establish temporary rates for the petitioner, subject to refund or reparation as provided in section one hundred thirteen of this chapter.**

§ 5. This act shall take effect immediately.

PART M Section 1. Section 2 of chapter 21 of the laws of 2003, amending the executive law relating to permitting the secretary of state to provide special handling for all documents filed or issued by the division of corporations and to permit additional levels of such expedited service, as amended by section 1 of part T of chapter 58 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately, provided however, that section one of this act shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2003 and shall expire March 31, 2016 **2017**.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after March 31, 2016.

## PART N

Section 1. Paragraph (d) of section 304 of the business corporation law is amended to read as follows:

(d) **Any designated post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a domestic corporation or foreign corporation shall be deemed to be the post office address, within or without this state, to which a person shall mail the process served against the corporation as required by this article.** Any designated ~~post-office~~ **post office** address to which the secretary of state **or a person** shall mail a copy of **any** process served upon him **the secretary of state** as agent of a domestic corporation or a foreign corporation, shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different ~~post-office~~ **post office** address.

§ 2. Paragraph (a) of section 305 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 131 of the laws of 1985, is amended to read as follows:

(a) In addition to such designation of the secretary of state, every domestic corporation or authorized foreign corporation may designate a registered agent in this state upon whom process against such corporation may be served. The agent shall be a natural person who is a resident of or has a business address in this state ~~or~~ **;** a domestic corporation or foreign corporation of any type or kind formed; ~~or~~ authorized to do business in this state, under this chapter or under any other statute of this state, **or domestic limited liability company or foreign limited liability company formed or authorized to do business in this state.**

§ 3. Subparagraph 1 of paragraph (b) of section 306 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 419 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows: -A

(1) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a domestic or authorized foreign corporation, **or other business entity that has designated the secretary of state as agent for service of process pursuant to article nine of this chapter,** shall be made by personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state or a deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, duplicate copies of such process together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement **mailing the process and notice of service thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such corporation or other business entity, at the post office address on file in the department of state, specified for this purpose. If a domestic or authorized foreign corporation has no such address on file in the department of state, the process and notice of service thereof shall be mailed, in the case of a domestic corporation, in care of any director named in its certificate of incorporation at the director's address stated therein or, in the case of an authorized foreign corporation, to such corporation at the address of its office within this state on file in the department. On the same day that such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement shall be personally delivered to and left with the secretary of state or a deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany. Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section.** Service of process on such corporation **or other business entity** shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served. The secretary of state shall promptly send one of such copies by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such corporation, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for the purpose. If a domestic or authorized foreign corporation has no such address on file in the department of state, the secretary of state shall so mail such copy, in the case of a domestic corporation, in care of any director named in its certificate of incorporation at the director's address stated therein or, in the case of an authorized foreign corporation, to such corporation at the address of its office within this state on file in the department.



§ 4. Subparagraphs 2 and 3 of paragraph (a) of section 306-A of the business corporation law, as added by chapter 469 of the laws of 1997, are amended to read as follows:

(2) That the address of the party has been designated by the corporation as the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served on the secretary of state as agent for such corporation, **specifying such address**, and that such party wishes to resign.

(3) That sixty days prior to the filing of the certificate of resignation **or receipt of process** with the department of state the party has sent a copy of the certificate of resignation for receipt of process by registered or certified mail to the address of the registered agent of the designating corporation, if other than the party filing the certificate of resignation; for receipt of process, or if the ~~resigning~~ **designating** corporation has no registered agent, then to the last address of the designating corporation known to the party, specifying the address to which the copy was sent. If there is no registered agent and no known address of the designating corporation, the party shall attach an affidavit to the certificate stating that a diligent but --A unsuccessful search was made by the party to locate the corporation, specifying what efforts were made.

§ 5. Subparagraph 7 of paragraph (a) of section 402 of the business corporation law is amended to read as follows:

(7) A designation of the secretary of state as agent of the corporation upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 6. Subparagraph (c) of paragraph 1 of section 408 of the business corporation law, as amended by section 3 of part S of chapter 59 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

(c) The post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**. Such address shall supersede any previous address on file with the department of state for this purpose.

§ 7. Subparagraph 4 of paragraph (b) of section 801 of the business corporation law is amended to read as follows:

(4) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the corporation served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 8. Subparagraph 2 of paragraph (b) of section 803 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 803 of the laws of 1965, is amended to read as follows:

(2) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the corporation served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 9. Paragraph (b) of section 805-A of the business corporation law, as added by chapter 725 of the laws of 1964, is amended to read as follows:

(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a corporation served upon ~~him or~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or other corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such corporation, may be signed, ~~verified~~ and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth the

statements required under subparagraphs (a) (1), (2) and (3) **of paragraph (a)** of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the corporation by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department and that such corporation has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such corporation to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed, ~~verified~~ and delivered under this paragraph shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the corporation in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 10. Subparagraph 8 of paragraph (a) of section 904-a of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 177 of the laws of 2008, is amended to read as follows:

(8) If the surviving or resulting entity is a foreign corporation or other business entity, a designation of the secretary of state as its --A agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section three hundred six of this chapter, in any action or special proceeding, and a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**. Such post office address shall supersede any prior address designated as the address to which process shall be mailed;

§ 11. Clause (G) of subparagraph 2 of paragraph (e) of section 907 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 494 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(G) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (Service of process), in any action or special proceeding, and a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**. Such post office address shall supersede any prior address designated as the address to which process shall be mailed.

§ 12. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) of section 1304 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 684 of the laws of 1963 and as renumbered by chapter 590 of the laws of 1982, is amended to read as follows:

(6) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

§ 13. Subparagraph 7 of paragraph (a) of section 1308 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 725 of the laws of 1964 and as renumbered by chapter 186 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

(7) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

§ 14. Subparagraph 2 of paragraph (a) and paragraph (c) of section 1309-A of the business corporation law, subparagraph 2 of paragraph (a) as added by chapter 725 of the laws of 1964 and paragraph (c) as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999, are amended to read as follows:

(2) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

(c) A certificate of change of application for authority which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against an authorized foreign corporation served upon him or which **the secretary of state and/or** changes the address of its registered agent, provided such address is the address of a person, partnership, **limited**

**liability company** or other corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such authorized foreign corporation, may be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change of application for authority shall set forth the statements required under subparagraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) of paragraph (b) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed by the party signing the certificate to the authorized foreign corporation not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department and that such corporation has not objected --A thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such foreign corporation to whose address the secretary of state **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this paragraph shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the corporation in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 15. Subparagraphs 1 and 6 of paragraph (a) of section 1310 of the business corporation law, subparagraph 1 as amended by chapter 590 of the laws of 1982, are amended to read as follows:

(1) The name of the foreign corporation as it appears on the index of names of existing domestic and authorized foreign corporations of any type or kind in the department of state, division of corporations or, **and the fictitious name, if any,** the corporation has agreed to use in this state pursuant to paragraph (d) of section 1301 of this chapter **article**.

(6) A post office address, within or without this state, to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

§ 16. Subparagraph 4 of paragraph (d) of section 1310 of the business corporation law is amended to read as follows:

(4) The changed post office address, within or without this state, to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

§ 17. Section 1311 of the business corporation law, as amended by chapter 375 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

§ 1311. Termination of existence.

When an authorized foreign corporation is dissolved or its authority or existence is otherwise terminated or cancelled in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or when such foreign corporation is merged into or consolidated with another foreign corporation, a certificate of the secretary of state, or official performing the equivalent function as to corporate records, of the jurisdiction of incorporation of such foreign corporation attesting to the occurrence of any such event or a certified copy of an order or decree of a court of such jurisdiction directing the dissolution of such foreign corporation, the termination of its existence or the cancellation of its authority shall be delivered to the department of state. The filing of the certificate, order or decree shall have the same effect as the filing of a certificate of surrender of authority under section 1310 (Surrender of authority). The secretary of state shall continue as agent of the foreign corporation upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (Service of process), in any action or special proceeding based upon any liability or obligation incurred by the foreign corporation within this state prior to the filing of such certificate, order or decree and he **the person serving such process** shall promptly cause a copy of any such **send the** process to be mailed by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, to such foreign corporation at the post office address on file in his office specified for such purpose **and shall provide the secretary of state with proof of such mailing in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (service of process)**. The post office address may be changed by signing and delivering to the department of state a certificate of change setting forth the statements required under section 1309-A (Certificate of change; contents) to effect a change in the post --A office address under subparagraph **seven of paragraph** (a) (4) of section 1308 (Amendments or changes).

§ 18. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) of section 1530 of the business corporation law, as added by chapter 505 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

(6) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 19. Subdivision 10 of section 11 of the cooperative corporations law, as added by chapter 97 of the laws of 1969, is amended to read as follows:

10. A designation of the secretary of state as agent of the corporation upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 20. Subdivision 10 of section 96 of the executive law, as amended by chapter 39 of the laws of 1987, is amended to read as follows:

10. For service of process on the secretary of state, acting as agent for a third party pursuant to law, except as otherwise specifically provided by law, forty dollars. No fee shall be collected for process served on behalf of a **any state official, department, board, agency, authority**, county, city, town or village or other political subdivision of the state. The fees paid the secretary of state shall be a taxable disbursement.

§ 21. The opening paragraph of subdivision 2 and subdivision 3 of section 18 of the general associations law, as amended by chapter 13 of the laws of 1938, are amended and two new subdivisions 5 and 6 are added to read as follows:

Every association doing business within this state shall file in the department of state a certificate in its associate name, signed ~~and acknowledged~~ by its president, or a vice-president, or secretary, or treasurer, or managing director, or trustee, designating the secretary of state as an agent upon whom process in any action or proceeding against the association may be served within this state, and setting forth an address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the association which may be served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state** pursuant to law. Annexed to the certificate of designation shall be a statement, executed in the same manner as the certificate is required to be executed under this section, which shall set forth:

3. Any association, from time to time, may change the address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is directed to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state**, by filing a statement to that effect, executed; ~~and signed and acknowledged~~ in like manner as a certificate of designation as herein provided.

**5. Any designated post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent in any action or proceeding against the association shall be deemed to be the post office address, within or without this state, to which a person shall mail process served against the association as required by this article. Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state or a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent in any action or proceeding against the --A association shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different post office address.**

**6. "Process" means judicial process and all orders, demands, notices or other papers required or permitted by law to be personally served on an association, for the purpose of acquiring jurisdiction of such association in any action or**

**proceeding, civil or criminal, whether judicial, administrative, arbitative or otherwise, in this state or in the federal courts sitting in or for this state.**

§ 22. Section 19 of the general associations law, as amended by chapter 166 of the laws of 1991, is amended to read as follows:

§ 19. (a) Service of process. Service of process against an association upon the secretary of state shall be made by **mailing the process and notice of service thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such corporation or other business entity, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for this purpose. On the same day that such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing shall be** personally delivering **delivered** to and leaving **left** with him **the secretary of state** or a deputy secretary of state or an associate attorney, senior attorney or attorney in the corporation division of the department of state, **so designated** duplicate copies of such process at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany. At the time of such service the plaintiff shall pay a fee of forty dollars to the secretary of state which shall be a taxable disbursement. If the cost of registered mail for transmitting a copy of the process shall exceed two dollars, an additional fee equal to such excess shall be paid at the time of the service of such process. The secretary of state shall forthwith send by registered mail one of such copies to the association at the address fixed for that purpose, as herein provided:

**(b) Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section. Service of process on such association shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served.** If the action or proceeding is instituted in a court of limited jurisdiction, service of process may be made in the manner provided in this section if the cause of action arose within the territorial jurisdiction of the court and the office of the defendant, as set forth in its statement filed pursuant to section eighteen of this chapter **article**, is within such territorial jurisdiction.

§ 23. Subdivision 2 of section 352-b of the general business law, as amended by chapter 252 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

2. Service of such process upon the secretary of state shall be made by personally delivering to and leaving with him or **;** a deputy secretary of state, **or with a person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service** a copy thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, and such service shall be sufficient service provided that notice of such service and a copy of such process are forthwith sent by the attorney general to such person, partnership, corporation, company, trust or association, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, at his or its office as set forth in the "broker-dealer's statement", "salesman's statement" or "investment advisor's statement" filed in the department of law pursuant to section three hundred fifty-nine-e or section three hundred fifty-nine-eee of this article, or in default of the filing of such statement, at the last address known to the attorney general. Service of such process shall be complete on receipt by the attorney general of a return receipt purporting to be signed by the addressee or a person qualified to receive his --A or its registered or certified mail, in accordance with the rules and customs of the post office department, or, if acceptance was refused by the addressee or his or its agent, on return to the attorney general of the original envelope bearing a notation by the postal authorities that receipt thereof was refused.

§ 24. Section 686 of the general business law, as added by chapter 730 of the laws of 1980, is amended to read as follows:

§ 686. Designation of secretary of state as agent for service of process; service of process. Any person who shall offer to sell or sell a franchise in this state as a franchisor, subfranchisor or franchise sales agent shall be deemed to have irrevocably appointed the secretary of state as his or its agent upon whom may be served any summons, complaint, subpoena, subpoena duces tecum, notice, order or other process directed to such person, or any partner, principal, officer, salesman or director thereof, or his or its successor, administrator or executor, in any action, investigation, or proceeding which arises under this article or a rule hereunder, with the same force and validity as if served personally on such person. Service of such process upon the secretary of state shall be made by personally delivering to and leaving with him **the secretary of state** or a deputy secretary of state **, or**

**with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service**, a copy thereof at the office of the department of state, and such service shall be sufficient provided that notice of such service and a copy of such process are sent forthwith by the department to such person, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, at his address as set forth in the application for registration of his offering prospectus or in the registered offering prospectus itself filed with the department of law pursuant to this article, or in default of the filing of such application or prospectus, at the last address known to the department. Service of such process shall be complete upon receipt by the department of a return receipt purporting to be signed by the addressee or a person qualified to receive his or its registered or certified mail, in accordance with the rules and customs of the post office department, or, if acceptance was refused or unclaimed by the addressee or his or its agent, or if the addressee moved without leaving a forwarding address, upon return to the department of the original envelope bearing a notation by the postal authorities that receipt thereof was refused or that such mail was otherwise undeliverable.

§ 25. Paragraph 4 of subdivision (e) of section 203 of the limited liability company law, as added by chapter 470 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(4) a designation of the secretary of state as agent of the limited liability company upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 26. Paragraph 4 of subdivision (a) of section 206 of the limited liability company law, as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, is amended to read as follows:

(4) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the limited liability company upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**; --A

§ 27. Paragraph 6 of subdivision (d) of section 211 of the limited liability company law is amended to read as follows:

(6) a change in the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state** if such change is made other than pursuant to section three hundred one of this chapter;

§ 28. Section 211-A of the limited liability company law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

§ 211-A. Certificate of change. (a) A limited liability company may amend its articles of organization from time to time to (i) specify or change the location of the limited liability company's office; (ii) specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**; and (iii) make, revoke or change the designation of a registered agent, or specify or change the address of the registered agent. Any one or more such changes may be accomplished by filing a certificate of change which shall be entitled "Certificate of Change of ..... (name of limited liability company) under section 211-A of the Limited Liability Company Law" and shall be signed and delivered to the department of state. It shall set forth:

- (1) the name of the limited liability company, and if it has been changed, the name under which it was formed;
- (2) the date the articles of organization were filed by the department of state; and
- (3) each change effected thereby.



(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a limited liability company served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such limited liability company may be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth the statements required under subdivision (a) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the domestic limited liability company by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such domestic limited liability company has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such limited liability company to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the limited liability company in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 29. Paragraph 2 of subdivision (b) of section 213 of the limited liability company law is amended to read as follows:

(2) to change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**; and

§ 30. Subdivisions (c) and (e) of section 301 of the limited liability company law, subdivision (e) as amended by section 5 of part S of chapter 59 of the laws of 2015, are amended to read as follows: -A

(c) **Any designated post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a domestic limited liability company or foreign limited liability company shall be deemed to be the post office address, within or without this state, to which a person shall mail the process served against the limited liability company as required by this article.** Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state ~~or a person~~ shall mail a copy of process served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state** as agent of a domestic limited liability company or a foreign limited liability company shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different post office address.

(e) **(d)** (1) Except as otherwise provided in this subdivision, every limited liability company to which this chapter applies, shall biennially in the calendar month during which its articles of organization or application for authority were filed, or effective date thereof if stated, file on forms prescribed by the secretary of state, a statement setting forth the post office address within or without this state to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process accepted against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**. Such address shall supersede any previous address on file with the department of state for this purpose.

(2) The commissioner of taxation and finance and the secretary of state may agree to allow limited liability companies to include the statement specified in paragraph one of this subdivision on tax reports filed with the department of taxation and finance in lieu of biennial statements and in a manner prescribed by the commissioner of taxation and finance. If this agreement is made, starting with taxable years beginning on or after January first, two thousand sixteen, each limited liability company required to file the statement specified in paragraph one of this subdivision that is subject to the filing fee imposed by paragraph three of subsection (c) of section six hundred fifty-eight of the tax law shall provide such statement annually on its filing fee payment form filed with the department of taxation and finance in lieu of filing a statement under this section with the department of state. However, each limited liability company required to file a statement under this section must continue to file the biennial statement required by this section with the department of state until the limited liability company in fact has filed a filing fee payment form with the department of taxation and finance that includes all required information. After that time, the limited

liability company shall continue to provide annually the statement specified in paragraph one of this subdivision on its filing fee payment form in lieu of the biennial statement required by this subdivision.

(3) If the agreement described in paragraph two of this subdivision is made, the department of taxation and finance shall deliver to the department of state the statement specified in paragraph one of this subdivision contained on filing fee payment forms. The department of taxation and finance must, to the extent feasible, also include the current name of the limited liability company, department of state identification number for such limited liability company, the name, signature and capacity of the signer of the statement, name and street address of the filer of the statement, and the email address, if any, of the filer of the statement.

§ 31. Paragraphs 2 and 3 of subdivision (a), subparagraph (ii) of paragraph 2 and subparagraph (ii) of paragraph 3 of subdivision (e) of -A section 301-A of the limited liability company law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, are amended to read as follows:

(2) that the address of the party has been designated by the limited liability company as the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served on the secretary of state as agent for such limited liability company, **such address** and that such party wishes to resign.

(3) that sixty days prior to the filing of the certificate of resignation **or receipt of process** with the department of state the party has sent a copy of the certificate of resignation for receipt of process by registered or certified mail to the address of the registered agent of the designated limited liability company, if other than the party filing the certificate of resignation; for receipt of process, or if the ~~resigning~~ **designating** limited liability company has no registered agent, then to the last address of the designated limited liability company known to the party, specifying the address to which the copy was sent. If there is no registered agent and no known address of the designating limited liability company, the party shall attach an affidavit to the certificate stating that a diligent but unsuccessful search was made by the party to locate the limited liability company, specifying what efforts were made.

(ii) sent by or on behalf of the plaintiff to such limited **liability** company by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested to the last address of such limited liability company known to the plaintiff.

(ii) Where service of a copy of process was effected by mailing in accordance with this section, proof of service shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section filed, together with the process, within thirty days after receipt of the return receipt signed by the limited liability company or other official proof of delivery or of the original envelope mailed. If a copy of the process is mailed in accordance with this section, there shall be filed with the affidavit of compliance either the return receipt signed by such limited **liability** company or other official proof of delivery, if acceptance was refused by it, the original envelope with a notation by the postal authorities that acceptance was refused. If acceptance was refused a copy of the notice and process together with notice of the mailing by registered or certified mail and refusal to accept shall be promptly sent to such limited liability company at the same address by ordinary mail and the affidavit of compliance shall so state. Service of process shall be complete ten days after such papers are filed with the clerk of the court. The refusal to accept delivery of the registered or certified mail or to sign the return receipt shall not affect the validity of the service and such limited liability company refusing to accept such registered or certified mail shall be charged with knowledge of the contents thereof.

§ 32. Subdivision (a) of section 303 of the limited liability company law, as relettered by chapter 341 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

(a) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a domestic limited liability company, ~~or~~ **authorized foreign limited liability company, or other business entity that has designated the secretary of state as agent for service of process pursuant to article ten of this chapter, shall be made by mailing the process and notice of service thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such limited liability company or other business entity, at the post office address, on**

**file in the department of state, specified for this purpose. On the --A same day as such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing shall be made by personally delivering delivered to and leaving left with the secretary of state or his or her deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, duplicate copies of such process together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement. Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section.** Service of process on such limited liability company **or other business entity** shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served. The secretary of state shall promptly send one of such copies by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such limited liability company at the post office address on file in the department of state specified for that purpose.

§ 33. Section 305 of the limited liability company law is amended to read as follows:

§ 305. Records of process served on the secretary of state. The secretary of state **department of state** shall keep a record of each process served upon the secretary of state under this chapter, including the date of such service and the action of the secretary of state with reference thereto **. It shall, upon request made within ten years of such service, issue a certificate under its seal certifying as to the receipt of the process by an authorized person, the date and place of such service and the receipt of the statutory fee. Process served upon the secretary of state under this chapter shall be destroyed by the department of state after a period of ten years from such service.**

§ 34. Paragraph 4 of subdivision (a) of section 802 of the limited liability company law, as amend by chapter 470 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(4) a designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him or her **the secretary of state;**

§ 35. Section 804-A of the limited liability company law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

§ 804-A. Certificate of change. (a) A foreign limited liability company may amend its application for authority from time to time to (i) specify or change the location of the limited liability company's office; (ii) specify or change the post office address to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company served upon him **the secretary of state;** and (iii) to make, revoke or change the designation of a registered agent, or to specify or change the address of a registered agent. Any one or more such changes may be accomplished by filing a certificate of change which shall be entitled "Certificate of Change of ..... (name of limited liability company) under section 804-A of the Limited Liability Company Law" and shall be signed and delivered to the department of state. It shall set forth:

(1) the name of the foreign limited liability company and, if applicable, the fictitious name the limited liability company has agreed to use in this state pursuant to section eight hundred two of this article;

(2) the date its application for authority was filed by the department of state; and

(3) each change effected thereby; .

(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any --A process against a foreign limited liability company served upon him or **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership or , corporation **or other limited liability company** whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such limited liability company may be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate

of change shall set forth the statements required under subdivision (a) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the foreign limited liability company by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such foreign limited liability company has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such foreign limited liability company to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the foreign limited liability company in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 36. Paragraph 6 of subdivision (b) of section 806 of the limited liability company law is amended to read as follows:

(6) a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 37. Paragraph 11 of subdivision (a) of section 1003 of the limited liability company law, as amended by chapter 374 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

(11) a designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in article three of this chapter in any action or special proceeding, and a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**. Such post office address shall supersede any prior address designated as the address to which process shall be mailed;

§ 38. Clause (iv) of subparagraph (A) of paragraph 2 of subdivision (c) of section 1203 of the limited liability company law, as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, is amended to read as follows:

(iv) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the professional service limited liability company upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 39. Paragraph 6 of subdivision (a) and subparagraph 5 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (d) of section 1306 of the limited liability company law, subparagraph 5 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (d) as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, are amended to read as follows:

(6) a designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**; and

(5) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the foreign professional service limited liability company upon --A whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 40. Paragraph (d) of section 304 of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 358 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

(d) **Any designated post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a domestic corporation or foreign corporation shall be deemed to be the post office address, within or without this state, to which a person shall mail the process served against the corporation as required by this article.** Any designated ~~post-office~~ **post office** address to which the secretary of state **or a person** shall mail a copy of process served

upon him or her **the secretary of state** as agent of a domestic corporation formed under article four of this chapter or foreign corporation, shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different ~~post-office~~ **post office** address.

§ 41. Paragraph (a) of section 305 of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 549 of the laws of 2013, is amended to read as follows:

(a) Every domestic corporation or authorized foreign corporation may designate a registered agent in this state upon whom process against such corporation may be served. The agent shall be a natural person who is a resident of or has a business address in this state or a domestic corporation or foreign corporation of any kind formed, or authorized to do business in this state, under this chapter or under any other statute of this state, **or a domestic limited liability company or a foreign limited liability company authorized to do business in this state.**

§ 42. Paragraph (b) of section 306 of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 23 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

(b) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a domestic corporation formed under article four of this chapter or an authorized foreign corporation shall be made by **mailing the process and notice of service thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such corporation or other business entity, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for this purpose. On the same day that such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing shall be** personally delivering **delivered** to and leaving **left** with the secretary of state or his or her deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, ~~duplicate copies of such process~~ together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement. **Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section.** Service of process on such corporation **or other business entity** shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served. ~~The secretary of state shall promptly send one of such copies by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such corporation, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for the purpose.~~ If a domestic corporation formed under article four of this chapter or an authorized foreign corporation has no such address on file in the department of state, the secretary of state shall so mail such **duplicate copy of the process shall be mailed** to --A such corporation at the address of its office within this state on file in the department.

§ 43. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) of section 402 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as added by chapter 564 of the laws of 1981 and as renumbered by chapter 132 of the laws of 1985, is amended to read as follows:

(6) A designation of the secretary of state as agent of the corporation upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state.**

§ 44. Subparagraph 7 of paragraph (b) of section 801 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as amended by chapter 438 of the laws of 1984, is amended to read as follows:

(7) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the corporation served upon him **the secretary of state.**

§ 45. Subparagraph 2 of paragraph (c) of section 802 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as amended by chapter 186 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

(2) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the corporation served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 46. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) of section 803 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as amended by chapter 23 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

(6) A designation of the secretary of state as agent of the corporation upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon the secretary **of state**.

§ 47. Paragraph (b) of section 803-A of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the corporation served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or other corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such corporation, may be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth the statements required under subparagraphs (1), (2) and (3) of paragraph (a) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the corporation by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department and that such corporation has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such corporation to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of any process against the corporation served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this paragraph shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the corporation in whose behalf such certificate is filed. --A

§ 48. Clause (E) of subparagraph 2 of paragraph (d) of section 906 of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 1058 of the laws of 1971, is amended to read as follows:

(E) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (Service of process), in any action or special proceeding described in subparagraph (D) and a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of the process in such action or special proceeding **served upon the secretary of state**.

§ 49. Clause (F) of subparagraph 2 of paragraph (d) of section 908 of the not-for-profit corporation law, is amended to read as follows:

(F) A designation of the secretary of state as his agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (Service of process), in any action or special proceeding described in ~~subparagraph~~ **clause** (D) and a post office address, within or without the state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of the process in such action or special proceeding **served upon by the secretary of state**.

§ 50. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) of section 1304 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as renumbered by chapter 590 of the laws of 1982, is amended to read as follows:

(6) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.



§ 51. Subparagraph 7 of paragraph (a) of section 1308 of the not-forprofit corporation law, as renumbered by chapter 186 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

(7) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 52. Subparagraph 2 of paragraph (a) and paragraph (c) of section 1310 of the not-for-profit corporation law, paragraph (c) as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

(2) To specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

(c) A certificate of change of application for authority which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against an authorized foreign corporation served upon ~~him~~ or **the secretary of state and/or** which changes the address of its registered agent, provided such address is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or other corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such authorized foreign corporation, may be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change of application for authority shall set forth the statements required under subparagraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) of paragraph (b) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed by the party signing the certificate to the authorized foreign corporation not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department and that such corporation has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such foreign corporation to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** --A is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this paragraph shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the corporation in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 53. Subparagraph 6 of paragraph (a) and subparagraph 4 of paragraph (d) of section 1311 of the not-for-profit corporation law are amended to read as follows:

(6) A post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

(4) The changed post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 54. Section 1312 of the not-for-profit corporation law, as amended by chapter 375 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

§ 1312. Termination of existence.

When an authorized foreign corporation is dissolved or its authority or existence is otherwise terminated or cancelled in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or when such foreign corporation is merged into or consolidated with another foreign corporation, a certificate of the secretary of state, or official performing the equivalent function as to corporate records, of the jurisdiction of incorporation of such foreign corporation attesting to the occurrence of any such event or a certified copy of an order or decree of a court of such jurisdiction directing the dissolution of such foreign corporation, the termination of its existence or the cancellation of its authority shall be delivered to the department of state. The filing of the certificate, order or decree shall have the same effect as the filing of a certificate of surrender of authority under section 1311 (Surrender of

authority). The secretary of state shall continue as agent of the foreign corporation upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) of section 306 (Service of process), in any action or special proceeding based upon any liability or obligation incurred by the foreign corporation within this state prior to the filing of such certificate, order or decree and he **the person serving such process** shall promptly cause a copy of any such process to be mailed by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, to such foreign corporation at the post office address on file in his office specified for such purpose. The post office address may be changed by signing and delivering to the department of state a certificate of change setting forth the statements required under section 1310 (Certificate of change, contents) to effect a change in the post office address under subparagraph (a) (4) of section 1308 (Amendments or changes).

§ 55. Subdivision (c) of section 121-104 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 950 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(c) **Any designated post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a domestic limited partnership or foreign limited partnership shall be deemed to be the post office address, within or without this state, to which a person shall mail the process served against the limited partnership as required by this article.** Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state **or a person** shall mail a copy of process served upon him **the secretary of state** as agent of a domestic limited partnership or foreign limited partnership shall continue until the --A filing of a certificate under this article directing the mailing to a different post office address.

§ 56. Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of subdivision (a) of section 121-104-A of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, are amended to read as follows:

(1) the name of the limited partnership and the date that its ~~articles of organization~~ **certificate of limited partnership** or application for authority was filed by the department of state.

(2) that the address of the party has been designated by the limited partnership as the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served on the secretary of state as agent for such limited partnership, and that such party wishes to resign.

(3) that sixty days prior to the filing of the certificate of resignation **for receipt of process** with the department of state the party has sent a copy of the certificate of resignation for receipt of process by registered or certified mail to the address of the registered agent of the ~~designated~~ **designating** limited partnership, if other than the party filing the certificate of resignation; for receipt of process, or if the ~~resigning~~ **designating** limited partnership has no registered agent, then to the last address of the ~~designated~~ **designating** limited partnership, known to the party, specifying the address to which the copy was sent. If there is no registered agent and no known address of the designating limited partnership the party shall attach an affidavit to the certificate stating that a diligent but unsuccessful search was made by the party to locate the limited partnership, specifying what efforts were made.

§ 57. Subdivision (a) of section 121-105 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 950 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(a) In addition to the designation of the secretary of state, each limited partnership or authorized foreign limited partnership may designate a registered agent upon whom process against the limited partnership may be served. The agent must be (i) a natural person who is a resident of this state or has a business address in this state, ~~or~~ (ii) a domestic corporation or a foreign corporation authorized to do business in this state, **or a domestic limited liability company or a foreign limited liability company authorized to do business in this state.**

§ 58. Subdivisions (a) and (c) of section 121-109 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 950 of the laws of 1990 and as relettered by chapter 341 of the laws of 1999, are amended to read as follows:

(a) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a domestic or authorized foreign limited partnership, **or other business entity that has designated the secretary of state as agent for service of process pursuant to this chapter**, shall be made as follows:

(1) ~~By~~ **by mailing the process and notice of service of process pursuant to this section by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such domestic or authorized foreign limited partnership or other business entity, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for that purpose. On the same day as the process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing shall be** personally delivering **delivered** to and leaving **left** with him or his ~~the secretary of state or a deputy~~, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, ~~duplicate copies of such process~~ together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disburse- --A ment. **Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section. Service of process on such limited partnership or other business entity shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served.**

(2) ~~The service on the limited partnership is complete when the secretary of state is so served.~~

(3) ~~The secretary of state shall promptly send one of such copies by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the limited partnership at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for that purpose.~~

(c) ~~The secretary of state~~ **department of state** shall keep a record of all process served upon him ~~it~~ under this section and shall record therein the date of such service and his action with reference thereto . **It shall, upon request made within ten years of such service, issue a certificate under its seal certifying as to the receipt of the process by an authorized person, the date and place of such service and the receipt of the statutory fee. Process served upon the secretary of state under this chapter shall be destroyed by him after a period of ten years from such service.**

§ 59. Paragraph 3 of subdivision (a) and subparagraph 4 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (c) of section 121-201 of the partnership law, paragraph 3 of subdivision (a) as amended by chapter 264 of the laws of 1991, and subparagraph 4 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (c), as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, are amended to read as follows:

(3) a designation of the secretary of state as agent of the limited partnership upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him ~~the secretary of state~~;

(4) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the limited partnership upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him or her ~~the secretary of state~~;

§ 60. Paragraph 4 of subdivision (b) of section 121-202 of the partnership law, as amended by chapter 576 of the laws of 1994, is amended to read as follows:

(4) a change in the name of the limited partnership, or a change in the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against the limited partnership served on him ~~the secretary of state~~, or a change in the name or address of the registered agent, if such change is made other than pursuant to section 121-104 or 121-105 of this article.

§ 61. Section 121-202-A of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, and paragraph 2 of subdivision (a) as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

§ 121-202-A. Certificate of change. (a) A certificate of limited partnership may be changed by filing with the department of state a certificate of change entitled "Certificate of Change of ..... (name of limited partnership) under Section 121-202-A of the Revised Limited Partnership Act" and shall be signed and delivered to the department of state. A certificate of change may (i) specify or change the location of the limited partnership's office; (ii) specify or change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of process against the limited partnership served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**; and (iii) make, revoke or change the designation of a registered agent, or to specify or change the address of its registered agent. It shall set forth:

- (1) the name of the limited partnership, and if it has been changed, the name under which it was formed;
- (2) the date its certificate of limited partnership was filed by the department of state; and
- (3) each change effected thereby.

(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a limited partnership served upon ~~him or~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability corporation** or corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such limited partnership shall be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth the statements required under subdivision (a) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the domestic limited partnership by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such domestic limited partnership has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such limited partnership to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the limited partnership in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 62. Paragraph 4 of subdivision (a) and subparagraph 5 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (d) of section 121-902 of the partnership law, paragraph 4 of subdivision (a) as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999 and subparagraph 5 of paragraph (i) of subdivision (d) as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, are amended to read as follows:

(4) a designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**;

(5) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as its agent upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 63. Section 121-903-A of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

§ 121-903-A. Certificate of change. (a) A foreign limited partnership may change its application for authority by filing with the department of state a certificate of change entitled "Certificate of Change of ..... (name of limited partnership) under Section 121-903-A of the Revised Limited Partnership Act" and shall be signed and delivered to the department of state. A certificate of change may (i) change the location of the limited partnership's office; (ii) change the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of process against the limited partnership served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**; and

(iii) make, revoke or change the designation of a registered agent, or to specify or change the address of its registered agent. It shall set forth: --A

(1) the name of the foreign limited partnership and, if applicable, the fictitious name the foreign limited partnership has agreed to use in this state pursuant to section 121-902 of this article;

(2) the date its application for authority was filed by the department of state; and

(3) each change effected thereby.

(b) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a foreign limited partnership served upon ~~him or~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such foreign limited partnership shall be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth the statements required under subdivision (a) of this section; that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the foreign limited partnership by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such foreign limited partnership has not objected thereto; and that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such foreign limited partnership to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the limited partnership in whose behalf such certificate is filed.

§ 64. Paragraph 6 of subdivision (b) of section 121-905 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 950 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(6) a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**.

§ 65. Paragraph 7 of subdivision (a) of section 121-1103 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 950 of the laws of 1990, is amended to read as follows:

(7) A designation of the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process against it may be served in the manner set forth in section 121-109 of this article in any action or special proceeding, and a post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**. Such post office address shall supersede any prior address designated as the address to which process shall be mailed.

§ 66. Subparagraphs 2 and 4 of paragraph (I) of subdivision (a) and clause 4 of subparagraph (A) of paragraph (II) of section 121-1500 of the partnership law, subparagraph 2 of paragraph (I) as added by chapter 576 of the laws of 1994, subparagraph 4 of paragraph (I) as amended by chapter 643 of the laws of 1995 and such paragraph as redesignated by chapter 767 of the laws of 2005 and clause 4 of subparagraph (A) of paragraph (II) as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, are amended to read as follows:

(2) the address, **within this state**, of the principal office of the partnership without limited partners;

(4) a designation of the secretary of state as agent of the partnership without limited partners upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which the --A ~~secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it or served upon it **on the secretary of state**;

(4) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the registered limited liability partnership upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 67. Paragraphs (ii) and (iii) of subdivision (g) of section 121-1500 of the partnership law, as amended by section 8 of part S of chapter 59 of the laws of 2015, are amended to read as follows:

(ii) the address, **within this state**, of the principal office of the registered limited liability partnership, (iii) the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process accepted against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**, which address shall supersede any previous address on file with the department of state for this purpose, and

§ 68. Subdivision (j-1) of section 121-1500 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows:

(j-1) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a registered limited liability partnership served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent for such registered limited liability partnership shall be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth: (i) the name of the registered limited liability partnership and, if it has been changed, the name under which it was originally filed with the department of state; (ii) the date of filing of its initial registration or notice statement; (iii) each change effected thereby; (iv) that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the limited liability partnership by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such limited liability partnership has not objected thereto; and (v) that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such limited liability partnership to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the limited liability partnership in whose behalf such certificate is filed. The certificate of change shall be accompanied by a fee of five dollars.

§ 69. Subdivision (a) of section 121-1502 of the partnership law, as amended by chapter 643 of the laws of 1995, and paragraph (v) as amended by chapter 470 of the laws of 1997, are amended to read as follows:

(a) In order for a foreign limited liability partnership to carry on or conduct or transact business or activities as a New York registered foreign limited liability partnership in this state, such foreign limited liability partnership shall file with the department of state a notice which shall set forth: (i) the name under which the foreign limited liability partnership intends to carry on or conduct or transact business or activities in this state; (ii) the date on which and the jurisdiction in which it registered as a limited liability partnership; --A (iii) the address, **within this state**, of the principal office of the foreign limited liability partnership; (iv) the profession or professions to be practiced by such foreign limited liability partnership and a statement that it is a foreign limited liability partnership eligible to file a notice under this chapter; (v) a designation of the secretary of state as agent of the foreign limited liability partnership upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it ~~or~~ served upon it **the secretary of state**; (vi) if the foreign limited liability partnership is to have a registered agent, its name and address in this state and a statement that the registered agent is to be the agent of the foreign limited liability partnership upon whom process against it may be served; (vii) a statement that its registration as a limited liability partnership is effective in the jurisdiction in which it registered as a limited liability partnership at the time of the filing of such notice; (viii) a statement that the foreign limited liability partnership is filing a notice in order to obtain status as a New York registered foreign limited liability partnership; (ix) if the registration of the foreign limited liability partnership is to be effective on a date later than the time of filing, the date, not



to exceed sixty days from the date of filing, of such proposed effectiveness; and (x) any other matters the foreign limited liability partnership determines to include in the notice. Such notice shall be accompanied by either (1) a copy of the last registration or renewal registration (or similar filing), if any, filed by the foreign limited liability partnership with the jurisdiction where it registered as a limited liability partnership or (2) a certificate, issued by the jurisdiction where it registered as a limited liability partnership, substantially to the effect that such foreign limited liability partnership has filed a registration as a limited liability partnership which is effective on the date of the certificate (if such registration, renewal registration or certificate is in a foreign language, a translation thereof under oath of the translator shall be attached thereto). Such notice shall also be accompanied by a fee of two hundred fifty dollars.

§ 70. Subparagraphs (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (I) of subdivision (f) of section 121-1502 of the partnership law, as amended by section 9 of part S of chapter 59 of the laws of 2015, is amended to read as follows:

(ii) the address, **within this state**, of the principal office of the New York registered foreign limited liability partnership, (iii) the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process accepted against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**, which address shall supersede any previous address on file with the department of state for this purpose, and

§ 71. Clause 5 of subparagraph (A) of paragraph (II) of subdivision (f) of section 121-1502 of the partnership law, as amended by chapter 44 of the laws of 2006, is amended to read as follows:

(5) a statement that the secretary of state has been designated as agent of the foreign limited liability partnership upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address, within or without this state, to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon ~~him or her~~ **the secretary of state**;

§ 72. Subdivision (i-1) of section 121-1502 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, is amended to read as follows: -A

(i-1) A certificate of change which changes only the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against a New York registered foreign limited liability partnership served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state** **and/or** the address of the registered agent, provided such address being changed is the address of a person, partnership, **limited liability company** or corporation whose address, as agent, is the address to be changed or who has been designated as registered agent of such registered foreign limited liability partnership shall be signed and delivered to the department of state by such agent. The certificate of change shall set forth: (i) the name of the New York registered foreign limited liability partnership; (ii) the date of filing of its initial registration or notice statement; (iii) each change effected thereby; (iv) that a notice of the proposed change was mailed to the limited liability partnership by the party signing the certificate not less than thirty days prior to the date of delivery to the department of state and that such limited liability partnership has not objected thereto; and (v) that the party signing the certificate is the agent of such limited liability partnership to whose address ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is required to mail copies of process **served on the secretary of state** or the registered agent, if such be the case. A certificate signed and delivered under this subdivision shall not be deemed to effect a change of location of the office of the limited liability partnership in whose behalf such certificate is filed. The certificate of change shall be accompanied by a fee of five dollars.

§ 73. Subdivision (a) of section 121-1505 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 470 of the laws of 1997, is amended and three new subdivisions (d), (e) and (f) are added to read as follows:

(a) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a registered limited liability partnership **or New York registered foreign limited liability partnership** under this article shall be made by **mailing the process and notice of service thereof by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such registered limited liability partnership or New York registered foreign**

**limited liability partnership, at the post office address on file in the department of state specified for such purpose. On the same date that such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement shall be** personally delivering **delivered** to and leaving **left** with the secretary of state or a deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, ~~duplicate copies of such process~~ together with the statutory fee, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement. **Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section.** Service of process on such registered limited liability partnership **or New York registered foreign limited liability partnership** shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served. ~~The secretary of state shall promptly send one of such copies by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such registered limited liability partnership, at the post office address on file in the department of state specified for such purpose.~~

**(d) The department of state shall keep a record of each process served upon the secretary of state under this chapter, including the date of such service. It shall, upon request made within ten years of such service, issue a certificate under its seal certifying as to the receipt of the process by an authorized person, the date and place of such --A service and the receipt of the statutory fee. Process served upon the secretary of state under this chapter shall be destroyed by the department of state after a period of ten years from such service.**

**(e) Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state shall mail a copy of any process served upon him as agent of a registered limited liability partnership or New York registered foreign limited liability partnership shall be deemed to be the post office address to which a person shall mail the process served against the registered limited liability partnership or New York registered foreign limited liability partnership pursuant to this article.**

**(f) Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state or a person shall mail any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a registered limited liability partnership or New York registered foreign limited liability partnership shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different post office address.**

§ 74. Subdivision (b) of section 121-1506 of the partnership law, as added by chapter 448 of the laws of 1998, and paragraph 4 as amended by chapter 172 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

(b) The party (or the party's legal representative) whose post **office** address has been supplied by a limited liability partnership as its address for process may resign. A certificate entitled "Certificate of Resignation for Receipt of Process under Section 121-1506(b) of the Partnership Law" shall be signed by such party and delivered to the department of state. It shall set forth:

(1) The name of the limited liability partnership and the date that its certificate of registration was filed by the department of state.

(2) That the address of the party has been designated by the limited liability partnership as the post office address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any process served on the secretary of state as agent for such limited liability partnership and that such party wishes to resign.

(3) That sixty days prior to the filing of the certificate of resignation with the department of state the party has sent a copy of the certificate of resignation for receipt of process by registered or certified mail to the address of the registered agent of the designated **designating** limited liability partnership, if other than the party filing the certificate of resignation, for receipt of process, or if the ~~resigning~~ **designating** limited liability partnership has no registered agent, then to the last address of the designated **designating** limited liability partnership, known to the party, specifying the address to which the copy was sent. If there is no registered agent and no known address of the designating limited liability partnership the party shall attach an affidavit to the certificate stating that a diligent but unsuccessful search was made by the party to locate the limited liability partnership, specifying what efforts were made.

(4) That the designated **designating** limited liability partnership is required to deliver to the department of state a certificate of amendment providing for the designation by the limited liability partnership of a new address and that upon its failure to file such certificate, its authority to do business in this state shall be suspended.

§ 75. Paragraph 16 of subdivision 1 of section 103 of the private housing finance law, as added by chapter 22 of the laws of 1970, is amended to read as follows:

(16) A designation of the secretary of state as agent of the corporation upon whom process against it may be served and the post office --A address, within or without this state, to which the secretary of state **a person** shall mail a copy of any process against it served upon him **the secretary of state**.

§ 76. Subdivision 7 of section 339-n of the real property law, is REPEALED and subdivisions 8 and 9 are renumbered subdivisions 7 and 8.

§ 77. Subdivision 2 of section 339-s of the real property law, as added by chapter 346 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

2. Each such declaration, and any amendment or amendments thereof shall be filed with the department of state **(a) The board of managers for each condominium subject to this article shall file with the secretary of state a certificate, in writing, signed, designating the secretary of state as agent of the board of managers upon whom process against it may be served and the post office address to which a person shall mail a copy of such process. The certificate shall be accompanied by a fee of sixty dollars.**

**(b) Any board of managers may change the address to which a person shall mail a copy of process served upon the secretary of state, by filing a signed certificate of amendment with the department of state. Such certificate shall be accompanied by a fee of sixty dollars.**

**(c) Service of process on the secretary of state as agent of a board of managers shall be made by mailing the process and notice of service of process pursuant to this section by certified mail, return receipt requested, to such board of managers, at the post office address, on file in the department of state, specified for this purpose. On the same day that such process is mailed, a duplicate copy of such process and proof of mailing shall be personally delivered to and left with the secretary of state or a deputy, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, a duplicate copy of such process with proof of mailing together with the statutory fee, which shall be a taxable disbursement. Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section. Service of process on a board of managers shall be complete when the secretary of state is so served.**

**(d) As used in this article, "process" shall mean judicial process and all orders, demands, notices or other papers required or permitted by law to be personally served on a board of managers, for the purpose of acquiring jurisdiction of such board of managers in any action or proceeding, civil or criminal, whether judicial, administrative, arbitrate or otherwise, in this state or in the federal courts sitting in or for this state.**

**(e) Nothing in this section shall affect the right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.**

**(f) The department of state shall keep a record of each process served under this section, including the date of service. It shall, upon request, made within ten years of such service, issue a certificate under its seal certifying as to the receipt of process by an authorized person, the date and place of such service and the receipt of the statutory fee. Process served on the secretary of state under this section shall be destroyed by the department of state after a period of ten years from such service.**

**(g) Any designated post office address to which the secretary of state shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of the board of managers filed with the department of state pursuant to this section prior to the effective date of this paragraph shall be deemed to be the post office address to which a person shall mail the process against the board of managers pursuant to this article. Any --A designated post office address to which the secretary of state or a person shall mail a copy of any process served upon the secretary of state as agent of a board of managers, shall continue until the filing of a certificate under this chapter directing the mailing to a different post office address.**

§ 78. Subdivisions 3 and 4 of section 442-g of the real property law, as amended by chapter 482 of the laws of 1963, are amended to read as follows:

3. Service of such process upon the secretary of state shall be made by personally delivering to and leaving with him or his **the secretary of state or a deputy**, or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, ~~duplicate copies~~ **a copy of such process and proof of mailing** together with a fee of five dollars if the action is solely for the recovery of a sum of money not in excess of two hundred dollars and the process is so endorsed, and a fee of ten dollars in any other action or proceeding, which fee shall be a taxable disbursement. If such process is served upon behalf of a county, city, town or village, or other political subdivision of the state, the fee to be paid to the secretary of state shall be five dollars, irrespective of the amount involved or the nature of the action on account of which such service of process is made. ~~If the cost of registered mail for transmitting a copy of the process shall exceed two dollars, an additional fee equal to such excess shall be paid at the time of the service of such process.~~ **Proof of mailing shall be by affidavit of compliance with this section.** Proof of service shall be by affidavit of compliance with this subdivision filed by or on behalf of the plaintiff together with the process, within ten days after such service, with the clerk of the court in which the action or special proceeding is pending. Service made as provided in this section shall be complete ten days after such papers are filed with the clerk of the court and shall have the same force and validity as if served on him personally within the state and within the territorial jurisdiction of the court from which the process issues.

4. The secretary of state **person serving such process** shall promptly send one of such copies **process** by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, to the nonresident broker or nonresident salesman at the post office address of his main office as set forth in the last application filed by him.

§ 79. Subdivision 2 of section 203 of the tax law, as amended by chapter 100 of the laws of 1964, is amended to read as follows:

2. Every foreign corporation (other than a moneyed corporation) subject to the provisions of this article, except a corporation having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business corporation law, shall file in the department of state a certificate of designation in its corporate name, signed and acknowledged by its president or a vice-president or its secretary or treasurer, under its corporate seal, designating the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process in any action provided for by this article may be served within this state, and setting forth an address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any such process against the corporation which may be served upon him **the secretary of state**. In case any such corporation shall have failed to file such certificate of designation, it shall be deemed to have designated the secretary of state as its agent -- A upon whom such process against it may be served; and until a certificate of designation shall have been filed the corporation shall be deemed to have directed ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving process** to mail copies of process served upon him **the secretary of state** to the corporation at its last known office address within or without the state. When a certificate of designation has been filed by such corporation ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving process** shall mail copies of process thereafter served upon him **the secretary of state** to the address set forth in such certificate. Any such corporation, from time to time, may change the address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is directed to mail copies of process, by filing a certificate to that effect executed, signed and acknowledged in like manner as a certificate of designation as herein provided. Service of process upon any such corporation or upon any corporation having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business

corporation law, in any action commenced at any time pursuant to the provisions of this article, may be made by either (1) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service ~~duplicate copies~~ **a copy** thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, in which event ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving such process** shall forthwith send by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, ~~one of such copies~~ **a duplicate copy** to the corporation at the address designated by it or at its last known office address within or without the state, or (2) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, a copy thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany and by delivering a copy thereof to, and leaving such copy with, the president, vice-president, secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, assistant treasurer, or cashier of such corporation, or the officer performing corresponding functions under another name, or a director or managing agent of such corporation, personally without the state. Proof of such personal service without the state shall be filed with the clerk of the court in which the action is pending within thirty days after such service, and such service shall be complete ten days after proof thereof is filed.

§ 80. Section 216 of the tax law, as added by chapter 415 of the laws of 1944, the opening paragraph as amended by chapter 100 of the laws of 1964 and redesignated by chapter 613 of the laws of 1976, is amended to read as follows:

§ 216. Collection of taxes. Every foreign corporation (other than a moneyed corporation) subject to the provisions of this article, except a corporation having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business corporation law, shall file in the department of state a certificate of designation in its corporate name, signed and acknowledged by its president or a vice-president or its secretary or treasurer, under its corporate seal, designating the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process in any action provided for by this article may be served within this state, and setting forth an address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any such process against the corporation which may be served upon him. In case any such corporation shall --A have failed to file such certificate of designation, it shall be deemed to have designated the secretary of state as its agent upon whom such process against it may be served; and until a certificate of designation shall have been filed the corporation shall be deemed to have directed ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** to mail copies **a copy** of process served upon him **the secretary of state** to the corporation at its last known office address within or without the state. When a certificate of designation has been filed by such corporation ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving such process** shall mail copies **a copy** of process thereafter served upon him **person serving such process** to the address set forth in such certificate. Any such corporation, from time to time, may change the address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **person** is directed to mail copies of process, by filing a certificate to that effect executed, signed and acknowledged in like manner as a certificate of designation as herein provided. Service of process upon any such corporation or upon any corporation having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business corporation law, in any action commenced at any time pursuant to the provisions of this article, may be made by either (1) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service ~~duplicate copies~~ **a copy** thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, in which event ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving such process** shall forthwith send by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, ~~one of such copies~~ **a duplicate copy** to the corporation at the address designated by it or at its last known office address within or without the state, or (2) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, a copy thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany and by delivering a copy thereof to, and leaving such copy with, the president, vicepresident, secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, assistant treasurer, or cashier of such corporation, or the officer performing corresponding functions under another name, or a director or managing agent of such corporation, personally without the state. Proof of such personal service without the state shall be filed with the clerk of the court in which the action is pending within thirty days after such service, and such service shall be complete ten days after proof thereof is filed.



§ 81. Subdivisions (a) and (b) of section 310 of the tax law, as added by chapter 400 of the laws of 1983, is amended to read as follows:

(a) Designation for service of process.--Every petroleum business which is a corporation, except such a petroleum business having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business corporation law, shall file in the department of state a certificate of designation in its corporate name, signed and acknowledged by its president or vice-president or its secretary or treasurer, under its corporate seal, designating the secretary of state as its agent upon whom process in any action provided for by this article may be served within this state, and setting forth an address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** shall mail a copy of any such process against such petroleum business which may be served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state**. In case any such --A petroleum business shall have failed to file such certificate of designation, it shall be deemed to have designated the secretary of state as its agent upon whom such process against it may be served; and until a certificate of designation shall have been filed such a petroleum business shall be deemed to have directed ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** to mail copies of process served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state** to such petroleum business at its last known office address within or without the state. When a certificate of designation has been filed by such a petroleum business ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving process** shall mail copies of process thereafter served upon ~~him~~ **the secretary of state** to the address set forth in such certificate. Any such petroleum business, from time to time, may change the address to which ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person** is directed to mail copies of process, by filing a certificate to that effect executed, signed and acknowledged in like manner as a certificate of designation as herein provided.

(b) Service of process.--Service of process upon any petroleum business which is a corporation (including any such petroleum business having a certificate of authority ~~under section two hundred twelve of the general corporation law~~ or having authority to do business by virtue of section thirteen hundred five of the business corporation law), in any action commenced at any time pursuant to the provisions of this article, may be made by either (1) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service ~~duplicate copies~~ **a copy** thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany, in which event ~~the secretary of state~~ **a person serving process** shall forthwith send by registered **certified** mail, return receipt requested, ~~one of such copies~~ **a duplicate copy** to such petroleum business at the address designated by it or at its last known office address within or without the state, or (2) personally delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, a deputy secretary of state or with any person authorized by the secretary of state to receive such service, a copy thereof at the office of the department of state in the city of Albany and by delivering a copy thereof to, and leaving such copy with, the president, vice-president, secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, assistant treasurer, or cashier of such petroleum business, or the officer performing corresponding functions under another name, or a director or managing agent of such petroleum business, personally without the state. Proof of such personal service without the state shall be filed with the clerk of the court in which the action is pending within thirty days after such service, and such service shall be complete ten days after proof thereof is filed.

§ 82. This act shall take effect on the one hundred twentieth day after it shall have become a law.

PART O Section 1. Chapter 912 of the laws of 1920 relating to the regulation of boxing, sparring, and wrestling is REPEALED.

§ 2. Article 40 and sections 900 and 901 of the general business law, as renumbered by chapter 407 of the laws of 1973, are renumbered article 43 and sections 1200 and 1201, respectively, and a new article 41 is added to read as follows:

## **ARTICLE 41**

### **COMBATIVE SPORTS**

#### **Section 1000. Definitions.** --A



**1001. Combative sports authorized.**

**1002. Combative sports prohibited.**

**1003. State athletic commission.**

**1004. Jurisdiction of the commission.**

**1005. Officers and employees of the commission.**

**1006. Sanctioning entities.**

**1007. Licenses; general provisions.**

**1008. Licenses; judges.**

**1009. Licenses; entities.**

**1010. Licenses; professionals.**

**1011. Temporary working permits.**

**1012. Temporary training facilities.**

**1013. Medical advisory board.**

**1014. Regulation of authorized professional combative sports.**

**1015. Conduct of authorized professional combative sports.**

**1016. Required filings.**

**1017. Professional wrestling; promoters.**

**1018. Prohibited conduct.**

**1019. Penalties.**

**1020. Subpoenas by commission; oaths.**

**1021. Exceptions.**

**1022. Disposition of receipts. § 1000. Definitions. As used in this article: 1. "Amateur" means any participant in a combative sport authorized pursuant to this article who is not receiving or competing for, and who has never received or competed for, any purse, money, prize, pecuniary gain, or other thing of value exceeding seventy-five dollars or the allowable amount established by the authorized amateur sanctioning entity overseeing the competition.**

2. "Authorized sanctioning entity" means an entity allowed to oversee and conduct combative sports pursuant to regulations promulgated by the commission.

3. "Combative sport" means any unarmed bout, contest, competition, match, or exhibition undertaken to entertain an audience, wherein the participants primarily grapple or wrestle, or deliver blows of any kind to, or use force in any way to manipulate, the body of another participant, and wherein the outcome and score depend entirely on such activities.

4. "Commission" means the state athletic commission as provided for in section one thousand three of this article, or an agent or employee of the state athletic commission acting on its behalf.

5. "Mixed martial arts" means a combative sport wherein the rules of engagement do not limit the participants to a single, systematic, fighting discipline.

6. "Professional" means any participant in a combative sport authorized pursuant to this article, other than an amateur, who is receiving or competing for, or who has ever received or competed for, any purse, money, prize, pecuniary gain, or other thing exceeding seventy-five dollars in value.

§ 1001. Combative sports authorized. Combative sports conducted under the supervision of the commission, under the supervision of an authorized sanctioning entity, or as provided for in section one thousand twenty-one of this article, are hereby authorized. Authorized combative sports include, amateur and professional boxing, wrestling, sparring, kick boxing, single discipline martial arts and mixed martial arts, pursuant to the provisions of this article. --A

§ 1002. Combative sports prohibited. 1. The conduct of combative sports outside the supervision of the commission or an authorized sanctioning entity is prohibited.

2. A person advances a prohibited combative sport when, acting other than as a spectator, he or she engages in conduct which materially aids any unauthorized combative sport. Such conduct includes but is not limited to conduct directed toward the creation, establishment or performance of a prohibited combative sport, toward the acquisition or maintenance of premises, paraphernalia, equipment or apparatus therefor, toward the solicitation or inducement of persons to attend or participate therein, toward the actual conduct of the performance thereof, toward the arrangement of any of its financial or promotional phases, or toward any other phase of a prohibited combative sport. One advances a prohibited combative sport when, having substantial proprietary or other authoritative control over premises being used with his or her knowledge for purposes of a prohibited combative sport, he or she permits such to occur or continue or makes no effort to prevent its occurrence or continuation.

3. A person profits from a prohibited combative sport when he or she accepts or receives money or other property with intent to participate in the proceeds of a prohibited combative sport, or pursuant to an agreement or understanding with any person whereby he or she participates or is to participate in the proceeds of a prohibited combative sport.

§ 1003. State athletic commission. 1. The state athletic commission, as named by chapter nine hundred twelve of the laws of nineteen hundred twenty, as amended by chapter six hundred three of the laws of nineteen hundred eighty-one, is continued as a division of the department of state. The commission shall act in the best interests of combative sports. The commission is enacted to protect the health, safety and general welfare of all participants in combative sports and spectators thereof, to preserve the integrity of combative sports through the means of licensing, oversight, enforcement and the authorization of sanctioning entities, and to facilitate the development and responsible conduct of combative sports throughout the entire state. The commission shall consist of five members who shall be appointed by the governor by and with the advice and consent of the senate. The governor shall designate one of the members as chairperson of the commission. The members of the commission shall be appointed for terms of three years. Any vacancy in the

membership of the commission caused otherwise than by expiration of term shall be filled only for the balance of the term of the member in whose position the vacancy occurs.

2. The commissioners shall be paid their actual and necessary traveling and other expenses incurred by them in the performance of their official duties. The members of the commission shall adopt a seal for the commission, and make such rules for the administration of their office, not inconsistent herewith, as they may deem expedient; and they may amend or abrogate such rules. Three of the members of the commission shall constitute a quorum to do business; and the concurrence of a majority of the commissioners present shall be necessary to render a determination by the commission. The commission is vested with the authority to adopt such rules and regulations as necessary to effectuate the provisions of this article.

§ 1004. Jurisdiction of the commission. The commission shall have and is hereby vested with the sole direction, management, control and jurisdiction over: 1. all authorized combative sports; --A

2. all licenses or permits granted by the commission to any and all persons or entities who participate in authorized combative sports;

3. all determinations regarding the authorization of amateur and professional sanctioning entities;

4. all gyms, clubs, training camps and other organizations that maintain training facilities to prepare persons for participation in authorized professional combative sports;

5. the promotion of professional wrestling exhibitions to the extent provided for in this article; and

6. all contracts directly related to the conduct of authorized professional combative sports in the state of New York.

7. All disclosures to the commission shall be deemed confidential.

§ 1005. Officers and employees of the commission. The secretary of state may appoint, and at his or her pleasure remove, an executive director, deputies, officers, inspectors, physicians and any such other employees as may be necessary to administer the provisions of this article and fix their salaries within the amount appropriated therefor.

§ 1006. Sanctioning entities. 1. The commission shall promulgate regulations establishing a process by which entities may be recognized and approved by the commission as authorized sanctioning entities for a period of time to be established by the commission, during which the entity will be allowed to oversee and conduct combative sports within the state of New York. The commission may, in its reasonable discretion, limit the scope of any recognition and approval of a sanctioning entity to the oversight and conduct of one or more specific combat disciplines, amateur or professional combative sports, or to any combination of the foregoing based on the qualifications, integrity and history of the entity seeking authorization as a sanctioning entity.

2. The commission shall evaluate factors including but not limited to:

(a) the entity's stated mission and primary purpose;

(b) whether the entity requires participants in combative sports to use hand, foot and groin protection;

(c) whether the entity has an established set of rules that requires the immediate termination of any combative sport when any participant has endured severe punishment or is in danger of suffering serious physical injury; and

(d) whether the entity has established protocols to effectuate the appropriate and timely medical treatment of injured persons.

§ 1007. Licenses; general provisions. 1. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six, one thousand eleven, and one thousand seventeen of this article, with respect to all authorized professional combative sports in this state, all corporations, entities, persons, referees, judges, match-makers, timekeepers, professionals, and their managers, trainers, and seconds shall be licensed by the commission. No such corporation, entity or person shall be permitted to participate, either directly or indirectly, in any authorized professional combative sport, or the holding thereof, or the operation of any training facility providing contact sparring maintained either exclusively or in part for the use of professional boxers or professional mixed martial arts participants, unless such corporation or persons shall have first procured a license from the commission. The commission shall establish by rule and regulation licensing standards for all licensees.

2. Every application for a license shall be in a form prescribed by the commission, shall be addressed to the commission, shall be subscribed by the applicant, and affirmed by him or her as true under the penalties of perjury, and shall set forth such facts as the --A provisions hereof and the rules and regulations of the commission may require.

3. (a) The commission shall establish reasonable fees, terms and renewal terms for licenses, permits and other authorizations issued pursuant to this article, provided, however, that all terms, renewal terms and fees in effect pursuant to chapter nine hundred twelve of the laws of nineteen hundred twenty, and any subsequent amendments thereto, immediately prior to the enactment of this article, shall remain fixed at their prior statutory levels for a period of two years from enactment of this article. The commission shall publish all fees, including the aforementioned, in a single location on its website. All fees set by the commission pursuant to this section shall be subject to the approval of the director of the budget.

(b) With respect to the fees established by the commission pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subdivision, when such fees are payable in relation to authorized combative sports constituting mixed martial arts, the following shall apply:

(i) by promoters, for contests held where the seating capacity is not more than two thousand five hundred, the promoter shall pay not more than five hundred dollars;

(ii) by promoters, for contests held where the seating capacity is greater than two thousand five hundred, but not more than five thousand, the promoter shall pay not more than one thousand dollars;

(iii) by promoters, for contests held where the seating capacity is greater than five thousand, but not more than fifteen thousand, the promoter shall pay not more than one thousand five hundred dollars;

(iv) by promoters, for contests held where the seating capacity is greater than fifteen thousand, but not more than twenty-five thousand, the promoter shall pay not more than two thousand five hundred dollars;

(v) by promoters, for contests held where the seating capacity is greater than twenty-five thousand, the promoter shall pay not more than three thousand dollars;

(vi) for referees and judges, not more than one hundred dollars;

(vii) for professional participants, managers and trainers not more than fifty dollars; and

(viii) for chief seconds, not more than forty dollars.

4. Any license, temporary work permit or other authorization issued under the provisions of this article may be revoked or suspended by the commission when the licensee, permittee or authorized entity has, in the judgment of the commission, violated any provision of this article, rule or order of the commission, demonstrated conduct detrimental to the interests of authorized combative sports generally or to the public interest, or when the commission deems it to be in the best interests of the health and safety of the licensee.

(a) Any licensee who suffered a knockout or technical knockout in a combative sport may, upon the recommendation of the attending commission physician, be suspended by the commission, for a period determined by the commission, and shall forfeit his or her license to the commission during such period. Such license shall not be returned to the licensee until he or she has met all requirements, medical and otherwise, for reinstatement of such license. All such suspensions shall be recorded in his or her license by a commission official.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if any other state shall revoke a licensee's license to compete in combative sports in that state, then the commission may act to revoke any license issued to such licensee pursuant to the provisions of this article. --A

§ 1008. Licenses; judges. 1. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, only a person licensed by the commission, as a combative sports judge, may judge an authorized professional combative sport within the state. Judges for any authorized professional combative sport under the jurisdiction of the commission shall be selected by the commission from a list of qualified licensed judges maintained by the commission.

2. Any participant in a professional combative sport or his or her manager may protest the assignment of a judge to a contest and the participant or manager may be heard by the commission or its designee if such protest is timely. If the protest is untimely it shall be summarily rejected.

3. Each person seeking to be licensed as a judge by the commission shall be required to submit to or provide proof of an eye examination and annually thereafter on the anniversary of the issuance of the license. The commission shall establish continuing education programs and requirements to be completed by licensed judges. Each judge must be certified as having completed a training program as approved by the commission and shall pass an examination approved by the commission.

4. Each person seeking a license to judge authorized professional combative sports in the state shall be required to fill out a financial questionnaire certifying under penalty of perjury full disclosure of the judge's financial situation on a questionnaire to be promulgated by the commission. Such questionnaire shall be in a form and manner approved by the commission and shall provide information as to areas of actual or potential conflict of interest as well as appearances of such conflicts, including financial responsibility. Within forty-eight hours of any match, each judge of a professional combative sport shall file with the commission a financial disclosure statement in such form and manner as shall be acceptable to the commission.

§ 1009. Licenses; entities. 1. (a) Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, only entities licensed by the commission may conduct an authorized professional combative sport within the state. The commission may, in its discretion, issue a license to conduct or hold authorized professional combative sports, subject to the provisions hereof, to any person or corporation duly incorporated, or limited liability company authorized, under the laws of the state of New York.

(b) A prospective licensee must submit to the commission proof that it can furnish suitable premises, as determined by the commission, in which such combative sport is to be held.

(c) Upon written application the commission may grant to any entity holding a license issued hereunder, the privilege of holding such a match or exhibition on a specified date in other premises, or in another location, than the premises or location previously approved by the commission, subject however to approval of the commission and the rules and regulations of the commission.

2. (a) The commission may, in its discretion and in accordance with regulations adopted by the commission to protect the health and safety of professionals in training, issue a license to operate a training facility providing contact sparring maintained either exclusively or in part for the use of professional combative sports participants. At a minimum, any such regulation shall require:

(i) first aid materials to be stored in an accessible location on the premises and for the presence on the premises of a person trained and certified in the use of such materials and procedures for cardio-pulmonary resuscitation at all times during which the facility is open for training purposes;

(ii) clean and sanitary bathrooms, shower rooms, and locker rooms;

(iii) adequate ventilation and lighting of accessible areas of the training facility;

(iv) establishment of a policy concerning the restriction of smoking in training areas, including provisions for its enforcement by the facility operator;

(v) compliance with state and local fire ordinances;

(vi) inspection and approval of surfaces on which training for combative sports will be held; and

(vii) establishment of a policy for posting all commission license suspensions and license revocations received from the commission including provisions for enforcement of such suspensions and revocations by the facility operator.

(b) A prospective entity licensee shall submit to the commission proof that it can furnish suitable facilities in which the training is to be conducted, including the making of such training facilities available for inspection by the commission at any time during which training is in progress.

§ 1010. Licenses; professionals. 1. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six, one thousand eleven and one thousand seventeen of this article, only persons licensed by the commission shall compete in authorized professional combative sports.

2. Any professional applying for a license or renewal of a license to participate in combative sports under this article shall undergo a comprehensive physical examination including clinical neurological examinations by a physician approved by the commission. If, at the time of such examination, there is any indication of brain injury, or for any other reason the physician deems it appropriate, the professional shall be required to undergo further neurological examinations by a neurologist including magnetic resonance imaging or other medically equivalent procedures. The commission shall not issue a license to a professional until such examinations are completed and reviewed by the commission. The results of all such examinations herein required shall become a part of the professional's permanent medical record as maintained by the commission. The costs of all such examinations shall be assumed by the applicant or promoter with which the professional boxer or mixed martial arts participant is affiliated, regardless of provider.

3. Any professional licensed under this article shall, as a condition of licensure, waive right of confidentiality of medical records relating to treatment of any physical condition which relates to his or her ability to fight. All medical reports submitted to, and all medical records of the medical advisory board or the commission relative to the physical



examination or condition of professionals shall be considered confidential, and shall be open to examination only to the commission or its authorized representative, to the licensed professional or manager upon written application to examine said records, or upon the order of a court of competent jurisdiction in an appropriate case.

§ 1011. Temporary working permits. The commission may issue temporary working permits to professionals, their managers, trainers and seconds. A temporary working permit shall authorize the employment of the holder of such permit to engage in a single authorized professional combative sport at a specified time and place. The commission may require that professionals applying for temporary working permits undergo a physical examination and neurological test or procedure, including magnetic resonance imaging or medically equivalent procedure. Temporary working permits shall expire upon the completion of the single authorized professional combative sport and any subsequent evaluations or inspections required by the commission. The fee for such temporary working permit shall be established by the commission pursuant to rule.

§ 1012. Temporary training facilities. The commission in its judgment may exempt from licensing under this article any training facility providing contact sparring established and maintained on a temporary basis for the purpose of preparing professionals for a specific authorized combative sport to be conducted, held or given within the state of New York.

§ 1013. Medical advisory board. 1. The medical advisory board created pursuant to chapter nine hundred twelve of the laws of nineteen hundred twenty, and subsequent amendments thereto is hereby continued without interruption. It shall remain a division of the state athletic commission, and shall consist of nine members to be appointed by the governor. The governor shall designate one of such members as chairperson of the advisory board. The term of a member thereafter appointed, except to fill a vacancy, shall be three years from the expiration of the term of his predecessor. Upon the appointment of a successor to the chairperson of the advisory board, the governor shall designate such successor or other member of the advisory board as chairperson. A vacancy occurring otherwise than by expiration of term, shall be filled by appointment by the governor for the remainder only of the term. Each member of the advisory board shall be duly licensed to practice medicine in the state of New York, and at the time of his or her appointment have had at least five years' experience in the practice of his or her profession. The members of the advisory board shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the commission within the amount provided by appropriation, and shall be allowed and paid necessary traveling and other expenses incurred by them, respectively, in the performance of their duties hereunder.

2. The advisory board shall have power and it shall be the duty of the board to prepare and submit to the commission for approval regulations and standards for the physical examination of professionals including, without limitation, pre-fight and post-fight examinations and periodic comprehensive examinations. The board shall continue to serve in an advisory capacity to the commission and from time to time prepare and submit to the commission for approval, such additional regulations and standards of examination as in their judgment will safeguard the physical welfare of professionals licensed by the commission. The advisory board shall recommend to the commission from time to time such qualified physicians, who may be designated and employed by the commission for the purpose of conducting physical examinations of professionals and other services as the rules of the commission shall provide. Such physicians, if so employed, shall receive compensation as fixed by the commission within amounts appropriated therefor. The provisions of section seventeen of the public officers law shall apply to any physician who:

(a) is designated and employed by the commission; and

(b) is rendering professional services on behalf of the commission to professionals.

3. The advisory board shall develop or recommend appropriate medical education programs for all commission personnel involved in the conduct of authorized combative sports so that such personnel can recognize and act upon

evidence of potential or actual adverse medical indications in a participant prior to, during or after the course of a match. --A

4. The advisory board shall review the credentials and performance of each commission physician on an annual basis.

5. The advisory board shall advise the commission on any study of equipment, procedures or personnel which will, in their opinion, promote the safety of professionals.

§ 1014. Regulation of authorized professional combative sports. The commission shall promulgate regulations governing the conduct of authorized professional combative sports that:

1. establish parameters and limitations on weights and classes of professionals;

2. establish parameters and limitations on the number and duration of rounds;

3. establish the requirements for the presence of medical equipment, medical personnel, an ambulance, other emergency apparatus and an emergency medical plan;

4. establish responsibilities of all licensees before, during and after an event;

5. define unsportsmanlike practices;

6. establish conditions for the forfeiture of any prize, remuneration or purse, or any part thereof based on the conduct of professionals, their managers and seconds;

7. establish parameters and standards for required and allowed equipment items utilized by professionals;

8. establish parameters and standards for rings, combat surfaces and appurtenances thereto; and

9. establish such other rules and conditions as are necessary to effectuate the commission's purpose.

§ 1015. Conduct of authorized professional combative sports. 1. All buildings or structures used or intended to be used for conducting authorized professional combative sports shall be properly ventilated and provided with fire exits and fire escapes, and in all manner conform to the laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to buildings in the city, town or village where situated.

2. No person under the age of eighteen years shall participate in any authorized professional combative sports, and no person under sixteen years of age shall be permitted to attend thereat as a spectator, provided, however, that a person under the age of sixteen may be permitted to attend as a spectator if accompanied by a parent or guardian.

3. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, at each authorized professional combative sport, except where conducted solely for training purposes, there shall be in attendance a duly licensed referee who shall direct and control the same. There shall also be in attendance, except where conducted solely for training purposes, three duly licensed judges who shall at the termination of each such authorized professional combative sport render their decision. The winner shall be determined in accordance with a scoring system prescribed by the commission.

4. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, the commission shall direct an employee of the commission to be present at each place where authorized professional combative

sports are to be conducted. Such employee of the commission shall ascertain the exact conditions surrounding such authorized professional combative sport and make a written report of the same in the manner and form prescribed by the commission. Where authorized professional combative sports are approved to be held in a state or city --A owned armory, the provision of the military law in respect thereto must be complied with.

5. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, any ring or combat surface must be inspected and approved by the commission prior to the commencement of any authorized professional combative sport.

6. Except as otherwise provided in sections one thousand six and one thousand seventeen of this article, all professionals must be examined by a physician designated by the commission before entering the ring or combat surface and each such physician shall immediately file with the commission a written report of such examination. The cost of any such examination, as prescribed by a schedule of fees established by the commission, shall be paid by the corporation conducting the authorized professional combative sport to the commission. It shall be the duty of every person or corporation licensed to conduct an authorized professional combative sport, to have in attendance at every authorized professional combative sport, at least one physician designated by the commission as the rules shall provide. The commission may establish a schedule of fees to be paid by the licensee to cover the cost of such attendance.

7. The physician shall terminate any authorized professional combative sport if in the opinion of such physician any professional has received severe punishment or is in danger of serious physical injury. In the event of any serious physical injury, such physician shall immediately render any emergency treatment necessary, recommend further treatment or hospitalization if required, and fully report the entire matter to the commission within twenty-four hours and if necessary, subsequently thereafter. Such physician may also require that the injured professional and his or her manager remain in the ring or on the premises or report to a hospital after the contest for such period of time as such physician deems advisable. Any professional licensed under this article rendered unconscious or suffering head trauma as determined by the attending physician shall be immediately examined by the attending commission physician and shall be required to undergo neurological examinations by a neurologist including but not limited to magnetic resonance imaging or medically equivalent procedure.

8. Such physician may enter the ring at any time during an authorized professional combative sport and may terminate the match if in his or her opinion the same is necessary to prevent severe punishment or serious physical injury to a professional.

9. Before a license shall be granted to a person or corporation to conduct an authorized professional combative sport, the applicant shall execute and file with the secretary of state a bond in an amount to be determined by the commission, to be approved as to form and sufficiency of sureties thereon by the secretary of state, conditioned for the faithful performance by said corporation of the provisions of this article and the rules and regulations of the commission, and upon the filing and approval of said bond the secretary of state shall issue to said applicant a certificate of such filing and approval, which shall be, by said applicant, filed in the office of the commission with its application for license, and no such license shall be issued until such certificate shall be filed. In case of default in such performance, the commission may impose upon the delinquent a penalty in the sum of not more than one thousand dollars for each offense, which may be recovered by the attorney general in the name of the people of the state of New --A York in the same manner as other penalties are recovered by law; any amount so recovered shall be paid into the treasury.

10. In addition to the bond required by subdivision nine of this section, each applicant for a license to conduct an authorized professional combative sport shall execute and file with the secretary of state a bond in an amount to be determined by the commission to be approved as to form and sufficiency of sureties thereon by the secretary of state, conditioned for and guaranteeing the payment of professionals' and professional wrestlers' purses, salaries of club employees licensed by the commission, and the legitimate expenses of printing tickets and all advertising material.

11. All persons, parties or corporations having licenses as promoters or who are licensed in accordance with section one thousand seventeen of this article shall continuously provide accident insurance or such other form of financial guarantee deemed acceptable by the commission, for the protection of licensed professionals and professional wrestlers, appearing in authorized professional combative sports or wrestling exhibitions. Such accident insurance or financial guarantee shall provide coverage to the licensed professional for: medical, surgical and hospital care, with a minimum limit of fifty thousand dollars for injuries sustained while participating in any program operated under the control of such licensed promoter and for a payment of fifty thousand dollars to the estate of any deceased athlete where such death is occasioned by injuries received in this state during the course of a program in which such licensed professional or professional wrestler participated under the promotion or control of any licensed promoter; and, medical, surgical and hospital care with a minimum limit of one million dollars for the treatment of a life-threatening brain injury sustained in a program operated under the control of such licensed promoter, where an identifiable, causal link exists between the professional licensee's participation in such program and the life-threatening brain injury. Where applicable, professional licensees shall be afforded the option to supplement the premiums for the accident insurance or financial guarantee to increase the coverage beyond the minimum limits required by this subdivision. The commission may from time to time, promulgate regulations to adjust the amount of such minimum limits. The failure to provide such insurance as is required by this subdivision shall be cause for the suspension or the revocation of the license of such defaulting entity.

12. (a) Every individual, corporation, association or club holding any professional or amateur combative sport, including any professional wrestling match or exhibition, for which an admission fee is charged or received, shall notify the athletic commission at least ten days in advance of the holding of such contest. All tickets of admission to any such professional or amateur combative sport or professional wrestling match or exhibition shall be procured from a printer duly authorized by the state athletic commission to print such tickets and shall bear clearly upon the face thereof the purchase price and location of same.

(b) Pursuant to direction by the commissioner of taxation and finance, employees or officers of the commission shall act as agents of the commissioner of taxation and finance to collect the tax imposed by article nineteen of the tax law. The athletic commission shall provide the commissioner of taxation and finance with such information and technical assistance as may be necessary for the proper administration of such tax. --A

§ 1016. Required filings. 1. The organization that promotes, sanctions or otherwise participates in the proposition, selection, or arrangement of one or more professionals for a contest must file with the commission a written statement executed under penalty of perjury stating (a) all charges, expenses, fees, and costs that will be assessed against any professional participating in the event; (b) all payments, benefits, complimentary benefits and fees the organization or entity will receive for its affiliation with the event; (c) the name of the promoter; (d) sponsor of the event; and (e) all other sources, and such other and additional information as required by the commission. Such written statement shall be filed in a form and manner acceptable to the commission.

2. The promoter, organizer, producer or another that participates in the proposition, selection, or arrangement of one or more professionals for a contest must file with the commission a written statement under penalty of perjury detailing all charges, fees, costs and expenses by or through the promoter on the professional pertaining to the event, including any portion of the professional's purse that the promoter will receive and training expenses and all payments, gifts or benefits the promoter is providing to any sanctioning organization affiliated with the event. Such written statement shall be filed in a form and manner acceptable to the commission.

3. The promoter, organizer, producer or another that participates in the proposition, selection, or arrangement of one or more professionals for a contest must file with the commission a copy of any agreement in writing to which the promoter is a party with any professional participating in the match.

4. All contracts calling for the services of a professional in an authorized professional combative sport and entered into by licensed promoters, professionals or managers as one or more of the parties in such contracts, including those contracts which relate to the rights to distribute, televise or otherwise transmit any authorized professional combative sport over the airwaves or by cable shall be subject to the approval of the commission and copies thereof shall be filed with the commission by such corporation, professional or manager within fortyeight hours after the execution of such contract and at least ten business days prior to any bouts, or the first of any series of bouts, to which they relate. The commission may waive such filing deadline for good cause shown.

§ 1017. Professional wrestling; promoters. 1. For the purposes of this article, "professional wrestling" shall mean an activity in which participants struggle hand-in-hand primarily for the purpose of providing entertainment to spectators and which does not comprise a bona fide athletic contest or competition.

2. Every person, partnership or corporation promoting one or more professional wrestling exhibitions in this state shall be required to obtain from the commission an annual license to conduct such exhibitions subject to terms and conditions promulgated by the commission pursuant to rule and consistent with the applicable provisions of this article. Each applicant shall pay an annual fee established by the commission pursuant to rule.

3. A licensed promoter of a professional wrestling exhibition in the state shall notify the athletic commission at least ten days in advance of the holding of the exhibition. Each such promoter shall execute and file with the comptroller a bond in an amount not less than twenty thousand dollars to be approved as to form and sufficiency of sureties thereon by the comptroller, conditioned for and guaranteeing the payment of professional wrestler's purses, salaries of club employees licensed by the commission, the legitimate expenses of printing tickets and all advertising material, payments to sponsoring organizations, and the applicable state and local sales and compensating use tax.

4. A licensed promoter of a professional wrestling exhibition shall provide for a licensed physician to be present at each exhibition, and such physician shall examine each wrestler prior to each performance, and each such pre-performance examination shall be conducted in accordance with regulations prescribed by the commission.

5. Every licensed promoter of professional wrestling who promotes six or more exhibitions in the state in a calendar year must have in place an anti-drug plan and file with the commission a written copy of the plan. Each such plan shall address the use of a controlled substance defined in article thirty-three of the public health law, and such plan shall at minimum provide for the following:

(a) dissemination of educational materials to professional wrestlers who perform for any such promoter including a list of prohibited drugs and available rehabilitation services; and

(b) a referral procedure to permit any such professional wrestler to obtain rehabilitation services.

§ 1018. Prohibited conduct. 1. No corporation or person shall have, either directly or indirectly, any financial interest in a professional boxer competing on premises owned or leased by the corporation or person, or in which such corporation or person is otherwise interested except pursuant to the specific written authorization of the commission.

2. No contestant in a boxing or sparring match or exhibition shall be paid for services before the contest, and should it be determined by the commission that such contestant did not give an honest exhibition of his or her skill, such services shall not be paid for.

3. Any person, including any corporation and the officers thereof, any physician, referee, judge, timekeeper, professional, manager, trainer or second, who shall promote, conduct, give or participate in any sham or collusive authorized

professional combative sports, shall be deprived of his or her license by the commission and any other appropriate legal remedies.

4. No licensed promoter or matchmaker shall knowingly engage in a course of conduct in which fights are arranged where one professional has skills or experience significantly in excess of the other professional so that a mismatch results with the potential of physical harm to the professional.

§ 1019. Penalties. 1. A person who knowingly advances or profits from a prohibited combative sport shall be guilty of a class A misdemeanor, and shall be guilty of a class E felony if he or she has been convicted in the previous five years of violating this subdivision.

2. Any person who knowingly advances or profits from a prohibited combative sport shall also be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed for the first violation ten thousand dollars or twice the amount of gain derived therefrom whichever is greater, or for a subsequent violation twenty-five thousand dollars or twice the amount of gain derived therefrom whichever is greater. The attorney general is hereby empowered to commence judicial proceedings to recover such penalties and to obtain injunctive relief to enforce the provisions of this section.

3. Any person or corporation who directly or indirectly conducts any combative sport without first having procured an appropriate license, or having been designated an authorized sanctioning entity as prescribed in --A this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Any person who participates in a combative sport as a referee, judge, match-maker, timekeeper, professional, manager, trainer, or second without first having procured an appropriate license as prescribed in this article, or where such combative sport is prohibited under this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Any person, partnership or corporation who promotes a professional wrestling match or exhibition in the state without first having procured an appropriate license in accordance with section one thousand seventeen of this article, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.

4. Any corporation, entity, person or persons, licensed, permitted or otherwise authorized under the provisions of this article, that shall knowingly violate any rule or order of the commission or any provision of this article, in addition to any other penalty by law prescribed, shall be liable to a civil penalty not to exceed ten thousand dollars for the first offense and not to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars for the second and each subsequent offense, to be imposed by the commission, to be sued for by the attorney-general in the name of the people of the state of New York if directed by the commission. The commission, for cause shown, may extend the time for the payment of such penalty and, by compromise, may accept less than the amount of such penalty as imposed in settlement thereof. For the purposes of this section, each transaction or statutory violation shall constitute a separate offense, except that a second or subsequent offense shall not be deemed to exist unless a decision has been rendered in a prior, separate and independent proceeding.

5. On the first infraction of rules or regulations promulgated pursuant to subdivision two of section one thousand nine of this article, which infraction may include more than one individual violation, the commission may impose a civil fine of up to two hundred fifty dollars for each health and safety violation and may suspend the training facility's license until the violation or violations are corrected. On the second such infraction, the commission may impose a civil fine of up to five hundred dollars for each health and safety violation and may suspend the training facility's license until the violation or violations are corrected. On the third such infraction or for subsequent infractions, the commission may impose a civil fine of up to seven hundred fifty dollars for each health and safety violation and may revoke the training facility's license.

6. Any individual, corporation, association or club failing to fully comply with paragraph (a) of subdivision twelve of section one thousand fifteen of this article shall be subject to a penalty of five hundred dollars to be collected by and paid to the department of state. Any individual, corporation, association or club is prohibited from operating any shows



or exhibitions until all penalties due pursuant to this section and taxes, interest and penalties due pursuant to article nineteen of the tax law have been paid.

7. All penalties imposed and collected by the commission from any corporation, entity, person or persons licensed under the provisions of this article, which fines and penalties are imposed and collected under authority hereby vested shall within thirty days after the receipt thereof by the commission be paid by them into the state treasury.

§ 1020. Subpoenas by commission; oaths. The commission shall have authority to issue, under the hand of its chairperson, and the seal of the commission, subpoenas for the attendance of witnesses before the commission. A subpoena issued under this section shall be regulated by the civil practice law and rules. --A

§ 1021. Exceptions. The provisions of this article except as provided in subdivision twelve of section one thousand fifteen of this article shall not be construed to apply to any sparring or boxing contest or exhibition conducted under the supervision or the control of the New York state national guard or naval militia where all of the contestants are members of the active militia; nor to any such contest or exhibition where the contestants are all amateurs, sponsored by and under the supervision of any university, college, school or other institution of learning, recognized by the regents of the state of New York; nor to any business entity incorporated for the purposes of providing instruction and evaluation in a combative sport to customers for the purposes of health and fitness, personal development, self-defense or participation in amateur events conducted by an authorized sanctioning entity; nor to any such contest or exhibitions where the contestants are all amateurs sponsored by and under the supervision of the American Olympic Association or, in the case of boxing, the U.S. Amateur Boxing Federation or its local affiliates or the American Olympic Association; nor except as to the extent provided otherwise in this article, to any professional wrestling contest or exhibition as defined in this article. Any individual, association, corporation or club, except elementary or high schools or equivalent institutions of learning recognized by the regents of the state of New York, who or which conducts an amateur contest pursuant to this section must register with the U. S. Amateur Boxing Federation or its local affiliates and abide by its rules and regulations.

§ 1022. Disposition of receipts. All receipts of the commission shall be paid into the state treasury, provided, however, that receipts from the tax imposed by article nineteen of the tax law shall be deposited as provided by section one hundred seventy-one-a of the tax law.

§ 3. Subdivision 1 of section 451 of the tax law, as amended by section 1 of part F of chapter 407 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

1. "Gross receipts from ticket sales" shall mean the total gross receipts of every person from the sale of tickets to any professional or amateur boxing, sparring or wrestling match or exhibition **authorized combative sport** held in this state, and without any deduction whatsoever for commissions, brokerage, distribution fees, advertising or any other expenses, charges and recoupments in respect thereto.

§ 4. Section 451 of the tax law is amended by adding a new subdivision 4 to read as follows:

4. "Authorized combative sport" shall mean any combative sport authorized pursuant to section one thousand one of the general business law.

§ 5. Section 452 of the tax law, as amended by section 2 of part F of chapter 407 of the laws of 1999, is amended to read as follows:

§ 452. Imposition of tax. **1.** On and after October first, nineteen hundred ninety-nine, a tax is hereby imposed and shall be paid upon the gross receipts of every person holding any professional or amateur boxing, sparring or wrestling match or exhibition in this state. Such tax shall be imposed on such gross receipts, exclusive of any federal taxes, as follows:

(a) three percent of gross receipts from ticket sales, except that in no event shall the tax imposed by this ~~subdivision~~ **paragraph** exceed fifty thousand dollars for any match or exhibition;

(b) three percent of gross receipts from broadcasting rights, except that in no event shall the tax imposed by this ~~subdivision~~ **paragraph** exceed fifty thousand dollars for any match or exhibition. --A

**2. On and after the effective date of this subdivision, a tax is hereby imposed and shall be paid upon the gross receipts of every person holding any authorized combative sport in this state, other than any professional or amateur boxing, sparring or wrestling exhibition or match, exclusive of any federal taxes as follows:**

**(a) eight and one-half percent of gross receipts from ticket sales; and**

**(b) three percent of the sum of (i) gross receipts from broadcasting rights, and (ii) gross receipts from digital streaming over the internet, except that in no event shall such tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph exceed fifty thousand dollars for any match or exhibition.**

§ 6. The article heading of article 19 of the tax law, as added by chapter 833 of the laws of 1987, is amended to read as follows:

~~BOXING AND WRESTLING EXHIBITIONS~~ **AUTHORIZED COMBATIVE**

**SPORTS TAX**

§ 7. Paragraph 1 of subdivision (f) of section 1105 of the tax law, as amended by section 100 of part A of chapter 389 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(1) Any admission charge where such admission charge is in excess of ten cents to or for the use of any place of amusement in the state, except charges for admission to race tracks, ~~boxing, sparring or wrestling matches or exhibitions~~ **or authorized combative sports** which charges are taxed under any other law of this state, or dramatic or musical arts performances, or live circus performances, or motion picture theaters, and except charges to a patron for admission to, or use of, facilities for sporting activities in which such patron is to be a participant, such as bowling alleys and swimming pools. For any person having the permanent use or possession of a box or seat or a lease or a license, other than a season ticket, for the use of a box or seat at a place of amusement, the tax shall be upon the amount for which a similar box or seat is sold for each performance or exhibition at which the box or seat is used or reserved by the holder, licensee or lessee, and shall be paid by the holder, licensee or lessee.

§ 8. The section heading of section 1820 of the tax law, as amended by section 32 of subpart I of part V-1 of chapter 57 of the laws of 2009, is amended to read as follows:

~~Boxing and wrestling exhibitions~~ **Authorized combative sports tax.**

§ 9. Paragraph (b) of subdivision 6-c of section 106 of the alcoholic beverage control law, as added by chapter 254 of the laws of 2001, is amended to read as follows:

(b) The prohibition contained in paragraph (a) of this subdivision, however, shall not be applied to any ~~professional match or exhibition which consists of boxing, sparring, wrestling, or martial arts and which is excepted from the definition of the term "combative sport" contained in subdivision one of section five-a of chapter nine hundred twelve of the laws of nineteen hundred twenty, as added by chapter fourteen of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-seven~~ **authorized combative sport**.

§ 10. The department of state, with the assistance of the state athletic commission, medical advisory board, departments of health and financial services, state insurance fund, division of budget and such other state entities as appropriate, shall carefully consider potential mechanisms to provide financial resources for the payment of expenses related to medical and rehabilitative care for professionals licensed under article forty-one of the general business law who experience debilitating brain injuries associated with repetitive head injuries sustained through their participation in combative sports. The depart- --A ment of state may consult and contract with third parties for services in the course of this review. The department of state shall report its findings and recommendations to the governor, temporary president of the senate and speaker of the assembly within eighteen months of the effective date of this section. In addition to the foregoing, within twelve months of the effective date of this section, the state athletic commission shall make any recommendations to the governor, temporary president of the senate and speaker of the assembly regarding legislative changes which may be necessary to effectuate the purpose and intent of this chapter, including, but not limited to, appropriate adjustments to the insurance requirements contained therein.

§ 11. This act shall take effect on the first day of the first month next succeeding the one hundred twentieth day after it shall have become a law and shall apply to gross receipts from combative sports held on or after that date; provided, however, that the addition, amendment and/or repeal of any rule or regulation of the state athletic commission necessary for the implementation of this act on its effective date is authorized to be made on or before such effective date.

#### PART P

Section 1. Section 2 of chapter 584 of the laws of 2011, amending the public authorities law relating to the powers and duties of the dormitory authority of the state of New York relative to the establishment of subsidiaries for certain purposes, as amended by section 1 of part X of chapter 57 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows:

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall expire and be deemed repealed on July 1, 2016 **2018**; provided however, that the expiration of this act shall not impair or otherwise affect any of the powers, duties, responsibilities, functions, rights or liabilities of any subsidiary duly created pursuant to subdivision twenty-five of section 1678 of the public authorities law prior to such expiration.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately.

#### PART Q

Section 1. Subdivisions 10, 11, 12 and 13 of section 351 of the public authorities law are REPEALED and subdivision 14 of such section is renumbered subdivision 10.

§ 2. Subdivisions 6, 8 and 10 of section 354 of the public authorities law, subdivision 6 as amended by chapter 506 of the laws of 2009, and subdivisions 8 and 10 as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, are amended to read as follows:

6. To appoint officers, agents and employees and fix their compensation, provided, however, that the appointment of the executive director shall be subject to confirmation by the senate in accordance with section twenty-eight hundred fifty-two of this chapter; subject however to the provisions of the civil service law, which shall apply to the authority ~~and to the subsidiary corporation thereof~~ as a municipal corporation other than a city;

8. Subject to agreements with noteholders or bondholders, to fix and collect such fees, rentals and charges for the use of the thruway system or any part thereof necessary or convenient, with an adequate margin of safety, to produce sufficient revenue to meet the expense of maintenance and operation and to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with the holders of its notes or bonds, and to establish the rights --A and privileges granted upon payment thereof; ~~provided, however, that tolls may only be imposed for the passage through locks and lift bridges by vessels which are propelled in whole or in part by mechanical power; and provided further that no tolls shall be imposed or collected prior to the first day of April, nineteen hundred ninety-three .~~

10. To construct, reconstruct or improve on or along the thruway system in the manner herein provided, suitable facilities for gas stations, restaurants, and other facilities for the public, or to lease the right to construct, reconstruct or improve and operate such facilities; such facilities shall be publicly offered for leasing for operation, or the right to construct, reconstruct or improve and operate such facilities shall be publicly offered under rules and regulations to be established by the authority, provided, however, that lessees operating such facilities at the time this act becomes effective, may reconstruct or improve them or may construct additional like facilities, in the manner and upon such terms and conditions as the board shall determine; ~~and provided further, however, that such facilities constructed, reconstructed or improved on or along the canal system shall be consistent with the canal recreationway plan approved pursuant to section one hundred thirty-eight-c of the canal law and section three hundred eighty-two of this title ;~~

§ 3. Section 355 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 138 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

§ 355. Officers and employees; transfer, promotion and seniority. 1. Officers and employees of state departments, agencies, ~~or the canal corporation~~ **or divisions** may be transferred to the authority and officers, agents and employees of the authority may be transferred to state departments, agencies, ~~or the canal corporation~~ **or divisions**, without examination and without loss of any civil service status or rights. No such transfer from the authority ~~or canal corporation~~ to any state department, agency, or division may, however, be made except with the approval of the head of the state department, agency, or division involved and the director of the budget and in compliance with the rules and regulations of the state civil service commission.

2. Promotions from positions in state departments and agencies to positions in the authority ~~or canal corporation~~ , and vice versa, may be made from interdepartmental promotion lists resulting from promotion examinations in which employees of the authority, ~~employees of the canal corporation,~~ and employees of the state are eligible to participate.

3. In computing seniority for purposes of promotion or for purposes of suspension or demotion upon the abolition of positions in the service of the authority or in the service of the state, in the case of an employee of the authority a period of prior employment in the service of the state shall be counted in the same manner as though such period of employment had been in the service of the authority, and in the case of an employee of the state a period of prior employment in the service of the authority shall be counted in the same manner as though such period of employment had been in the service of the state. For the purposes of the establishment and certification of preferred lists, employees suspended from the authority shall be eligible for reinstatement in the service of the state, and employees suspended from the service of the state shall be eligible for reinstatement in the service of the authority, in the same manner as though the authority were a department of the state. ~~All provisions contained within this subdivision shall apply to --A the canal corporation in the same manner that they apply to the authority.~~

§ 4. Section 357 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, is amended to read as follows:

§ 357. Right of authority to use state property; payment for improvements. On assuming jurisdiction of a thruway highway section or connection or any part thereof, or of a highway connection, ~~or of the New York state canal system,~~ the authority shall have the right to possess and use for its corporate purposes so long as its corporate existence shall continue, any real property and rights in real property theretofore acquired by the state, including all improvements thereon ~~and state canal lands and properties; provided that the use by the authority of canal lands and properties for highway purposes shall not interfere with the use thereof for canal purposes .~~

§ 5. Subdivisions 2 and 3 of section 357-a of the public authorities law are REPEALED and subdivision 1, as added by section 1 of part E of chapter 58 of the laws of 2013, is amended to read as follows:

1. Enforcement assistance shall be provided by the division of state police at a level consistent with historical precedents, as a matter of state interest, on all sections of the thruway. The authority shall provide goods and services to the division of state police in connection with its enforcement activity on the thruway. The division of state police and the authority shall enter into an agreement identifying those goods and services that the authority will provide to the division of state police and determine reporting and other requirements related thereto. Any costs borne by the state police outside of such agreement shall not be reimbursed by the authority nor shall they be deemed costs of the authority **the request of the authority shall be reimbursed by the authority to the division of state police from the general reserve fund established by the authority under its agreement with bondholders, after payment of any amounts due on any bonds or notes of the authority. The comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to deposit to the policing NYS thruway account, revenues received from the authority as reimbursement for personal service expenses including general state charges. In addition, the authority shall reimburse the division of state police for non-personal service expenses connected with such assistance. Such reimbursement shall be made from such general reserve fund. The authority shall deposit said reimbursement funds for non-personal service expenses to the credit of the division of state police. No payments made by the authority under this subsection shall be deemed operating expenses of the authority.**

§ 6. Subdivision 1 of section 359 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, is amended to read as follows:

1. On assuming jurisdiction of a thruway section or connection or any part thereof, or of a highway connection, ~~or of the New York state canal system,~~ the authority shall proceed with the construction, reconstruction or improvement thereof. All such work shall be done pursuant to a contract or contracts which shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder, by sealed proposals publicly opened, after public advertisement and upon such terms and conditions as the authority shall require; provided, however, that the authority may reject any and all proposals and may advertise for new proposals, as herein provided, if in its opinion, the best interests of the authority will thereby be promoted; provided further, however, that at the request of the authority, all or any portion of such work, together with any engineering required by the --A authority in connection therewith, shall be performed by the commissioner and his subordinates in the department of transportation as agents for, and at the expense of, the authority.

§ 7. Section 359-a of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 140 of the laws of 2002, is amended to read as follows:

§ 359-a. Procurement contracts. For the purposes of section twentyeight hundred seventy-nine of this chapter as applied to the authority ~~or the canal corporation~~, the term "procurement contract" shall mean any written agreement for the acquisition of goods or services of any kind by the authority ~~or the canal corporation~~ in the actual or estimated amount of fifteen thousand dollars or more.

§ 8. Section 360 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, is amended to read as follows:

§ 360. Operation and maintenance. Operation and maintenance by the authority of any thruway section or connection or any part thereof or of a highway connection, ~~the New York state canal system~~ of which it has assumed jurisdiction shall be performed (a) by the use of authority forces and equipment at the expense of the authority or by agreement at the expense of the state or other parties; (b) by contract with municipalities or independent contractors; (c) at the request of the authority, by the commissioner and his subordinates in the department of transportation as agents for, and at the expense of the authority, or (d) by a combination of such methods.

§ 9. Section 362 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, is amended to read as follows:

§ 362. Assistance by state officers, departments, boards, divisions and commissions. At the request of the authority, engineering and legal services for such authority shall be performed by forces or officers of the department of transportation and the department of law respectively, and all other state officers, departments, boards, divisions and commissions shall render services within their respective functions. At the request of the authority, services in connection with the collection of any charges or fees for the use of the thruway, ~~the New York state canal system~~ or any part thereof may be performed by the department of motor vehicles.

§ 10. Paragraph (a) of subdivision 1, and paragraph (i) of subdivision 3 of section 365 of the public authorities law, as amended by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, are amended to read as follows:

(a) Subject to the provisions of section three hundred sixty-six of this title, the authority shall have the power and is hereby authorized from time to time to issue its negotiable notes and bonds in conformity with applicable provisions of the uniform commercial code in such principal amount as, in the opinion of the authority, shall be necessary to provide sufficient moneys for achieving the corporate purposes thereof, including construction, reconstruction and improvement of the thruway sections and connections, and highway connections herein described, ~~the New York state canal system subject to the provisions of section three hundred eighty-three of this title,~~ together with suitable facilities and appurtenances, the payment of all indebtedness to the state, the cost of acquisition of all real property, the expense of maintenance and operation, interest on notes and bonds during construction and for a reasonable period thereafter, establishment of reserves to secure notes or bonds, and all other expenditures of the authority incident to and necessary or convenient to carry out its corporate purposes and powers. --A

(i) the acquisition of jurisdiction over, and of property for, thruways, ~~the New York state canal system,~~ and the construction, reconstruction, improvement, maintenance or operation thereof;

§ 11. Section 382 of the public authorities law is REPEALED.

§ 12. Section 383 of the public authorities law is REPEALED.

§ 13. Section 388 of the public authorities law, as added by chapter 500 of the laws of 2011, is amended to read as follows:

§ 388. Limitation on powers of the authority. A department, authority, division or agency of the state shall not offer or permit any officer or employee of such department, authority, division or agency to use a pass to access and/or use the thruway system without the officer's or employee's personal payment of tolls except when the use of such a pass and/or use of the thruway system without personal payment of tolls occurs in the normal course of the employment or duties of such officer or employee. This section shall not diminish the rights of any employee pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement.

§ 14. Subdivisions 18 and 21 of section 2 of the canal law, subdivision 18 as amended and subdivision 21 as renumbered by chapter 335 of the laws of 2001, subdivision 21 as added by chapter 442 of the laws of 1996, are amended and a new subdivision 24 is added to read as follows:

18. "Authority" shall mean the ~~New York state thruway authority, a body corporate and politic constituting a public corporation created and constituted pursuant to title nine of article two~~ **power authority of the state of New York, a body corporate and politic constituting a political subdivision of the state created and constituted pursuant to title one of article five** of the public authorities law.



21. "Corporation" **and "canal corporation"** shall mean the New York state canal corporation, ~~a subsidiary of the New York state thruway authority,~~ **a public benefit corporation** created pursuant to ~~section three hundred eighty-two of the public authorities law~~ **chapter seven hundred sixty-six of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-two and continued and reconstituted as a subsidiary corporation of the power authority of the state of New York pursuant to subdivision one of section one thousand five-b of the public authorities law.**

24. **"Thruway authority" shall mean the New York state thruway authority, a body corporate and politic constituting a public corporation created and constituted pursuant to title nine of article two of the public authorities law.**

§ 15. The article heading of article 1-A of the canal law, as added by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, is amended to read as follows:

TRANSFER TO NEW YORK STATE THRUWAY AUTHORITY

#### **POWER AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK**

§ 16. Section 5 of the canal law, as amended by amended chapter 335 of the laws of 2001, is amended to read as follows:

§ 5. Transfer of powers and duties relating to canals and canal lands to the ~~New York state thruway authority~~ **power authority of the state of New York.** The powers and duties of the ~~commissioner of transportation~~ **thruway authority** relating to the New York state canal system as set forth in articles one through and including fourteen, except article seven, of this chapter, and except properties in use on the effective date of this article in support of highway maintenance, equipment management and traffic signal operations of the department of transportation, **heretofore transferred by the commissioner of transportation to the thruway authority,** are hereby transferred to and merged with the authority, to be exercised by the authority **directly or through the canal corporation** on behalf of the people of the state of New York. In --A addition, the commissioner of transportation and the ~~chairman~~ **chair** of the authority **or his or her designee** may, in their discretion, enter into an agreement or agreements transferring the powers and duties of the commissioner of transportation relating to any or all of the bridges and highways as set forth in article seven of this chapter, to be exercised by the authority **directly or through the canal corporation** on behalf of the people of the state of New York, and, **as determined to be feasible and advisable by the authority's trustees,** shall enter into an agreement or agreements **directly or through the canal corporation** for the financing, construction, reconstruction or improvement of lift and movable bridges on the canal system. Such powers shall be in addition to other powers enumerated in title ~~nine~~ **one** of article ~~two~~ **five** of the public authorities law. All of the provisions of title ~~nine~~ **one** of article ~~two~~ **five** of such law which are not inconsistent with this chapter shall apply to the actions and duties of the authority pursuant to this chapter. The authority shall be deemed to be the state in exercising the powers and duties transferred pursuant to this section but for no other purposes.

§ 17. Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 of section 6 of the canal law, subdivisions 2 and 5 as added by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, and subdivisions 1, 3 and 4 as amended by chapter 335 of the laws of 2001, are amended to read as follows:

1. The jurisdiction of the ~~commissioner of transportation~~ **thruway authority** over the New York state canal system and over all state assets, equipment and property, both tangible and intangible, owned or used in connection with the planning, development, construction, reconstruction, maintenance and operation of the New York state canal system, as set forth in articles one through and including fourteen, except article seven, of this chapter, and except properties in use on the effective date of this article in support of highway maintenance, equipment management and traffic signal operations of the department of transportation, **heretofore transferred by the commissioner of transportation to the thruway authority,** are hereby transferred without consideration to the authority, to be held by the authority in the name of the people of the state of New York. In addition the commissioner of transportation and the ~~chairman~~ **chair** of the authority **or his or her designee** may, in their discretion, enter into an agreement or agreements transferring jurisdiction over any or all of the bridges and highways

set forth in article seven of this chapter, and any or all state assets, equipment and property, both tangible and intangible, owned or used in connection with the planning, development, construction, reconstruction, maintenance and operation of such bridges and highways, which shall be transferred without consideration to the authority, to be held by the authority through the corporation in the name of the people of the state of New York. Any other rights and obligations resulting from or arising out of the planning, development, construction, reconstruction, operation or maintenance of the New York state canal system shall be deemed assigned to and shall be exercised by the authority through the corporation, except that the authority may designate the ~~commissioner of transportation~~ **chair of the thruway authority** to be its agent for the operation and maintenance of the New York state canal system, provided that such designation shall have no force or effect after ~~March thirty-first, nineteen hundred ninety-three~~ **January first, two thousand seventeen**. Such canal system shall remain the property of the state and under its management and control as exercised by and through the authority, through the corporation which shall be deemed to be the state for --A the purposes of such management and control of the canals but for no other purposes.

2. The department of transportation ~~and thruway authority~~ shall deliver to the authority all books, policies, procedures, papers, plans, maps, records, equipment and property of such department pertaining to the functions transferred pursuant to this article.

3. All rules, regulations, acts, determinations, orders and decisions of the commissioner of transportation ~~and of the~~ department of transportation, ~~or thruway authority~~ pertaining to the functions transferred pursuant to this article in force at the time of such transfer shall continue in force and effect as rules, regulations, acts, determinations, orders and decisions of the authority and corporation until duly modified or abrogated by such authority ~~and~~ **or** corporation.

4. Any business or other matters undertaken or commenced by the ~~commissioner of transportation or the department of transportation~~ **thruway authority**, including executed contracts, permits and other agreements, **but excluding bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness**, pertaining to or connected with the functions, powers, obligations and duties ~~and obligations~~ transferred pursuant to this article, and in effect on the effective date hereof **of the transfer of such matters from the thruway authority to the authority provided for in this article**, shall, **except as otherwise agreed by the authority and the thruway authority**, be conducted and completed by the authority through the corporation in the same manner and under the same terms and conditions and with the same effect as if conducted and completed by the ~~commissioner of transportation or the department of transportation~~ **thruway authority**, **provided that nothing in this subdivision shall be deemed to require the authority to take any action in a manner that would in its judgment be inconsistent with the provisions of any bond or note resolution or any other contract with the holders of the authority's bonds, notes or other obligations**.

5. No existing rights or remedies of the state, ~~including the~~ authority, **thruway authority, or canal corporation** shall be lost, impaired or affected by reason of this article.

§ 18. Subdivision 6 of section 6 of the canal law, as added by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, paragraph (b) as amended by chapter 335 of the laws of 2001, is amended and a new subdivision 7 is added to read as follows:

6. (a) No action or proceeding pending on the effective date of this article; **the transfer of powers, duties and obligations from the thruway authority to the authority** brought by or against **the thruway authority**, the commissioner of transportation ~~or~~ **the corporation**, the department of transportation ~~or the authority~~ shall be affected by this article. Any liability arising out of any act or omission occurring prior to the effective date of the transfer of **the powers and** duties authorized herein ~~and obligations from the thruway authority to the authority~~, of the officers, employees or agents of **the thruway authority**, the department of transportation, or any other agency of the state, other than the authority, in the performance of their obligations or duties under the canal law, any other law of the state or any federal law, or pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the effective date of such transfer, shall remain a liability of **the thruway authority**, the department of transportation or such other agency of the state and not of the authority.

(b) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in paragraph (a) of this subdivision, the state shall indemnify and hold harm- --A less the **thruway authority** ~~and~~ **the** corporation ~~and the authority~~ for any and all claims, damages, or

liabilities, whether or not caused by negligence, including civil and criminal fines, arising out of or relating to any generation, processing, handling, transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal of solid or hazardous wastes in the canal system by any person or entity other than the **thruway authority or the** authority occurring prior to the effective date of the transfer of powers and duties authorized herein **August third, nineteen hundred ninety-two**. Such indemnification shall extend to, without limitation, any releases into land, water or air, including but not limited to releases as defined under the federal comprehensive environmental response compensation and liability act of nineteen hundred eighty, occurring or existing prior to the effective date of this section **August third, nineteen hundred ninety-two**; provided that the **thruway authority, the corporation and the** authority shall cooperate in the investigation and remediation of hazardous waste and other environmental problems.

**(c) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in paragraph (a) of this subdivision, the thruway authority shall indemnify and hold harmless the corporation and the authority for any and all claims, damages, or liabilities, whether or not caused by negligence, including civil and criminal fines, arising out of or relating to any generation, processing, handling, transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal of solid or hazardous wastes in the canal system by any person or entity other than the authority occurring after August third, nineteen hundred ninety-two and no later than the effective date of the transfer of powers, duties and obligations from the thruway authority to the authority. Such indemnification shall extend to, without limitation, any releases into land, water or air, including but not limited to releases as defined under the federal comprehensive environmental response compensation and liability act of nineteen hundred eighty, occurring or existing prior to the effective date of the transfer of powers, duties and obligations from the thruway authority to the authority; provided that the corporation and the authority shall cooperate in the investigation and remediation of hazardous waste and other environmental problems.**

**(d) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the thruway authority shall retain all liabilities, whether or not caused by negligence, arising out of any acts or omissions occurring on or after August third, nineteen hundred ninety-two, in connection with its powers, duties and obligations with respect to the corporation. The authority and the state shall not be held liable in connection with any liabilities arising out of such acts or omissions.**

**7. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, in connection with the transfer of jurisdiction of the corporation to the authority and the assumption of management of the corporation as a subsidiary corporation of the authority pursuant to the chapter of the laws of two thousand sixteen which added this subdivision, the thruway authority shall have the power to fulfill any existing agreements or obligations, make any agreements, receive, retain or pay any funds, deemed necessary and in the public interest to effectuate the provisions and intent of this chapter, including but not limited to, the entering into any agreements with the corporation, the authority and any other federal, state, municipal or other entities, and to receive funds from the federal emergency management agency or the state, to fulfill the thruway authority's existing financial or other obligations arising from its jurisdiction over the canal system and the corporation.**

--A

§ 19. Subdivisions 2 and 5 of section 92-u of the state finance law, subdivision 2 as added by chapter 766 of the laws of 1992, and subdivision 5 as amended by chapter 483 of the laws of 1996, are amended to read as follows:

2. Such fund shall consist of all revenues received from the operation of the New York state canal system as defined in section three hundred fifty-one of the public authorities law and section two of the canal law, including payments on leases for use of canal lands, terminals and terminal lands, tolls received for lock and lift bridge passage, payments for hydroelectric easements and sales, for purchase of other abandoned canal lands, payments for any permits and leases for use of the water and lands of the system and payments for use of dry docks and other moneys made available to the fund from any other source other than a grant, loan or other inter-corporate transfer of funds of the ~~New York state thruway authority~~ **power authority of the state of New York**, and any income earned by, or incremental to, the fund due to investment thereof, or any repayment of any moneys advanced by the fund.

5. Moneys of the fund, following appropriation by the legislature, shall be available to the New York state thruway authority **power authority of the state of New York** and shall be expended by such authority or subsidiary corporation thereof **the canal corporation** only for the maintenance, construction, reconstruction, development or promotion of the canal system; provided, however, that in the initial years, expenditures of moneys of the fund for the development and/or promotion of the canal system shall be accorded a priority by the authority or subsidiary corporation thereof . In addition, moneys of the fund may be used for the purposes of interpretive signage and promotion for appropriate historically significant Erie canal lands and related sites. Moneys shall be paid out of the fund by the state comptroller on certificates issued by the director of the budget.

§ 20. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the power authority of the state of New York ("power authority"), New York state thruway authority and New York state canal corporation ("canal corporation"), and any other state or municipal agency, department, office, board, division, commission, public authority or public benefit corporation may enter into such agreements and understandings relating to the transition of the canal corporation to its status as a subsidiary of the power authority and for the administration, maintenance and operation of the canal corporation and the canal system as they may deem necessary or desirable.

§ 21. Section 1005 of the public authorities law is amended by adding a new subdivision 25 to read as follows:

**25. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, to accept gifts, grants, loans, or contributions of funds or property in any form from the federal government or any agency or instrumentally thereof or from the state or any other source (collectively, "resources"), and enter into contracts or other transactions regarding such resources, and to use such resources for any of its corporate purposes.**

§ 22. The public authorities law is amended by adding a new section 1005-b to read as follows:

**§ 1005-b. New York state canal corporation. 1. The public benefit corporation known as the "New York state canal corporation" (hereinafter referred to as the "canal corporation") created as a subsidiary corporation of the New York state thruway authority pursuant to chapter seven hundred sixty-six of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-two is hereby continued and reconstituted as a subsidiary corporation of the authority --A and shall have only the power to operate, maintain, construct, reconstruct, improve, develop, finance, and promote all of the canals, canal lands, feeder canals, reservoirs, canal terminals, canal terminal lands and other property under the jurisdiction of the canal corporation pursuant to article one-A of the canal law (hereinafter referred to as the "canal system"). Reference in any provision of law, general, special or local, or in any rule, regulation or public document to the canal corporation or the canal corporation as a subsidiary of the New York state thruway authority shall be deemed to be and construed as a reference to the canal corporation continued by this section.**

**2. The management and administration of the canal corporation shall be an additional corporate purpose of the authority. To the extent that the trustees deem it feasible and advisable, the authority may transfer to the canal corporation any moneys, real, personal, or mixed property or any personnel in order to carry out the purposes of this section, provided that nothing in this section shall be deemed to require the authority to apply any moneys, revenues or property or to take any action in a manner that would be inconsistent with the provisions of any bond or note resolution or any other contract with the holders of the authority's bonds, notes or other obligations.**

**3. The canal corporation and any of its property, functions, and activities shall have all of the privileges, immunities, tax exemptions and other exemptions of the authority and of the authority's property, functions, and activities. The canal corporation shall be subject to the restrictions and limitations to which the authority may be subject. The canal corporation may delegate to one or more of its members, or its officers, agents and employees, such duties and powers as it may deem proper.**

4. Exclusive jurisdiction is conferred upon the court of claims to hear and determine the claims of any person against the canal corporation (a) for its tortious acts and those of its agents, and (b) for breach of a contract, relating to construction, reconstruction, improvement, maintenance or operation, in the same manner and to the extent provided by and subject to the provisions of the court of claims act with respect to claims against the state, and to make awards and render judgments therefor. All awards and judgments arising from such claims shall be paid out of moneys of the canal corporation.

5. The members of the canal corporation shall be the same persons holding the offices of trustees of the authority.

6. No officer or member of the canal corporation shall receive any additional compensation, either direct or indirect, other than reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties, by reason of his or her serving as a member, director, or trustee of the canal corporation.

7. The employees of the canal corporation shall not be deemed to be employees of the authority by reason of their employment by the canal corporation. All officers and employees of the canal corporation shall be subject to the provisions of the civil service law which shall apply to the canal corporation as a municipal corporation other than a city. The canal corporation shall participate in the New York state and local employees' retirement system. Nothing contained in a chapter of the laws of two thousand sixteen that added this section shall be construed to affect the rights of the canal corporation or any of its employees under any collective bargaining agreement in effect as of the effective date of transfer of the canal corporation from the thruway authority to the authority. --A

8. The fiscal year of the canal corporation shall be the same as the fiscal year for the authority.

9. The canal corporation shall have the power to:

(a) operate, maintain, construct, reconstruct, improve, develop, finance, and promote the canal system;

(b) sue and be sued;

(c) have a seal and alter the same at pleasure;

(d) make and alter by-laws for its organization and internal management and make rules and regulations governing the use of its property and facilities;

(e) appoint officers and employees and fix their compensation;

(f) make and execute contracts and all other instruments necessary or convenient for the exercise of its powers and functions under this chapter;

(g) acquire, hold, and dispose of real or personal property for its corporate purposes;

(h) engage the services of private consultants on a contract basis for rendering professional and technical assistance and advice;

(i) procure insurance against any loss in connection with its activities, properties, and other assets, in such amount and from such insurers as it deems desirable;

(j) invest any funds of the canal corporation, or any other monies under its custody and control not required for immediate use or disbursement, at the discretion of the canal corporation, in obligations of the state or the United

States government or obligations the principal and interest of which are guaranteed by the state or the United States government, or in any other obligations in which the comptroller of the state is authorized to invest pursuant to section ninety-eight-a of the state finance law;

(k) exercise those powers and duties of the authority delegated to it by the authority;

(l) prepare and submit a capital program plan pursuant to section ten of the canal law;

(m) approve and implement the New York state canal recreationway plan submitted pursuant to section one hundred thirty-eight-c of the canal law. The canal corporation's review and approval of the canal recreationway plan shall be based upon its consideration of a generic environmental impact statement prepared by the canal corporation in accordance with article eight of the environmental conservation law and the regulations thereunder. Prior to the implementation of any substantial improvement by the canal corporation on canal lands, canal terminals, or canal terminal lands, or the lease of canal lands, canal terminals, or canal terminal lands for substantial commercial improvement, the canal corporation, in addition to any review taken pursuant to section 14.09 of the parks, recreation and historic preservation law, shall conduct a reconnaissance level survey within three thousand feet of such lands to be improved of the type, location, and significance of historic buildings, sites, and districts listed on, or which may be eligible, for the state or national registers of historic places. The findings of such survey shall be used to identify significant historical resources and to determine whether the proposed improvements are compatible with such historic buildings, sites, and districts;

(n) enter on any lands, waters, or premises for the purpose of making borings, soundings, and surveys;

(o) accept any gifts or any grant of funds or property from the federal government or from the state or any other federal or state public --A body or political subdivision or any other person and to comply with the terms and conditions thereof; and

(p) waive any fee for a work permit which it has the power to issue if in its discretion the project which is subject to a work permit would add value to canal lands without any cost to the canal corporation, the authority, or the state.

10. (a) The canal corporation shall review the budget request submitted by the canal recreationway commission pursuant to section one hundred thirty-eight-b of the canal law.

(b) The canal corporation, on or before the fifteenth day of September of each year, shall submit to the director of the budget a request for the expenditure of funds available from the New York state canal system development fund pursuant to section ninety-two-u of the state finance law or available from any other non-federal sources appropriated from the state treasury.

(c) In the event that the request submitted by the canal corporation to the director of the budget differs from the request submitted by the commission to the canal corporation, then the request submitted by the canal corporation to the director of the budget shall specify the differences and shall set forth the reasons for such differences.

11. The canal corporation shall not have the power to issue bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness; provided that notwithstanding the foregoing, the canal corporation may agree to repay amounts advanced to the canal corporation by the authority and to evidence such agreement by delivery of a promissory note or notes to the authority.

12. The canal corporation may do any and all things necessary or convenient to carry out and exercise the powers given and granted by this section.



**13. The authority and all other state officers, departments, boards, divisions, commissions, public authorities, and public benefit corporations may render such services to the canal corporation within their respective functions as may be requested by the canal corporation.**

**14. Whenever any state political subdivision, municipality, commission, agency, officer, department, board, division, or person is authorized and empowered for any of the purposes of this title to cooperate and enter into agreements with the authority, such state political subdivision, municipality, commission, agency, officer, department, board, division, or person shall have the same authorization and power for any such purposes to cooperate and enter into agreements with the canal corporation.**

§ 23. The public authorities law is amended by adding a new section 1005-c to read as follows:

**§ 1005-c. Additional powers of the authority to finance certain projects in connection with the New York state canal system. 1. (a) The authority is hereby authorized, as an additional corporate purpose thereof, to issue its bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness in conformity with applicable provisions of the uniform commercial code for purposes of financing the construction, reconstruction, development and improvement of the New York state canal system.**

**(b) The authority shall issue any such bonds, notes, or evidences of indebtedness pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subdivision on a basis subordinate in lien and priority of payment to the authority's senior lien indebtedness as the authority shall provide by resolution.**

**2. All of the provisions of this title relating to bonds, notes and other evidence of indebtedness, which are not inconsistent with this section, shall apply to obligations authorized by this section, includ- --A ing but not limited to the power to issue renewal notes or refunding bonds thereof.**

**3. Subject to agreements with noteholders or bondholders, the authority shall have the authority to fix and collect such fees, rentals and charges for the use of the canal system or any part thereof necessary or convenient, with an adequate margin of safety, to produce sufficient revenue to meet the expense of maintenance and operation and to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with the holders of its notes or bonds, and to establish the rights and privileges granted upon payment thereof; provided, however, that tolls may only be imposed for the passage through locks and lift bridges by vessels which are propelled in whole or in part by mechanical power.**

§ 24. Paragraph (i) of subdivision 1 of section 19 of the public officers law, as added by chapter 115 of the laws of 2000, is REPEALED and a new paragraph (j) is added to read as follows:

**(j) For purposes of this section, the term "employee" shall include directors, officers and employees of the thruway authority, and the directors, officers and employees of the canal corporation. In those cases where the definition of the term "employee" provided in this paragraph is applicable, the term "state", as utilized in subdivisions two, three, and four of this section, shall mean the thruway authority when the employee is a director, officer, or employee of the thruway authority, or the canal corporation, when the employee is a director, officer, or employee of the canal corporation.**

§ 25. Subdivisions 9 and 10 of section 481 of the transportation law, as added by section 1 of part A of chapter 60 of the laws of 2005, are amended to read as follows:

**9. "Canal corporation" shall mean the New York state canal corporation created pursuant to section three hundred eighty-two as a subsidiary corporation of the New York state thruway authority pursuant to chapter seven hundred sixty-six of the laws of nineteen hundred ninety-two and continued and reconstituted as a subsidiary corporation of the power authority of the state of New York pursuant to subdivision one of section one thousand five-b of the public authorities law.**

10. "Canal system" shall mean the "New York state canal system", ~~as such term is defined by subdivision ten of section three hundred fiftyone of the public authorities law~~ **shall mean all of the canals, canal lands, feeder canals, reservoirs, canal terminals, canal terminal lands and other property under the jurisdiction of the canal corporation of the state of New York pursuant to article one-A of the canal law.**

§ 26. Section 33.01 of the parks, recreation and historic preservation law, as amended by chapter 317 of the laws of 2009, is amended to read as follows:

§ 33.01 New York state heritage areas advisory council. There shall continue to be in the office a New York state heritage areas advisory council which shall consist of twenty-six members or their designated representatives. The commissioner shall be a member of the advisory council. In addition, the advisory council shall consist of the following twenty-five other members: the commissioner of economic development, to advise and assist regarding related tourism and economic revitalization; the commissioner of education, to advise and assist regarding the interpretive and educational aspects of the programs; the secretary of state, to advise and assist regarding matters of community development and state planning and to advise on the identification and preservation of rural resources; the commissioner of transportation, to advise and assist regarding matters of transportation to and within heritage areas; ~~--A the president of the New York state urban development corporation, to advise and assist regarding matters of economic development; the commissioner of environmental conservation, to advise and assist regarding matters of conservation and use of natural resources; the chairman of the state board for historic preservation, to advise and assist in matters regarding historic preservation; the commissioner of housing and community renewal to advise and assist regarding neighborhood and community development and preservation programs; the chairman of the New York state thruway authority~~ **president and chief executive officer of the power authority of the state of New York** regarding the operation of the New York state canal system; the commissioner of agriculture and markets regarding agriculture in heritage areas; a representative of the State Heritage Area Association; the director or chief executive officer of the Hudson River National Heritage Area, the Erie Canalway National Heritage Corridor, the Champlain Valley National Heritage Partnership and the Niagara Falls National Heritage Area; and ten members to be appointed by the governor, three of such members shall be municipal officers, elected officials or representatives of local government interest and seven of such members shall be, by professional training or experience or attainment, qualified to analyze or interpret matters relevant to the establishment and maintenance of state designated heritage areas including urban cultural parks and heritage corridors, one of whom shall be the director of a heritage area. Of these last seven, two are to be appointed from names recommended by the majority leader of the senate, two are to be appointed from names recommended by the speaker of the assembly, one is to be appointed from names recommended by the minority leader of the senate and one is to be appointed from names recommended by the minority leader of the assembly. The governor may designate such ex-officio members who shall be from the executive department, state agencies or public corporations as he or she deems appropriate; provided that such ex-officio members shall not vote on matters before the advisory council. For the ten members appointed by the governor, each shall hold office for a term of five years and until his or her successor shall have been appointed or until he or she shall resign. The members of the advisory council shall elect a chair from amongst its members for a term of three years. Eleven members of the advisory council shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business at both regular and special meetings. Any ex-officio member may delegate all his or her duties of membership, including voting rights, to an officer or employee of such member's organization. No member shall receive any compensation.

§ 27. Paragraph (h-1) of subdivision 2 of section 35.07 of the parks, recreation and historic preservation law, as amended by chapter 666 of the laws of 1994, is amended to read as follows:

(h-1) ~~Chairman of the New York state thruway authority~~ **President and chief executive officer of the power authority of the state of New York** regarding its operation of the New York state canal system;

§ 28. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the power authority of the state of New York (power authority) and the New York state thruway authority (thruway authority) are hereby authorized to enter into an agreement, effective April 1, 2016, whereby the power authority shall reimburse the thruway authority, monthly, for any and all operating and capital costs, expended by the thruway authority for the operation and maintenance of the New York state canal system (canal system), and the operation of the New York state canal corporation (canal corporation), for the period of April 1, 2016 through January 1, 2017. The thruway --A authority shall provide the power authority with a monthly report of all expenditures related to the canal corporation and the canal system, and provide access to all necessary financial records to carry out the intent of this section.

§ 29. This act, being necessary for the welfare of the state and its inhabitants, shall be liberally construed to effect the purposes thereof.

§ 30. This act shall take effect on January 1, 2017; provided, however, that sections five and twenty-eight of this act shall take effect immediately.

PART R Section 1. Short title. This act shall be known and may be cited as the "private activity bond allocation act of 2016".

§ 2. Legislative findings and declaration. The legislature hereby finds and declares that the federal tax reform act of 1986 established a statewide bond volume ceiling on the issuance of certain tax exempt private activity bonds and notes and, under certain circumstances, governmental use bonds and notes issued by the state and its public authorities, local governments, agencies which issue on behalf of local governments, and certain other issuers. The federal tax reform act establishes a formula for the allocation of the bond volume ceiling which was subject to temporary modification by gubernatorial executive order until December 31, 1987. That act also permits state legislatures to establish, by statute, an alternative formula for allocating the volume ceiling. Bonds and notes subject to the volume ceiling require an allocation from the state's annual volume ceiling in order to qualify for federal tax exemption.

It is hereby declared to be the policy of the state to maximize the public benefit through the issuance of private activity bonds for the purposes of, among other things, allocating a fair share of the bond volume ceiling upon initial allocation and from a bond reserve to local agencies and for needs identified by local governments; providing housing and promoting economic development; job creation; an economical energy supply; and resource recovery and to provide for an orderly and efficient volume ceiling allocation process for state and local agencies by establishing an alternative formula for making such allocations.

§ 3. Definitions. As used in this act, unless the context requires otherwise:

1. "Bonds" means bonds, notes or other obligations.
2. "Carryforward" means an amount of unused private activity bond ceiling available to an issuer pursuant to an election filed with the internal revenue service pursuant to section 146(f) of the code.
3. "Code" means the internal revenue code of 1986, as amended.
4. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the New York state department of economic development.
5. "Covered bonds" means those tax exempt private activity bonds and that portion of the non-qualified amount of an issue of governmental use bonds for which an allocation of the statewide ceiling is required for the interest earned by holders of such bonds to be excluded from the gross income of such holders for federal income tax purposes under the code.
6. "Director" means the director of the New York state division of the budget.
7. "Issuer" means a local agency, state agency or other issuer. --A

8. "Local agency" means an industrial development agency established or operating pursuant to article 18-A of the general municipal law, the Troy industrial development authority and the Auburn industrial development authority.

9. "Other issuer" means any agency, political subdivision or other entity, other than a local agency or state agency, that is authorized to issue covered bonds.

10. "Qualified small issue bonds" means qualified small issue bonds, as defined in section 144(a) of the code.

11. "State agency" means the state of New York, the New York state energy research and development authority, the New York job development authority, the New York state environmental facilities corporation, the New York state urban development corporation and its subsidiaries, the Battery Park city authority, the port authority of New York and New Jersey, the power authority of the state of New York, the dormitory authority of the state of New York, the New York state housing finance agency, the state of New York mortgage agency, and any other public benefit corporation or public authority designated by the governor for the purposes of this act.

12. "Statewide ceiling" means for any calendar year the highest state ceiling (as such term is used in section 146 of the code) applicable to New York state.

13. "Future allocations" means allocations of statewide ceiling for up to two future years.

14. "Multi-year housing development project" means a project (a) which qualifies for covered bonds;

(b) which is to be constructed over two or more years; and

(c) in which at least twenty percent of the dwelling units will be occupied by persons and families of low income.

§ 4. Local agency set-aside. (a) A set-aside of statewide ceiling for local agencies for any calendar year shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to one-third of the statewide ceiling as the population of the jurisdiction of such local agency bears to the population of the entire state. The commissioner shall administer allocations of such set-aside to local agencies.

(b) Any financings or bond issuances that utilize the local agency set-aside authorized by this section and executed by entities or successor entities defined by subdivisions 8 and 9 of section 3 of this act, including entities established pursuant to article 18-A of the general municipal law, and corporations established pursuant to section 1411 of the not-for-profit corporation law and article 12 of the private housing finance law, shall be subject to the provisions of article 1-A of the public authorities law.

§ 5. State agency set-aside. A set-aside of statewide ceiling for all state agencies for any calendar year shall be one-third of the statewide ceiling. The director shall administer allocations of such set-aside to state agencies and may grant an allocation to any state agency upon receipt of an application in such form as the director shall require.

§ 6. Statewide bond reserve. One-third of the statewide ceiling is hereby set aside as a statewide bond reserve to be administered by the director. 1. Allocation of the statewide bond reserve among state agencies, local agencies and other issuers. The director shall transfer a portion of the statewide bond reserve to the commissioner for allocation to and use by local agencies and other issuers in accordance with the terms of this section. The remainder of the statewide bond reserve may --A be allocated by the director to state agencies in accordance with the terms of this section.

2. Allocation of statewide bond reserve to local agencies or other issuers. (a) Local agencies or other issuers may at any time apply to the commissioner for an allocation from the statewide bond reserve. Such application shall demonstrate:

(i) that the requested allocation is required under the code for the interest earned on the bonds to be excluded from the gross income of bondholders for federal income tax purposes;

(ii) that the local agency's remaining unused allocation provided pursuant to section four of this act, and other issuer's remaining unused allocation, or any available carryforward will be insufficient for the specific project or projects for which the reserve allocation is requested; and

(iii) that, except for those allocations made pursuant to section twelve of this act to enable carryforward elections, the requested allocation is reasonably expected to be used during the calendar year, and the requested future allocation is reasonably expected to be used in the calendar year to which the future allocation relates.

(b) In reviewing and approving or disapproving applications, the commissioner shall exercise discretion to ensure an equitable distribution of allocations from the statewide bond reserve to local agencies and other issuers. Prior to making a determination on such applications, the commissioner shall notify and seek the recommendation of the president and chief executive officer of the New York state housing finance agency in the case of an application related to the issuance of multifamily housing or mortgage revenue bonds, and in the case of other requests, such state officers, departments, divisions and agencies as the commissioner deems appropriate.

(c) Applications for allocations shall be made in such form and contain such information and reports as the commissioner shall require.

3. Allocation of statewide bond reserve to state agencies. The director may make an allocation from the statewide bond reserve to any state agency. Before making any allocation of statewide bond reserve to state agencies the director shall be satisfied:

(a) that the allocation is required under the code for the interest earned on the bonds to be excluded from the gross income of bondholders for federal income tax purposes;

(b) that the state agency's remaining unused allocation provided pursuant to section five of this act or any available carryforward will be insufficient to accommodate the specific bond issue or issues for which the reserve allocation is requested; and

(c) that, except for those allocations made pursuant to section twelve of this act to enable carryforward elections, the requested allocation is reasonably expected to be used during the calendar year, and the requested future allocation is reasonably expected to be used in the calendar year to which the future allocation relates.

§ 7. Access to employment opportunities. 1. All issuers shall require that any new employment opportunities created in connection with the industrial or manufacturing projects financed through the issuance of qualified small issue bonds shall be listed with the New York state department of labor and with the one-stop career center established pursuant to the federal workforce investment act (Pub. L. No. 105-220) serving the locality in which the employment opportunities are being created. Such listing shall be in a manner and form prescribed by the commissioner. All issuers shall further require that for any new employment opportunities created in connection with an industrial or manufacturing project financed through the issuance of qualified small issue bonds by such issuer, industrial or manufacturing firms shall first consider persons eligible to participate in workforce investment act (Pub. L. No. 105-220) programs who shall be referred to the industrial or manufacturing firm by one-stop centers in local workforce investment areas or by the department of labor. Issuers of qualified small issue bonds are required to monitor compliance with the provisions of this section as prescribed by the commissioner.

2. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require users of qualified small issue bonds to violate any existing collective bargaining agreement with respect to the hiring of new employees. Failure on the part of any user of qualified small issue bonds to comply with the requirements of this section shall not affect the allocation of bonding authority to the issuer of the bonds or the validity or tax exempt status of such bonds.

§ 8. Overlapping jurisdictions. In a geographic area represented by a county local agency and one or more sub-county local agencies, the allocation granted by section four of this act with respect to such area of overlapping jurisdiction shall be apportioned one-half to the county local agency and one-half to the sub-county local agency or agencies. Where there is a local agency for the benefit of a village within the geographic area of a town for the benefit of which there is a local agency, the allocation of the village local agency shall be based on the population of the geographic area of the village, and the allocation of the town local agency shall be based upon the population of the geographic area of the town outside of the village. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a local agency may surrender all or part of its allocation for such calendar year to another local agency with an overlapping jurisdiction. Such surrender shall be made at such time and in such manner as the commissioner shall prescribe.

§ 9. Ineligible local agencies. To the extent that any allocation of the local agency set-aside would be made by this act to a local agency which is ineligible to receive such allocation under the code or under regulations interpreting the state volume ceiling provisions of the code, such allocation shall instead be made to the political subdivision for whose benefit that local agency was created.

§ 10. Municipal reallocation. The chief executive officer of any political subdivision or, if such political subdivision has no chief executive officer, the governing board of the political subdivision for the benefit of which a local agency has been established, may withdraw all or any portion of the allocation granted by section four of this act to such local agency. The political subdivision may then reallocate all or any portion of such allocation, as well as all or any portion of the allocation received pursuant to section nine of this act, to itself or any other issuer established for the benefit of that political subdivision or may assign all or any portion of the allocation received pursuant to section nine of this act to the local agency created for its benefit. The chief executive officer or governing board of the political subdivision, as the case may be, shall notify, and receive prior approval from the commissioner before any such reallocation.

§ 11. Future allocations for multi-year housing development projects. 1. In addition to other powers granted under this act, the commissioner is authorized to make the following future allocations of statewide ceiling for any multi-year housing development project for which the commissioner also makes an allocation of statewide ceiling for the --A current year under this act: (a) to local agencies from the local agency set-aside (but only with the approval of the chief executive officer of the political subdivision to which the local agency set-aside relates or the governing body of a political subdivision having no chief executive officer) and

(b) to other issuers from that portion, if any, of the statewide bond reserve transferred to the commissioner by the director. Any future allocation made by the commissioner shall constitute an allocation of statewide ceiling for the future year specified by the commissioner and shall be deemed to have been made on the first day of the future year so specified.

2. In addition to other powers granted under this act, the director is authorized to make future allocations of statewide ceiling from the state agency set-aside or from the statewide bond reserve to state agencies for any multi-year housing development project for which the director also makes an allocation of statewide ceiling from the current year under this act, and is authorized to make transfers of the statewide bond reserve to the commissioner for future allocations to other issuers for multi-year housing development projects for which the commissioner has made an allocation of statewide ceiling for the current year. Any such future allocation or transfer of the statewide bond reserve for future allocation made by the director shall constitute an allocation of statewide ceiling or transfer of the statewide bond reserve for the future years specified by the director and shall be deemed to have been made on the first day of the future year so specified.

3. (a) If an allocation made with respect to a multi-year housing development project is not used by October fifteenth of the year to which the allocation relates, the allocation with respect to the then current year shall be subject to recapture in accordance with the provisions of section twelve of this act, and in the event of such a recapture, unless a carryforward election by another issuer shall have been approved by the commissioner or a carryforward election by a state agency shall have been approved



by the director, all future allocations made with respect to such project pursuant to subdivision one or two of this section shall be canceled.

(b) The commissioner and the director shall have the authority to make future allocations from recaptured current year allocations and canceled future allocations to multi-year housing development projects in a manner consistent with the provisions of this act.

(c) The commissioner and the director shall establish procedures consistent with the provisions of this act relating to carryforward of future allocations.

4. The aggregate future allocations from either of the two succeeding years shall not exceed six hundred fifty million dollars for each such year.

§ 12. Year end allocation recapture. On or before October first of each year, each state agency shall report to the director and each local agency and each other issuer shall report to the commissioner the amount of bonds subject to allocation under this act that will be issued prior to the end of the then current calendar year, and the amount of the issuer's then total allocation that will remain unused. As of October fifteenth of each year, the unused portion of each local agency's and other issuer's then total allocation as reported and the unallocated portion of the set-aside for state agencies shall be recaptured and added to the statewide bond reserve and shall no longer be available to covered bond issuers except as otherwise provided herein. From October --A fifteenth through the end of the year, each local agency or other issuer having an allocation shall immediately report to the commissioner and each state agency having an allocation shall immediately report to the director any changes to the status of its allocation or the status of projects for which allocations have been made which should affect the timing or likelihood of the issuance of covered bonds therefor. If the commissioner determines that a local agency or other issuer has overestimated the amount of covered bonds subject to allocation that will be issued prior to the end of the calendar year, the commissioner may recapture the amount of the allocation to such local agency or other issuer represented by such overestimation by notice to the local agency or other issuer, and add such allocation to the statewide bond reserve. The director may likewise make such determination and recapture with respect to state agency allocations.

§ 13. Allocation carryforward. 1. No local agency or other issuer shall make a carryforward election utilizing any unused allocation (pursuant to section 146(f) of the code) without the prior approval of the commissioner. Likewise no state agency shall make or file such an election, or elect to issue or carryforward mortgage credit certificates, without the prior approval of the director.

2. On or before November fifteenth of each year, each state agency seeking unused statewide ceiling for use in future years shall make a request for an allocation for a carryforward to the director, whose approval shall be required before a carryforward election is filed by or on behalf of any state agency. A later request may also be considered by the director, who may file a carryforward election for any state agency with the consent of such agency.

3. On or before November fifteenth of each year, each local agency or other issuer seeking unused statewide ceiling for use in future years shall make a request for an allocation for a carryforward to the commissioner, whose approval shall be required before a carryforward election is filed by or on behalf of any local or other agency. A later request may also be considered by the commissioner.

§ 14. New York state bond allocation policy advisory panel. 1. There is hereby created a policy advisory panel and process to provide policy advice regarding the priorities for distribution of the statewide ceiling.

2. The panel shall consist of five members, one designee being appointed by each of the following: the governor, the temporary president of the senate, the speaker of the assembly, the minority leader of the senate and the minority leader of the assembly. The designee of the governor shall chair the panel. The panel shall monitor the allocation process through the year, and in that

regard, the division of the budget and the department of economic development shall assist and cooperate with the panel as provided in this section. The advisory process shall operate through the issuance of advisory opinions by members of the panel as provided in subdivisions six and seven of this section. A meeting may be held at the call of the chair with the unanimous consent of the members.

3. (a) Upon receipt of a request for allocation or a request for approval of a carryforward election from the statewide reserve from a local agency or other issuer, the commissioner shall, within five working days, notify the panel of such request and provide the panel with copies of all application materials submitted by the applicant.

(b) Upon receipt of a request for allocation or a request for approval of carryforward election from the statewide reserve from a state agency, --A the director shall, within five working days, notify the panel of such request and provide the panel with copies of all application materials submitted by the applicant.

4. (a) Following receipt of a request for allocation from a local agency or other issuer, the commissioner shall notify the panel of a decision to approve or exclude from further consideration such request, and the commissioner shall state the reasons. Such notification shall be made with or after the transmittal of the information specified in subdivision three of this section and at least five working days before formal notification is made to the applicant.

(b) Following receipt of a request for allocation from a state agency, the director shall notify the panel of a decision to approve or exclude from further consideration such request, and shall state the reasons. Such notification shall be made with or after the transmission of the information specified in subdivision three of this section and at least five working days before formal notification is made to the state agency.

5. The requirements of subdivisions three and four of this section shall not apply to adjustments to allocations due to bond sizing changes.

6. In the event that any decision to approve or to exclude from further consideration a request for allocation is made within ten working days of the end of the calendar year and in the case of all requests for consent to a carryforward election, the commissioner or director, as is appropriate, shall provide the panel with the longest possible advance notification of the action, consistent with the requirements of the code, and shall, wherever possible, solicit the opinions of the members of the panel before formally notifying any applicant of the action. Such notification may be made by means of telephone communication to the members or by written notice delivered to the Albany office of the appointing authority of the respective members.

7. Upon notification by the director or the commissioner, any member of the panel may, within five working days, notify the commissioner or the director of any policy objection concerning the expected action. If three or more members of the panel shall submit policy objections in writing to the intended action, the commissioner or the director shall respond in writing to the objection prior to taking the intended action unless exigent circumstances make it necessary to respond after the action has been taken.

8. On or before the first day of July, in any year, the director shall report to the members of the New York state bond allocation policy advisory panel on the actual utilization of volume cap for the issuance of bonds during the prior calendar year and the amount of such cap allocated for carryforwards for future bond issuance. The report shall include, for each local agency or other issuer and each state agency the initial allocation, the amount of bonds issued subject to the allocation, the amount of the issuer's allocation that remained unused, the allocation of the statewide bond reserve, carryforward allocations and recapture of allocations. Further, the report shall include projections regarding private activity bond issuance for state and local issuers for the calendar year, as well as any recommendations for legislative action.

§ 15. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part of this act shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in

its operation to --A the clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part thereof directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered.

§ 16. Chapter 49 of the laws of 2014 is REPEALED.

§ 17. Section 51 of the public authorities law is amended by adding a new subdivision 6 to read as follows:

**6. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the board shall have the power and it shall be its duty to receive applications for approval for any financing or bond issuances that utilize the local agency setaside, as authorized by the "private activity bond allocation act of 2016", executed by entities or successor entities as defined by subdivisions eight and nine of section three of that act, including entities established pursuant to article eighteen-A of the general municipal law, and corporations established pursuant to section fourteen hundred eleven of the not-for-profit corporation law and article twelve of the private housing finance law.**

§ 18. This act shall take effect immediately.

## PART 5

Section 1. Section 258-aa and article 25 of the agriculture and markets law are REPEALED.

§ 2. Section 1 of chapter 174 of the laws of 1968, constituting the New York state urban development corporation act, is amended by adding three new sections 16-x, 16-y and 16-z to read as follows:

**§ 16-x. Dairy promotion act. 1. Declaration of policy. (a) It is hereby declared that the mission of the corporation is to promote a vigorous and growing state economy. In implementing this mission, the corporation has undertaken a vigorous campaign to market the state's assets and, by carrying out the provisions of this section, would further this mission by promoting the state's dairy industry.**

**(b) It is further declared that the continued existence of the state dairy industry, and the continued production of milk on the farms of this state, is of vast economic importance to the state and to the health and welfare of the inhabitants thereof; that it is essential, in order to assure such continued production of milk and its handling and distribution, that prices to producers be such as to return reasonable costs of production, and at the same time to assure an adequate supply of milk and dairy products to consumers at reasonable prices; and to these ends it is essential that consumers and others be adequately informed as to the dietary needs and advantages of milk and dairy products and as to the economies resulting from the use of milk and dairy products, and to command for milk and dairy products, consumer attention and demand consistent with their importance and value. It is further declared that continued decline in the consumption of fluid milk and some other dairy products will jeopardize the production of adequate supplies of milk and dairy products because of increasing surpluses necessarily returning less to producers; and that continued adequate supplies of milk and dairy products is a matter of vital concern as affecting the health and general welfare of the people of this state. It is therefore declared to be the legislative intent and policy of the state:**

**(i) To enable milk producers and others in the dairy industry, with the aid of the state, to more effectively promote the consumption of milk and dairy products, --A**

**(ii) To provide methods and means for the development of new and improved dairy products, and to promote their use, and**

**(iii) To this end, to eliminate the possible impairment of the purchasing power of the milk producers of this state and to assure an adequate supply of milk for consumers at reasonable prices.**

**2. Definitions. As used in this section the following terms shall have the following meanings:**

(a) "President" means the president of the corporation.

(b) "Dairy products" means milk and products derived therefrom, and products of which milk or a portion thereof is a significant part.

(c) "Producer" means any person in this state who is engaged in the production of milk or who causes milk to be produced for any market in this or any other state.

(d) "Advisory board" means the persons appointed by the president from nominations from producers to assist the president in administering a dairy promotion order.

(e) "Milk dealer" means any person who purchases or handles or receives or sells milk, including individuals, partnerships, corporations, cooperative associations, and unincorporated cooperative associations.

(f) "Dairy promotion order" means an order issued by the president, pursuant to the provisions of this section.

(g) "Cooperative" means an association or federation or cooperative of milk producers organized under the laws of New York state, or any other state, having agreements with their producer members to market, bargain for or sell the milk of such producers, and is actually performing one or more of these services in the marketing of the milk produced by their members, through the cooperative or through a federation of milk cooperatives in which the cooperative has membership.

(h) "State" means the state of New York.

**3. Powers and duties of the president. (a) The president shall administer and enforce the provisions of this section. In order to effectuate the declared policy of this section the president, in consultation with the commissioner of agriculture and markets, may, after due notice and hearing, make and issue a dairy promotion order, or orders.**

**(b) Such order or orders shall be issued and amended or terminated in accordance with the following procedures:**

**(i) Before any such order may become effective it must be approved by fifty-one per centum of the producers of milk voting in the referendum for the area to be regulated by such order. Such referendum shall not constitute valid approval unless fifty-one per centum of all milk producers for the area to be regulated vote in the referendum. Producers may vote by individual ballot or through their cooperatives in accordance with the following procedures:**

**(A) Cooperatives may submit written approval of such order within a period of one hundred twenty days after the president has announced a referendum on a proposed order, for such producers who are listed and certified to the president as members of such cooperative; provided, however, that any cooperative before submitting such written approval shall give at least sixty days prior written notice to each producer who is its member, of the intention of the cooperative to approve such proposed order, and further provide that if such cooperative does not intend to approve such proposed order, it shall likewise give written notice to each such producer who is its member, of its intention not to approve of such proposed order. --A**

**(B) Any producer may obtain a ballot from the president so that he or she may register his or her own approval or disapproval of the proposed order.**

(C) A producer who is a member of a cooperative which has notified him or her of its intent to approve or not to approve of a proposed order, and who obtains a ballot and with such ballot expresses his or her approval or disapproval of the proposed order, shall notify the president as to the name of the cooperative of which he or she is a member, and the president shall remove such producer's name from the list certified by such cooperative.

(D) In order to ensure that all milk producers are informed regarding a proposed order, the president shall notify all milk producers that an order is being considered and that each producer may register his or her approval or disapproval with the president either directly or through his or her cooperative.

(E) The president may appoint a referendum advisory committee to assist and advise him or her in the conduct of the referendum. Such committee shall review referendum procedures and the tabulation of results, and shall advise the president of its findings. The final certification of the referendum results shall be made by the president. The committee shall consist of not less than three members, none of whom shall be persons directly affected by the promotion order being voted upon. Two members shall be representatives of general farm organizations which are not directly affected by the order being voted upon. The members of the committee shall not receive a salary but shall be entitled to actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

(ii) The president may, and upon written petition of not less than ten per centum of the producers in the area, either as individuals or through cooperative representation, shall call a hearing to amend or terminate such order, and any such amendment or termination shall be effective only upon approval of fifty-one per centum of the producers of milk for the area regulated participating in a referendum vote as provided pursuant to this paragraph.

(c) The president shall administer and enforce any such dairy promotion order while it is in effect, for the purpose of:

(i) Encouraging the consumption of milk and dairy products by acquainting consumers and others with the advantages and economy of using more of such products,

(ii) Protecting the health and welfare of consumers by assuring an adequate supply of milk and dairy products,

(iii) Providing for research programs designed to develop new and improved dairy products,

(iv) Providing for research programs designed to acquaint consumers and the public generally with the effects of the use of milk and dairy products on the health of such consumers,

(v) Carrying out, in other ways, the declared policy and intent of this section.

4. Provisions of dairy promotion orders. Any dairy promotion order or orders may contain, among others, any or all of the following:

(a) Provision for levying an assessment against all producers subject to the regulation for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of such order and to pay the cost of administering and enforcing such order. In order to collect any such assessments, provision shall be made for each milk dealer who receives milk from producers to deduct the amount of assessment from moneys otherwise due to producers for the milk so delivered. The rate of such assessment shall not exceed two percent per hundredweight of the gross value of the producers' milk, and there may be credited against any such assessment the amounts per hundredweight otherwise paid by any producer covered by the order by voluntary contribution or otherwise pursuant to any other federal or state milk market order for any similar research promotion or advertising program. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (b) of subdivision three of this section, the president, upon written petition of no less than twenty-five percent of producers in the area, either as individuals or through cooperative representation, may call a hearing for the sole purpose of establishing a new rate of assessment

hereunder and may submit a proposed change in the rate of assessment to the producers for acceptance or rejection without otherwise affecting the order. The producers in the area may vote on the proposed rate either as individuals or through cooperative representation. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this paragraph and of paragraph (b) of subdivision three of this section, or the provisions of any order promulgated pursuant to this section, the rate of assessment, for any period during which a dairy products promotion and research order established pursuant to the federal dairy and tobacco adjustment act of 1983 is in effect, shall not be less than an amount equal to the maximum credit which producers participating in this state's dairy products promotion or nutrition education programs may receive pursuant to subdivision (g) of Sec. 113 of said federal act.

(b) Provision for payments to organizations engaged in campaigns by advertisements or otherwise, including participation in similar regional or national plans or campaigns to promote the increased consumption of milk and dairy products, to acquaint the public with the dietary advantages of milk and dairy products and with the economy of their inclusion in the diet and to command, for milk and dairy products, consumer attention consistent with their importance and value.

(c) Provision for payments to institutions or organizations engaged in research leading to the development of new or improved dairy products or research with respect to the value of milk and dairy products in the human diet.

(d) Provision for requiring records to be kept and reports to be filed by milk dealers with respect to milk received from producers and with respect to assessments on the milk of such producers.

(e) Provision for the auditing of the records of such milk dealers for the purpose of verifying payment of producer assessments.

(f) Provision for an advisory board pursuant to subdivision 10 of this section.

(g) Provision for the president to retain money collected under any marketing order issued pursuant to this section, to defray the costs and expenses in the administration thereof.

(h) Such other provisions as may be necessary to effectuate the declared policies of this section.

5. Matters to be considered. In carrying out the provisions of this section and particularly in determining whether or not a dairy promotion order shall be issued, the president, in consultation with the commissioner of agriculture and markets, shall take into consideration, among others, facts available to him or her with respect to the following:

(a) The total production of milk in the area and the proportion of such milk being utilized in fluid form and in other products,

(b) The prices being received for milk by producers in the area, --A

(c) The level of consumption per capita for fluid milk and of other dairy products,

(d) The purchasing power of consumers,

(e) Other products which compete with milk and dairy products and prices of such products.

6. Interstate orders for compacts. The president, in consultation with the commissioner of agriculture and markets, is authorized to confer and cooperate with the legally constituted authorities of other states and of the United States with respect to the issuance and operation of joint and concurrent dairy promotion orders or other activities tending to carry



out the declared intent of the act. He or she may join with such other authorities in conducting joint investigations, holding joint hearings and issuing joint or concurrent order or orders complementary to those of the federal government and shall have the authority to employ or designate a joint agent or joint agencies to carry out and enforce such joint, concurrent or supplementary orders.

**7. Prior assessments.** Prior to the effective date of any dairy promotion order as provided in this section, the president may require that cooperative associations which have petitioned for such an order and that have approved of the issuance of such an order, to deposit with the president such amounts as he or she may deem necessary to defray the expense of administering and enforcing such order until such time as the assessments as herein before provided are adequate for that purpose. Such funds shall be received, deposited and disbursed by the president in the same manner as other funds received by him or her pursuant to this section and the president shall reimburse those who paid these prior assessments from other funds received by him or her pursuant to this section.

**8. Status of funds.** Any moneys collected under any market order issued pursuant to this section shall not be deemed to be state funds and shall be deposited in a bank or other depository of the corporation, approved by the president, allocated to each dairy promotion order under which they were collected, and shall be disbursed by the president only for the necessary expenses incurred by the president with respect to each separate order, all in accordance with the rules and regulations of the president. All such expenses shall be audited by the corporation at least annually. Any moneys remaining in such fund allocable to a particular order, after the termination of such order and not required by the president to defray the expenses of operating such order, may in the discretion of the president be refunded on a pro-rata basis to all persons from whom assessments therefor were collected; provided, however, that if the president finds that the amounts so refundable are so small as to make impracticable the computation and refunding of such moneys, the president may use such moneys to defray the expenses incurred by him or her in the promulgation, issuance, administration or enforcement of any other similar dairy promotion order or in the absence of any other such dairy promotion order, the president may pay such moneys to any organization or institution as provided in paragraph (b) or (c) of subdivision four of this section.

**9. Budget.** The president shall prepare a budget for the administration and operating costs and expenses including advertising and sales promotion when required in any dairy promotion order executed hereunder and to provide for the collection of such necessary fees or assessments to defray costs and expenses, in no case to exceed two percent per hundredweight of the gross value of milk marketed by producers in the area covered by the order. --A

**10. Advisory board.** (a) Any dairy promotion order issued pursuant to this section shall provide for the establishment of an advisory board to advise and assist the president in the administration of such order. This board shall consist of not less than five members and shall be appointed by the president from nominations submitted by producers marketing milk in the area to which the order applies. Nominating procedure, qualification, representation, and size of the advisory board shall be prescribed in the order for which such board was appointed.

(b) No member of an advisory board shall receive a salary but shall be entitled to his or her actual and reasonable expenses incurred while performing his or her duties as authorized in this section.

(c) The duties and responsibilities of the advisory board shall be prescribed by the president and he or she may specifically delegate to the advisory board, by inclusion in the dairy promotion order, all or any of the following duties and responsibilities:

(i) The recommendation to the president of administrative rules and regulations relating to the order.

(ii) Recommending to the president such amendments to the order as deemed advisable.

(iii) The preparation and submission to the president of an estimated budget required for the proper operation of the order.

(iv) Recommending to the president methods for assessing producers and methods for collecting the necessary funds.

(v) Assisting the president in the collection and assembly of information and data necessary for the proper administration of the order.

(vi) The performance of such other duties in connection with the order as the president shall designate.

**11. Rules and regulations; enforcement.** (a) The president may, with the advice and assistance of the advisory board, make and issue such rules and regulations as may be necessary to effectuate the provisions and intent of this section and to enforce the provisions of any dairy promotion order, all of which shall have the force and effect of law.

(b) The president may institute such action at law or in equity as may appear necessary to enforce compliance with any provision of this section, or any rule or regulation, or dairy promotion order committed to his or her administration, and may apply for relief by injunction if necessary to protect the public interest without being compelled to allege or prove that an adequate remedy at law does not exist. Such application shall be made to the supreme court in any district or county provided in the civil practice law and rules, or to the supreme court in the third judicial district.

**12. Cooperation by the department of agriculture and markets.** The president of the corporation may request and receive, within ninety days of such request from the New York state department of agriculture and markets (hereafter referred to in this subdivision as the "department") such assistance, information and cooperation as may be necessary for the corporation to provide services with respect to the administration of the procedures set forth for the issuance, termination or amendment of any dairy promotion order and/or the administration of any such order. The corporation shall retain an amount equal to the expenses incurred by the corporation in performing its duties pursuant to this section and reimburse the department an amount equal to the expenses incurred by the department in supplying such services, subsequent to submission and audit of a voucher therefor. Such reimbursement shall not exceed the total amount of funds collected by the corporation pursuant to this --A section less the reasonable expenses incurred by the corporation in performing its duties pursuant to this section.

**13. Indemnification.** The state shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the corporation, its directors, officers, and employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs and expenses whatsoever arising directly or indirectly from, or relating to, the administration of a dairy promotion order issued or administered pursuant to this section. In connection with the foregoing, the corporation shall give the state (a) prompt written notice of any action, claim or threat of suit, (b) the opportunity to take over, settle or defend such action, claim or suit at the state's sole expense, and (c) assistance in the defense of any such action at the expense of the state.

**14. Contractual provisions.** The corporation may contract for services with respect to the implementation of this section in accordance with the corporation's policies, procedures and guidelines. Notwithstanding section 2879 of the public authorities law or any other law to the contrary, any such contract may be procured by the corporation on a sole-source basis, and shall not be subject to competitive bid or competitive request for proposal requirements.

**§ 16-y. Marketing of agricultural products. Declaration of policy.** (a) It is hereby declared that the mission of the corporation is to promote a vigorous and growing state economy. In implementing this mission, the corporation has undertaken a vigorous campaign to market the state's assets and by carrying out the provisions of this section, would further this mission by promoting the development of markets for agricultural products grown and produced in the state.

**(b) It is further declared that the marketing of agricultural commodities and aquatic products in this state, in excess of reasonable and normal market demands therefor; disorderly marketing of such commodities; improper preparation for market and lack of uniform grading and classification of agricultural commodities and aquatic products; unfair methods of competition in the marketing of such commodities and the inability of individual producers to develop new and larger markets for agricultural commodities and aquatic products, result in an unreasonable and unnecessary economic waste of the agricultural wealth of this state. Such conditions and the accompanying waste jeopardize the future continued production of adequate food supplies for the people of this and other states. These conditions vitally concern the health, safety and general welfare of the people of this state.**

**It is therefore declared the legislative purpose and the policy of this state:**

- (i) To enable agricultural producers and aquatic producers of this state, with the aid of the state, more effectively to correlate the marketing of their agricultural commodities and aquatic products with market demands therefor.**
- (ii) To establish orderly, efficient and equitable marketing of agricultural commodities and aquatic products.**
- (iii) To provide for uniform grading and proper preparation of agricultural commodities and aquatic products for market.**
- (iv) To provide methods and means for the development of new and larger markets for agricultural commodities and aquatic products produced in New York.**
- (v) To eliminate or reduce the economic waste in the marketing of agricultural commodities and aquatic products. --A**
- (vi) To eliminate unjust impairment of the purchasing power of aquatic producers and the agricultural producers of this state; and**
- (vii) To aid agricultural and aquatic producers in maintaining an income at an adequate and equitable level.**

**2. Definitions. (a) "Agricultural commodity" means any and all agricultural, horticultural, vineyard products, corn for grain, oats, soybeans, barley, wheat, poultry or poultry products, bees, maple sap and pure maple products produced therefrom, christmas trees, livestock, including swine, and honey, sold in the state either in their natural state or as processed by the producer thereof but does not include milk, timber or timber products, other than christmas trees, all hay, rye and legumes except for soybeans.**

**(b) "Aquaculture" means the culture, cultivation and harvest of aquatic plants and animals.**

**(c) "Aquatic products" means any food or fiber products obtained through the practice of aquaculture, including mariculture; or by harvest from the sea when such products are cultured or landed in this state. Such products include but are not limited to fish, shellfish, seaweed or other water based plant life.**

**(d) "Producer" means any person engaged within this state in the business of producing, or causing to be produced for any market, any agricultural commodity or aquatic product.**

**(e) "Handler" means any person engaged in the operation of packing, grading, selling, offering for sale or marketing any marketable agricultural commodities or aquatic products, who as owner, agent or otherwise ships or causes an agricultural commodity to be shipped.**

(f) "Processor" means any person engaged within this state in processing, or in the operation of receiving, grading, packing, canning, freezing, dehydrating, fermenting, distilling, extracting, preserving, grinding, crushing, or in any other way preserving or changing the form of an agricultural product or aquatic product for the purpose of marketing such commodity but shall not include a person engaged in manufacturing from an agricultural commodity or aquatic product another and different product.

(g) "Distributor" means any person engaged within this state, in selling, offering for sale, marketing or distributing an agricultural commodity or aquatic product which he or she has purchased or acquired from a producer or other person or which he or she is marketing on behalf of a producer or other person, whether as owner, agent, employee, broker or otherwise, but shall not include a retailer, except such retailer who purchases or acquires from, or handles on behalf of any producer or other person, an agricultural commodity or aquatic product subject to regulation by the marketing agreement or order covering such commodity.

(h) "President" means the president of the corporation.

(i) "Marketing agreement" means an agreement entered into, with the approval of the president, by producers with distributors, processors and handlers regulating the preparation, sale and handling of agricultural commodities or aquatic products.

(j) "Marketing order" means an order issued by the president pursuant to this section, prescribing rules and regulations governing the marketing for processing, the distributing, the sale of, or the handling in any manner of any agricultural commodity or aquatic product sold in this state during any specified period or periods.

3. Powers and duties of the president. (a) In order to effectuate the declared policy of this section, the president, in consultation with the --A commissioner of agriculture and markets, may, after due notice and opportunity for hearing, approve marketing agreements, which marketing agreements shall thereupon be binding upon the signatories thereto exclusively.

(b) The president may make and issue marketing orders, after due notice and opportunity for hearing, subject to:

(i) approval of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds per centum of the producers participating in a referendum in the area affected, or

(ii) approval of not less than sixty-five per centum of the producers participating in a referendum vote, in the area affected, and having marketed not less than fifty-one per centum of the total quantity of the commodity which was marketed in the next preceding, ordinary marketing season by all producers that voted in the referendum, or

(iii) approval of not less than fifty-one per centum of the producers participating in a referendum vote, in the area affected, and having marketed not less than sixty-five per centum of the total quantity of the commodity which was marketed in the next preceding, ordinary marketing season by all producers that voted in the referendum. The president may, and upon written petition duly signed by twenty-five per centum of the producers in the area amend or terminate such order after due notice and opportunity for hearing, but subject to the approval of not less than fifty per centum of such producers participating in a referendum vote.

(c) The president shall administer and enforce any marketing order, while it is in effect, to:

(i) Encourage and maintain stable prices received by producers for such agricultural commodity and aquatic product at a level which is consistent with the provisions and aims of this act.

(ii) Prevent the unreasonable or unnecessary waste of land or water based wealth.

(iii) Protect the interests of consumers of such commodity, by exercising the powers of this section to such extent as is necessary to effectuate the purposes of this act.

(iv) Prepare a budget for the administration and operating costs and expenses including advertising and sales promotion when required in any marketing agreement or order executed in this section and to provide for the collection and retention of such necessary fees to defray such costs and expenses, in no case to exceed five percent of the gross dollar volume of sales or dollar volume of purchases or amounts handled, to be collected from each person engaged in the production, processing, distributing or the handling of any marketable agricultural commodity and aquatic product produced or landed in this state and directly affected by any marketing order issued pursuant to this section for such commodity.

(v) Confer and cooperate with the legally constituted authorities of other states and the United States.

(d) Any marketing agreement or order issued by the president pursuant to this section may contain any or all of the following:

(i) Provisions for determining the existence and extent of the surplus of any agricultural commodity, or of any grade, size or quality thereof, and providing for the regulation and disposition of such surplus.

(ii) Provisions for limiting the total quantity of any agricultural product, or of any grade or grades, size or sizes, or quality or portions or combinations thereof, which may be marketed during any specified period or periods. Such total quantity of any such commodity so regulated shall not be less than the quantity which the president shall --A find is reasonably necessary to supply the market demand of consumers for such commodity.

(iii) Provisions regulating to the period, or periods, during which any agricultural commodity, or any grade or grades, size or sizes or quality or portions or combinations of such commodity, may be marketed.

(iv) Provisions for the establishment of uniform grading, standards, and inspection of any agricultural commodity delivered by producers or other persons to handlers, processors, distributors or others engaging in the handling thereof, and for the establishment of grading or standards of quality, condition, size, maturity or pack for any agricultural commodity, and the inspection and grading of such commodity in accordance with such grading or standards so established; and for provisions that no producer, handler, processor or distributor of any agricultural commodity for which grading or standards are so established may, except as otherwise provided in such marketing agreement or order, sell, offer for sale, process, distribute or otherwise handle any such commodity whether produced within or without this state, not meeting and complying with such established grading or standards. For the purposes of this section, the federal-state inspection service shall perform all inspections made necessary by such provisions.

(v) Provisions for the establishment of research programs designed to benefit a specified commodity or New York agriculture in general.

(vi) Provisions for the president to retain money collected under any marketing order issued pursuant to this section to defray the costs and expenses in the administration thereof.

(vii) Such other provisions as may be necessary to effectuate the declared policies of this section.

(viii) Provisions to establish marketing promotion and research programs for aquatic products which may include subparagraphs (i) through (vii) of this paragraph.

(e) The president may temporarily suspend the operation of an effective marketing order for a continuing period of not longer than one growing and marketing season, if the purposes of this section are deemed unnecessary during such season.

(f) In carrying out the purposes of this section, the president, in consultation with the commissioner of agriculture and markets, shall take into consideration any and all facts available to him or her with respect to the following economic factors:

(i) The quantity of such agricultural commodity available for distribution.

(ii) The quantity of such agricultural commodity normally required by consumers.

(iii) The cost of producing such agricultural commodity.

(iv) The purchasing power of consumers.

(v) The level of prices of commodities, services and sections which the farmers commonly buy.

(vi) The level of prices of other commodities which compete with or are utilized as substitutes for such agricultural commodity.

(g) The execution of such marketing agreements shall in no manner affect the issuance, administration or enforcement of any marketing order provided for in this section. The president may issue such marketing order without executing a marketing agreement or may execute a marketing agreement without issuing a marketing order covering the same commodity. The president, in his or her discretion, may hold a concurrent hearing upon a proposed marketing agreement and a proposed marketing order in the manner provided for giving notice and opportunity for hearing for a marketing order as provided in this section.

(h) Prior to the issuance, amendment or termination of any marketing order, the president may require the applicants for such issuance, amendment or termination to deposit with him or her such amount as he or she may deem necessary to defray the expenses of preparing and making effective amending or terminating a marketing order. Such funds shall be received, deposited and disbursed by the president in the same manner as other fees received by him or her under this section and, in the event the application for adoption, amendment or termination of a marketing order is approved in a referendum, the president shall reimburse any such applicant in the amount of any such deposit from any unexpended monies collected under the marketing order affected by such referendum.

(i) Any moneys collected by the president pursuant to this section shall not be deemed state funds and shall be deposited in a bank or other depository of the corporation, approved by the president, allocated to each marketing order under which they are collected, and shall be disbursed by the president only for the necessary expenses incurred by the president with respect to each such separate marketing order, all in accordance with the rules and regulations of the president. All such expenditures shall be audited by the corporation at least annually. Any moneys remaining in such fund allocable to any particular commodity affected by a marketing order may, in the discretion of the president, be refunded at the close of any marketing season upon a pro-rata basis to all persons from whom assessments therefor were collected or, whenever the president finds that such moneys may be necessary to defray the cost of operating such marketing order in a succeeding marketing season, he or she may carry over all or any portion of such moneys into the next such succeeding season. Upon the termination by the president of any marketing order, all moneys remaining and not required by the president to defray the expenses of operating such marketing order, shall be refunded by the president upon a pro-rata basis to all persons from whom assessments therefor were collected; provided, however, that if the



president finds that the amounts so refundable are so small as to make impracticable the computation and refunding of such refunds, the president may use such moneys to defray the expenses incurred by him or her in the formulation, issuance, administration or enforcement of any subsequent marketing order for such commodity.

(j) Advisory board. (i) Any marketing order issued pursuant to this section shall provide for the establishment of an advisory board, to consist of not less than five members nor more than nine members, to advise the president in the administration of such marketing order in accordance with its terms and provisions. The members of said board shall be appointed by the president from nominations received from the commodity group for which the marketing order is established. Nominating procedure, qualification, representation and size of the advisory board shall be prescribed in each marketing order for which such board is appointed. Each advisory board shall be composed of such producers and handlers or processors as are directly affected by the marketing order in such proportion of representation as the order shall prescribe. The president may appoint one person who is neither a producer, processor or other handler to represent the department of agriculture and markets, the corporation, or the public generally.

(ii) No member of an advisory board shall receive a salary, but each shall be entitled to his or her actual expenses incurred while engaged in performing his or her duties herein authorized. --A

(iii) The duties and responsibilities of each advisory board shall be prescribed by the president, and he or she may specifically delegate to the advisory board, by inclusion in the marketing order, all or any of the following duties and responsibilities:

(A) The recommendation to the president of administrative rules and regulations relating to the marketing order.

(B) Recommending to the president such amendments to the marketing order as deemed advisable.

(C) The preparation and submission to the president of the estimated budget required for the proper operation of the marketing order.

(D) Recommending to the president methods for assessing members of the industry and methods for collecting the necessary funds.

(E) Assisting the president in the collection and assembling of information and data necessary to the proper administration of the order.

(F) The performance of such other duties in connection with the marketing order as the president shall designate.

4. Rules and regulations; enforcement. The president may make and promulgate such rules and regulations as may be necessary to effectuate the provisions and intent of this section and to enforce the provision of any marketing agreement or order, all of which shall have the force and effect of law.

The president may institute such action at law or in equity as may appear necessary to enforce compliance with any provision of this section, or any rule or regulation, marketing agreement or order, committed to his or her administration, and in addition may apply for relief by injunction if necessary to protect the public interest without being compelled to allege or prove that an adequate remedy at law does not exist. Such application may be made to the supreme court in any district or county as provided in the civil practice law and rules, or to the supreme court in the third judicial district.

5. Cooperation by the department of agriculture and markets. The president of the corporation may request and receive, within ninety days of such request, from the New York state department of agriculture and markets (hereinafter

referred to in this subdivision as the "department") such assistance, information and cooperation as may be necessary for the corporation to provide services with respect to the administration of the procedures set forth for the issuance, termination or amendment of any agricultural, commodities or aquatic order and/or the administration of any such order. The corporation shall retain an amount equal to the expenses incurred by the corporation in performing its duties pursuant to this section and reimburse the department an amount equal to the expenses incurred by the department in supplying such services, subsequent to submission and audit of a voucher therefor. Such reimbursement shall not exceed the total amount of funds collected by the corporation pursuant to this section less the reasonable expenses incurred by the corporation in performing its duties pursuant to this section.

6. Indemnification. The state shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the corporation, its directors, officers, and employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs and expenses whatsoever arising directly or indirectly from, or relating to, the administration of any agricultural, commodities or aquatic promotion order issued or administered pursuant to this section. In connection with the foregoing, the corporation shall give the state (a) prompt written notice of any action, claim or threat of suit, (b) the opportunity to take over, settle or defend such action, claim or suit at --A the state's sole expense, and (c) assistance in the defense of any such action at the expense of the state.

7. Contractual provisions. The corporation may contract for services with respect to the implementation of this section in accordance with the corporation's policies, procedures and guidelines. Notwithstanding section 2879 of the public authorities law or any other law to the contrary, any such contract may be procured by the corporation on a sole-source basis, and shall not be subject to competitive bid or competitive request for proposal requirements.

§ 16-z. Marketing orders. The marketing orders, the regulatory provisions relating thereto, set forth in title one of the official compilation of codes, rules and regulations of the state of New York parts 40, 200, 201, 202, 203, 204, and 205, and the contracts relating thereto shall remain in full force and effect until amended or repealed pursuant to the statutory authority set forth in sections 16-x and 16-y of this act except that: (a) such marketing orders, the regulatory provisions relating thereto, and the contracts relating thereto shall be administered by and under the supervision of the president of the corporation as of the effective date of sections 16-x and 16-y of this act; (b) all undisbursed funds under the control of the department of agriculture and markets shall be transferred to the corporation on or before such effective date; and (c) any assessments due and payable under such marketing orders shall be remitted to the corporation starting 30 days after the effective date of this section.

§ 3. This act shall take effect on the ninetieth day after it shall have become a law and shall expire and be deemed repealed five years after such date; provided, however, that any assessment due and payable under such marketing orders shall be remitted to the urban development corporation starting 30 days after such effective date.

## PART T

Section 1. Subdivision 1 and the opening paragraph of subdivision 2 of section 27-1905 of the environmental conservation law, as amended by section 1 of part G of chapter 58 of the laws of 2013, are amended to read as follows:

1. ~~Until December thirty-first, two thousand sixteen, accept~~ **Accept** from a customer, waste tires of approximately the same size and in a quantity equal to the number of new tires purchased or installed by the customer; and

~~Until December thirty-first, two thousand sixteen, post~~ **Post** written notice in a prominent location, which must be at least eight and onehalf inches by fourteen inches in size and contain the following language:

§ 2. The opening paragraph of subdivision 1, the opening paragraph of subdivision 2 and the opening paragraph of subdivision 3 and paragraph (a) of subdivision 6 of section 27-1913 of the environmental conservation law, as amended by section 2 of part G of chapter 58 of the laws of 2013, are amended to read as follows:

~~Until December thirty-first, two thousand sixteen, a~~ **A** waste tire management and recycling fee of two dollars and fifty cents shall be charged on each new tire sold. The fee shall be paid by the purchaser to the tire service at the time the new tire or new motor vehicle is purchased.

~~Until December thirty-first, two thousand sixteen, the~~ **The** tire service shall collect the waste tire management and recycling fee from --A the purchaser at the time of the sale and shall remit such fee to the department of taxation and finance with the quarterly report filed pursuant to subdivision three of this section.

~~Until March thirty-first, two thousand seventeen, each~~ **Each** tire service maintaining a place of business in this state shall make a return to the department of taxation and finance on a quarterly basis, with the return for December, January, and February being due on or before the immediately following March thirty-first; the return for March, April, and May being due on or before the immediately following June thirtieth; the return for June, July, and August being due on or before the immediately following September thirtieth; and the return for September, October, and November being due on or before the immediately following December thirty-first.

(a) ~~Until December thirty-first, two thousand sixteen, any~~ **Any** additional waste tire management and recycling costs of the tire service in excess of the amount authorized to be retained pursuant to paragraph (b) of subdivision two of this section may be included in the published selling price of the new tire, or charged as a separate per-tire charge on each new tire sold. When such costs are charged as a separate per-tire charge: (i) such charge shall be stated as an invoice item separate and distinct from the selling price of the tire; (ii) the invoice shall state that the charge is imposed at the sole discretion of the tire service; and (iii) the amount of such charge shall reflect the actual cost to the tire service for the management and recycling of waste tires accepted by the tire service pursuant to section 27-1905 of this title, provided however, that in no event shall such charge exceed two dollars and fifty cents on each new tire sold.

§ 3. This act shall take effect immediately.

#### PART U

Section 1. Paragraph a of subdivision 2 of section 92-s of the state finance law, as added by chapter 610 of the laws of 1993, is amended to read as follows:

a. The comptroller shall establish the following separate and distinct accounts within the environmental protection fund:

- (i) solid waste account;
- (ii) parks, recreation and historic preservation account;
- (iii) open space account; ~~and~~
- (iv) **climate change mitigation and adaptation account; and**
- (v) environmental protection transfer account.

§ 2. Paragraph (b) of subdivision 6 of section 92-s of the state finance law, as amended by chapter 432 of the laws of 1997, is amended to read as follows:

(b) Moneys from the solid waste account shall be available, pursuant to appropriation and upon certificate of approval of availability by the director of the budget, for any non-hazardous municipal landfill closure project; municipal waste reduction or recycling project, as defined in article fifty-four of the environmental conservation law; for the purposes of section two hundred sixty-one and section two hundred sixty-four of the economic development law; any project for the development, updating or revision of local solid waste management plans pursuant to sections 27-0107 and 27-0109 of the environmental conservation law; **environmental justice programs, projects and grants**; and for the development of the pesticide sales and use data base in conjunction --A with Cornell University pursuant to title twelve of article thirtythree of the environmental conservation law.

§ 3. Subdivision 6 of section 92-s of the state finance law is amended by adding a new paragraph (f) to read as follows:

**(f) Moneys from the climate change mitigation and adaptation account shall be available, pursuant to appropriation and upon certificate of approval of availability by the director of the budget, for programs and projects to reduce greenhouse gasses; for the development, updating or revision of local waterfront revitalization plans pursuant to title eleven of article fifty-four of the environmental conservation law to adapt for climate change, or for other planning undertaken to improve resiliency from impacts of climate change; for smart growth programs; and for adaptive infrastructure, including grants pursuant to the climate smart communities program; resiliency planting projects; the climate resilient farms program; state vulnerability assessments; and programs and projects to implement and comply with the provisions of chapter three hundred fifty-five of the laws of two thousand fourteen, known as the "community risk and resiliency act".**

§ 4. Section 54-1101 of the environmental conservation law, as amended by chapter 309 of the laws of 1996, subdivisions 1 and 5 as amended by chapter 355 of the laws of 2014, is amended to read as follows: § 54-1101. Local waterfront revitalization programs.

1. The secretary is authorized to provide on a competitive basis, within amounts appropriated, state assistance payments **and/or technical assistance** to municipalities toward the ~~cost~~ **development** of any local waterfront revitalization program, including planning projects to mitigate future physical climate risks. Eligible costs include planning, studies, preparation of local laws, and construction projects.

2. State assistance payments **and/or technical assistance** shall not exceed fifty percent of the cost of the program, **except where the municipality has a population, as determined in the most recent United States census, of under three hundred thousand and a median household income of less than or equal to one hundred twenty-five percent of the statewide median household income for the most recent United States census, or as otherwise determined by regulation promulgated by the department of state, or for planning projects to mitigate future physical climate risks, in which case state assistance payments and/or technical assistance shall not exceed ninety percent of the cost of the program.** For the purpose of determining the amount of state assistance payments, costs shall not be more than the amount set forth in the application for state assistance payments approved by the secretary. The state assistance payments shall be paid on audit and warrant of the state comptroller on a certificate of availability of the director of the budget.

3. **The secretary is authorized to provide on a noncompetitive basis, within amounts appropriated, state assistance payments and/or technical assistance toward the development of planning projects to mitigate future physical climate risks to municipalities that have been awarded state assistance payments and/or technical assistance under subdivision one of this section. Such payments may be used for updates designed to mitigate future physical climate risks.**

4. The secretary shall have the power to approve vouchers for payments pursuant to an approved contract.

4. **5.** No moneys shall be expended as authorized by this section except pursuant to an appropriation therefor. --A

5. **6.** The secretary shall impose such contractual requirements and conditions upon any municipality which receives state assistance payments pursuant to this article as may be necessary and appropriate to ensure that a public benefit shall accrue from the use of such funds by the municipality including but not limited to, a demonstration that future physical climate risk due to sea level rise, and/or storm surges and/or flooding, based on available data predicting the likelihood of future extreme weather events, including hazard risk analysis data if applicable, has been considered.

§ 5. Section 912 of the executive law is amended by adding a new subdivision 17 to read as follows:

**17. To encourage state agencies and local governments to consider physical climate risks in planning and development efforts.**

§ 6. Subdivision 1 of section 918 of the executive law, as added by chapter 840 of the laws of 1981, is amended to read as follows:

1. The secretary may enter into a contract or contracts for grants **or payments** to be made, within the limits of any appropriations therefor, for the following:

a. To any local governments, or to two or more local governments, for projects approved by the secretary which lead to preparation of a waterfront revitalization program; provided, however, that such grants **or payments** shall not exceed fifty percent of the approved cost of such projects, **except where each local government has a population, as determined in the most recent United States census, of under three hundred thousand and a median household income of less than or equal to one hundred twenty-five percent of the statewide median household income for the most recent United States census, or as otherwise determined by regulation promulgated by the department of state, or for planning projects to mitigate future physical climate risks, in which case such grants or payments shall not exceed ninety percent of the approved cost of such projects;** b. **To service providers, on behalf of and in consultation with any local governments or two or more local governments, for projects approved by the secretary which lead to preparation of a waterfront revitalization program; however, that such grants or payments shall not exceed fifty percent of the approved cost of such projects, except where each local government has a population, as determined in the most recent United States census, of under three hundred thousand and a median household income of less than or equal to one hundred twenty-five percent of the statewide median household income for the most recent United States census, or as otherwise determined by regulation promulgated by the department of state, or for planning projects to mitigate future physical climate risks, in which case such grants or payments shall not exceed ninety percent of the approved cost of such projects;** c. To any local government or local government agency for research, design, and other activities which serve to facilitate construction projects provided for in an approved waterfront revitalization program; provided, however, that such grants or payments shall not exceed ten percent of the estimated cost of such construction project.

§ 7. This act shall take effect immediately.

PART V Section 1. Subdivision 3 of section 79-b of the navigation law, as amended by section 1 of part D of chapter 109 of the laws of 2010, is amended to read as follows: -A

3. The amount of state aid to be allocated to eligible governmental entities pursuant to this article shall be determined by the commissioner as hereinafter provided. The commissioner shall determine the percentage proportion which the authorized expenditures of each individual entity, not exceeding four hundred thousand dollars for each county including municipalities therein, shall bear to the total authorized expenditures of all entities. Such percentage proportion shall then be applied against an amount equal to one-half of the total of the amount received by the state in each preceding program year in vessel registration

fees as provided in section twenty-two hundred fifty-one of the vehicle and traffic law, less no more than thirty percent, subject to appropriation, which may be used by the commissioner and the commissioner of motor vehicles for administrative costs of the program, including training and equipment, and by the department of environmental conservation, the division of state police and other state agencies, subject to the approval of the commissioner, for the purposes of this article, plus the entire amount received pursuant to subdivision nine of section forty-four of this chapter. The amount thus determined shall constitute the maximum amount of state aid to which each such entity shall be entitled; provided, however, that no entity shall receive state aid in an amount in excess of ~~fifty~~ **twenty-five** percent of its authorized expenditures as approved by the commissioner for such program year. The commissioner shall certify to the comptroller the amount thus determined for each eligible local governmental entity as the amount of state aid to be apportioned to such eligible local governmental entity. The allocation of state aid to any county, town or village within the Lake George park shall not be reduced because of the allocation of state aid to the Lake George park commission. Of the remaining funds received by the state for the registration of vessels as provided in section twenty-two hundred fifty-one of the vehicle and traffic law, no less than six percent shall be made available to the commissioner for the expenses of the office in providing navigation law enforcement training and administering the provisions of this section.

§ 2. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on and after April 1, 2016.

§ 2. Severability clause. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this act shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part thereof directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the legislature that this act would have been enacted even if such invalid provisions had not been included herein.

§ 3. This act shall take effect immediately provided, however, that the applicable effective date of Parts A through V of this act shall be as specifically set forth in the last section of such Parts.